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FALCONBRIDGE LIMITED

(the “Company”)

Due to a subsequent event that has arisen since the commencement of the Annual Report
printing process, the Company’s annual financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2005 (USS millions except as otherwise indicated) are hereby amended by the
insertion of the following:

On page 65 of the Annual Report, the Auditors’ Report is amended to insert the
following under the February 7, 2006 date:

(except as to Note 23 which is as of March 16, 2006)

On page 101 of the Annual Report, the following additional note is inserted:
23.  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Company announced on March 16, 2006 that it intends to redeem a total of
20,000,000, or $500, of its outstanding junior preference shares. The junior
preference shares will be redeemed on April 16, 2006 from holders of record on
March 22, 2006. The Company intends to utilize its internal cash resources to fund
the redemption.




Falconbridge = Leveraging Momentum

- Falconbridge is in an excellent position to add value
e Strong industry fundamentals, particularly for copper and nickel
¢ [ntegrated operating base with upside potential
* |mpressive brownfield and greenfield growth projects
e Solid financial performance

- Potential for multiple expansion and reduced cost of capital

- Simplified organizational structure

Financial Highlights
{$ MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA} 2005 2004
Results of Qperations  Revenues $ 8,148 $ 6,764
Income generated by operating assets! 1,820 1,391
Net income 872 521
Net income per common share (basic) $ 252 $ 171
Net income per common share (diluted) $ 2.50 $ 1.70
Cash flow Cash flow from operations $ 1,635 $ 1,182
Investment in growth projects 409 432
Sustaining capital expenditures 328 234
Dividends per common share Cdn$0.48 Cdn$0.48
Financial Position Cash and cash equivalents $ 886 $ 884
T T | (at December 31) Operating capital assets 6,803 4,870
Development projects 1,707 1,166
Total assets 12,418 9,628
Long-term debt 3,474 2,858
Shareholders’ equity 5,031 2,839
Investment Grade Credit Ratings: Moody’s: Baa3 Standard & Poor's: BBB- Dominion Bond Rating Service: BBB High

1. See Supplementa! Performance Measures on page 26 for a definition of income generated by operating assets.

Note: All funds are in U.S. dollars and units of measurement are metric unless otherwise noted.

Forward-looking Statements: Falconbridge cautions that the statements made to describe the Company’s intentions, expectations or predictions may be
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of securities laws. The Company cautions that, by their nature, forward-looking statements invalve risk and
uncertainty and that the Company’s actual results could differ materiaily from those expressed or implied in such statements. Reference should be made to
the most recent Annual Information Form filed with Canadian securities regulatory authorities (and available at www.sedar.com) for a description of the
major risks. Please also see “Forward-looking Information” on page 63.
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Building From Strength

COPPER

@ Existing Operation
© Development Project

NICKEL

@ Existing Operation
© Development Project

Copper Business Unit operates copper mines and processes

internal and third-party feeds to recover copper, zinc, gold,

silver, PGMs and various by-products

Long-life, low-cost mines located primarily in South America

Technologically advanced processing facilities

» Technology produces high margins from the treatment of
complex feeds

Integrated operations drive benefits

e Mitigate market volatility in treatment costs

o Create freight cost arbitrage opportunities

The business unit contributed $1,086 million of income

generated by operating assets in 2005, a 61% increase

over 2004

Nickel Business Unit operates nickel mines and
processes internal and third-party feeds to recover
nickel, ferronickel, copper concentrates, cobalt
and PGMs

Expanding existing resources and exploring and
developing new nickel |aterite deposits

Fully-integrated operations

= One of the world’s largest recyclers and processors of

nickel and cobalt-bearing materials

The business unit contributed $597 million of income
generated by operating assets in 2005, a 6% decrease
from 2004

Copper Production Copper Business Unit Revenue
(000s tonnes) (% of total)

(Below) Collahuasi copper mine -
Region 1, Chile
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Nickel Production Nickel Business Unit Revenue
(000s tonnes) (% of total)
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03 04 05 project - Sudbury, Ontario

Nickel revenue increased 18% over 2004.




ALUMINUM
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Aluminum Business Unit operates an integrated
business that produces alumina, primary aluminum
products and rolled aluminum products

= Zinc Business Unit operates zinc mines and zinc and lead
smelter/refineries that process internal and third-party
concentrates and lead secondaries to recover zinc, lead,
silver and various by-products
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Primary smelter supplies approximately 10% of
U.S. demand

Refined zinc production from Kidd Creek and CEZ refineries
in Canada

éi
i

Well positioned to benefit from improved aluminum

=< Attractive brownfield and greenfield projects under
market outlook

consideration with potential to replace current mine production

PR R E

The business unit contributed $106 million of
income generated by operating assets in 2005, a
19% increase over 2004

Well positioned to benefit from increase in zinc and lead prices

The business unit contributed $60 million of income
generated by operating assets in 2005, a significant increase

over 2004
Zinc Production T Zinc Business Unit Revenue Aluminum Production Aluminum Business Unit Revenue
(000s tonnes) (% of total) (0Q0s tonnes) (% of total)
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A WONa Of ReSources
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A WEALTH OF OPPORTUNITIES

- Falconbridge’s current business Inco's global nickel resources and platform. These businesses provide
operations and projects span the operations. The operating assets a significant financial contribution
Ve globe and our quest for growth and and growth opportunities of both to the core nickel and copper ; !
LN development opportunities has companies are very comple- businesses and upside exposure Lo N
'“\ } equal breadth. With a winning mentary. Combined, the nickel and to the improved fundamentals of
h I . . PN .
N strategy, a strong financial position copper assets of both companies these markets.
N J | and an attractive portfolio of form a world-class base of existing ?
. )y\” | development projects, we believe operations and development - Falconbridge’s and Inco’s com- .
SN that we remain well positioned to projects. (See discussion on the bined mining and processing ‘
further enhance value for inco offer to acquire Falconbridge platform creates a global base- ; 5
shareholders. in “To Our Shareholders” metals business with significant P
S j beginning on page 7.) leverage to the current strong
| = Upon the successful completion of metals price environment and
} Inco's acquisition of Falconbridge, - The addition of zinc and aluminum significant upside opportunity via
| Falconbridge's operations identified operations and opportunities rounds the diverse list of development ‘
{ . . . . . . i
| on this map will be combined with out the global nickel and copper opportunities. |
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Delivering Value for Shareholders .

= Completed recapitalization of the company providing improved financial base with which
to undertake growth initiatives

2> Merged Noranda and former Falconbridge, increasing asset base, share float and liquidity,
and providing opportunity for re-rating

- Endorsed Inco Limited friendly take-over offer to create a premier global mining and base
metals competitor

$3 7.80 o '

February 21, 2006 e

Inco launched friendly take-over offer to acquire
Vs Faiconbridge at indicative price of Cdn$34/share.

Adopted sharehd!der rights plan.

August 2005
// Xstrata acquires 19.9% stake in Falconbridge.
' Redeemed US$500 million in junior preference shares.

s //
,/' // Completed merger of Noranda and Falconbridge (new company renamed
//”‘/ Falconbridge), Br_ascan ownership of new Falconbridge reduced to 20%.
/' Issued $500 million of long-term debt at favourable rates.
/'/// Noranda share issuer bid ~ purchased 63,377,140 common shares in exchange for three
/ / series of its junior preference shares with aggregate stated value of US$1.25 billion.
// ///
Y. // // R e
s Initiated Noranda sale process to maximize value for shareholders.

$11.71
e

| Cam Completed issuance of 6 million preferred shares (Cdn$25/share) and 48.5 million common

/‘// shares (Cdn$12.65/share) for gross proceeds of US$542 million.

IOV ).y 2003

v Announced comprehensive Noranda recapitalization program.

6 FALCONBRIDGE * 2005 ANNUAL REPORT



To Our Shareholders

INTRODUCTION

2005 was an eventful and enormously successful year for Falconbridge, highlighted by

strong earnings and operating results and significant value creation. Actions taken
throughout the course of 2005 enabled us to seize the momentum we developed over the past few
years while enhancing the Company’s appeal to investors.

In March, the Boards of Directors of Noranda and the former Falconbridge agreed to a merger
that created one of North America's largest base-metals companies. The strength of this
combination was evident in our robust 2005 financial results: net income for 2005 climbed 67%
to $872 million and we generated a record $1,635 million in operating cash flow.

Those results also reflect not only the favourable base-metal fundamentals that prevailed during
2005, but also our increased production. Record refined nickel production of 114,000 tonnes
combined with strong operational performances from our copper, zinc and aluminum business units
to produce a banner year. Business unit revenues recorded year-over-year gains of 23% for copper,
18% for nickel, 21% for zinc and 15% for aluminum. Higher metals prices more than offset
increased input costs — most notably for energy — as well as the negative impact of the strong
Canadian and South American currencies.

The Company continued to advance its growth initiatives during 2005 - particularly in nickel
and copper — further strengthening a pipeline of international greenfield and brownfield
opportunities that is among the strongest in the industry.

On October 11, 2005, we announced that our Board of Directors had unanimously endorsed a
friendly acquisition offer from Inco Limited. Bringing together these two great organizations would
create a premier global mining and base metals company. We believe that the combination of Inco
and Falconbridge clearly represents a tremendous value proposition for our shareholders, for the
near and long term.

As | indicated at the outset of this letter, 2005 proved to be a pivotal year for our Company.
The following outlines some of the specific highlights and achievements.

2005 SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

—

DEREK PANNELL . AARON REGENT . STEVE DOUGLAS

Chief Executive Officer Presjdent © Executive Vice-President
and Chief Financial Officer

Annual Net Income
(% millions)

872

521

2
03 04 05

Net income fncreased
$351 million aver 2004
results and $870 miliion
over 2003 resuits.

PETER KUKIELSK!

. Executive Vice-President
. and Chief Operating Officer

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS 7




Annual Operating Cash Flow
($ millions)

1,635

03 04 05

Operating cash flow
increased $451 million
over 2004 results and
$1,227 million over
2003 resuits.

Average Realized Metal Prices
2005 vs. 2004
($/1b.)
6.85
6.40

P
N
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0405 0405 0405 0408

i CoPPER
g NICKEL
ZINC

B ~Luminum

The prices of all four of
our main metals increased
significantly in 2005.

STRONG FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Falconbridge posted 2005 net income of $872 million, or $2.52 per basic share, up sharply from
the comparable year-earlier figures of $521 million or $1.71 per basic share. Income generated by
operating assets also increased substantially, to $1,820 miltion from $1,391 million in 2004.
Revenues for 2005 totaled $8,148 million, compared with revenues of $6,764 miliion in 2004,

We also succeeded in further strengthening the balance sheet, repaying more than $1 billion in
debt during 2005. Upon completion of the Noranda and Falconbridge merger, the major credit-
rating agencies affirmed our investment grade status. This enabled the Company to issue $500 mil-
lion of new long-term debt at very favourable rates during the second quarter. Strong operating cash
flows and an accumulating cash position were used to redeem $500 million of junior preference
shares in the third quarter and to retire $400 million of long-term debentures that were maturing.
Total liquidity continues to remain very strong, with over $1.6 billion of cash and undrawn lines at
December 31, 2005. The net-debt-to-capitalization ratio at year end 2005 was 37%, compared to
a proforma ratio of approximately 48% for a combined Falconbridge and Noranda at year end
2004. It should be noted as well that the Company's credit ratings were reaffirmed following the
announcement of Inco's offer to acquire Falconbridge.

POSITIVE NICKEL AND COPPER FUNDAMENTALS, COMBINED WITH

A SOLID PRODUCTION BASE AND PIPELINE OF HIGH-QUALITY GROWTH
OPPORTUNITIES, WILL ENABLE US TO CONTINUE TO CREATE VALUE
FOR OUR SHAREHOLDERS IN THE YEARS AHEAD.

Meanwhile, we have continued with our prudent use of cash and disciplined approach to capital
expenditures while still investing in attractive growth projects. Capital investments for 2005 totaled
$737 million. An ambitious Six Sigma program has been key to our ongoing focus on costs. Some
150 projects were completed in 2005, yielding annualized benefits of over $60 million.

MAXIMIZING SHAREHOLDER VALUE
Our determination to maximize shareholder value was the main driver in the crucial decisions taken
by the Company during the year under review.

Early in the year, we recognized how the strong fundamentals of our business and the various
steps we were taking to improve and grow our operations were not being reflected in our share price.
The Board of Directors elected to pursue an amalgamation of Noranda and former Falconbridge by
making a share exchange offer to the minority shareholders of former Falconbridge. This resulted in
the creation of a more widely held copper/nickel-focused mining and metals company with:
simplified governance, greater financial strength and capacity, increased liquidity, improved risk
management, and a proven senior management team focused on operating results and growth.
Moreover, the merger proved to be a catalyst for change that opened the door to a fundamental re-
valuation of what had become a considerably larger and more attractive industry player.

On June 30, 2005, Noranda and former Falconbridge shareholders approved the amalgamation
of the two companies under the name Falconbridge Limited. Effective July 6, 2005, shares of the

8 FALCONBRIDGE + 2005 ANNUAL REPORT




merged entity began trading under a new stock symbol
(TSX: FAL.LV and NYSE: FAL).

In August 2005, Swiss-based Xstrata plc purchased a
19.9% stake in the Company in a private transaction.

Since significant deployment in 1999 and company-wide
. adoption in 2002, application of Six Sigma has contributed

INCO'S OFFER TO ACQUIRE FALCONBRIDGE t to improving performance at Falconbridge. Six Sigma is a

The friendly acquisition offer from Inco provides a platform to  : | process-centered, step-by-step analytical approach to

further enhance value, bringing together two great companies - reviewing operational performance and driving continuous
with complementary assets to forge a powerhouse in a improvement. The Six Sigma approach starts by focusing on L

key business drivers and identifying high-impact initiatives
in these areas. The methodology and tools help project :
teams eliminate operational bottlenecks, reduce major ! ‘
¢ controllable costs, enhance key equipment reliability and

global industry. Do
This transaction would create one of the world’s premier
mining and metals companies with an attractive portfolio of

low-cost, profitable growth projects. It would be the world’s L manage the supply chain. This alfows assets to operate
single-biggest producer of nickel, the eighth-largest producer closer to capacity and to generate increased margins.
of copper - with plans to expand that production further, the | Project teams develop implementation plans, change

management strategies and control plans related to the

‘ performance goals which ensure that gains can be properly i
1 measured and sustained. = In 2005, more than 150 |
projects were completed, resulting in an annualized benefit

third-largest producer of zinc, and supplier of 10% of total
U.S. aluminum requirements. Current Falconbridge share-
holders would hold approximately 46% of the combined

company, which would continue to be headquartered in . of over $60 million. % Falconbridge also continues to :
Toronto — a significant benefit in terms of maintaining ' manage major capital projects through the Stage Gate |
Canada’s role as a leading repository of expertise in mining i approval process. In both the initial evaluation, and later

and metals, geology, finance and engineering. . execution stages, these projects engage required expertise
and meet progressive deliverables intended to ensure that /‘
»only projects that surpass risk-hurdles proceed. The process ‘
. insures that these projects remain on schedule, on budget

o . : , , ' and meet design criteria. f
organizations with broad international experience - from T Cod

exploration and research and development through operations, o e

Aside from the added critical mass, there are many other
compelling reasons why the proposed combination makes
eminent good sense. It brings together two strong

project management and marketing - supported by two highly
skilled workforces. The new Inco would boast some of the best mines and projects in nickel and
copper - two metals with excellent economic fundamentals. It also would have a strong balance
sheet and enhanced financial resources, providing the foundation required to put the attractive
growth plans into action and to pursue additional opportunities for maximizing shareholder value,
Thanks to the uniquely complementary fit of the respective assets - in particular the core mines
and processing operations in Sudbury, Ontario - the combined company would expect to achieve
very significant synergies and cost savings while increasing production. It is estimated that
synergies of approximately $350 million per year would be realized.
| should note, as well, that the new Inco would remain committed to the commen values of our
two companies - safety, respect for the environment, respect for our employees woridwide and

Falcondo nickel mine and ferronickel
refinery ~ Dominican Republic

respect for and support of the communities where we operate.

FUTURE GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

As the events of 2005 unfolded, management took pains to ensure that we were not distracted
from impiementing our overall strategy — which continued to focus on copper and nickel mining -
and our pursuit of attractive growth opportunities. In fact, we made significant progress in that

regard over the course of the year.

TO QUR SHAREHOLDERS 9



Mined Copper Refined Nickel

Production Production
(tonnes) (tonnes)
944,000
159,000
!
114,000 ]
462,000 )
|
2005 Patential 2005 Potential

(Left) Underground nickel mine -
Sudbury, Ontario

(Right) Lomas Bayas copper mine — Chile

In copper, we reported encouraging news from the Collahuasi joint venture in Chile, where the
results of recent exploration activities indicate that a large high-quality deposit could be added to
the resource base. Asset-optimization projects are underway at Collahuasi, aimed at increasing
copper production as well as molybdenum recovery. Other copper-related growth initiatives involve
asset-optimization and brownfield projects at existing Falconbridge operations elsewhere in Chile
and Peru as well as greenfield projects — El Morro in Chile and EI Pachdn in Argentina. Further
information on these and other growth opportunities can be found on pages 15 to 21 in this
report, All together, projects currently in the Falconbridge pipeline have the potential to grow
our mined copper output to 944,000 tonnes and our refined nickel output to 159,000 tonnes
over the next few years. The pipeline also includes modest growth potential for the zinc and
aluminum businesses.

In nickel, the Nickel Rim South project will significantly improve Sudbury resources. This project
is progressing within budget and is on schedule for completion in late 2009. We also forged ahead
with a two-phase expansion that will substantially increase output of our Raglan mine. In April, we
finalized a joint-venture agreement with Barrick Gold Corporation regarding the Kabanga nicke!
deposit in Tanzania. Under the terms of the agreement, Falconbridgg has acquired a 50% indirect
interest in the Kabanga project and will be the operator of the joint venture. We significantly
advanced another nickel development project in 2005, with the vesting of the world-class Koniambo
orebody in New Caledonia. Along with our 51% partner, Société Miniére du Sud Pacifigue S.A.
(SMSP), we fulfilled the requirements of the Bercy Accord, including completion of a positive
technical-feasibility study and placement of firm orders of at least $100 million for equipment and
services relating to the project. With expected annual production of 60,000 tonnes of nickel, this
resource base is sufficient to support 50 to 100 years of production. On the exploration front, we
have made a very promising greenfield nickel discovery in the State of Para in northern Brazil and are
continuing with an extensive explaration program in this region.

MARKETS

All four metals in the Falconbridge portfolio performed well during 2005. Prices for copper, zinc
and aluminum were all significantly higher than their year-earlier levels. Nickel prices were slightly
higher on average in 2005 despite weakening in the third and fourth quarters. This was a reflection
of softness in the stainiess-steel sector that impacted nickel demand in the third and fourth
quarters. However, producers of stainless steel adjusted production and their surplus inventories
were expected to be cleared by early 2006.

Looking ahead, copper and nickel prices are expected to remain high, given the continuing
strong demand out of China and other emerging markets along with the fact that few major new

10 FALCONBRIDGE = 2005 ANNUAL REPQRT




projects will be coming on stream. This bullish supply-
demand scenario underscores Falconbridge's enviable
position, with its strong global market positions in copper
and nickel. In addition, zin¢c and aluminum are forecast to
be strong price performers for 2006.

The challenge will be to deal effectively with issues of
rising energy costs, foreign-exchange movements and a
looming shortage of skilled employees ~ engineers,
consultants, technicians, tradespeople and geologists —
in order to fully capitalize on the strong market demand.

OUR COMMITMENT TO SAFETY

AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Ensuring safe workplaces is crucial to Falconbridge. | am
pleased to note that, in keeping with our outstanding all-
round performance this past year, we reduced the Reportable
Injury Frequency (a key metric for work-related injuries) by
50% over the four-year period from 2002 to 2005. Moreover,
we are determined to further improve our record in the vitally
important areas of safety and the environment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

! would like o take this opportunity to thank my fellow
members of the Board of Directors for their wise counsel and
support throughout a particularly demanding year. As well,

| wish to formally acknowledge the contributions of four

Brookfield Asset Managemeni-related directors who resigned from the Board in October, following

At Falconbridge, we make decisions and adopt practices
that contribute to our communities and the natural
environment, while generating positive financial results.
We are committed to a sustainable business approach that
ensures long-term shareholder value through the manage-
ment of risks derived from economic, environmental and
social issues. Our actions are guided by the principles of
the Falconbridge Sustainable Development Policy, and all
employees are responsible for its support. - As a member
of the International Council on Mining & Metals (ICMM),
Falconbridge is required to report its sustainability
performance against the ICMM Sustainable Development
Principles. Falconbridge must specifically “report in
accordance with” the Global Reporting Initiative guide-
lines, a comprehensive framework of social, environmental
and economic indicators that promotes comparability of
sustafnability performance across sectors. The reporting
also includes indicators specific to the mining and metals
sector supplement. » Simply put, we are committed fo
minimjzing the Company’s impact on and risks to our
employees, the public, our communities, our customers
and the natural environment, throughout all stages of our
business activities. Details on our policies, practices and
recent performance can be found in the Falconbridge
2005 Sustainable Development Report.

Brookfield Asset Management's sale of its common-share ownership in the Company. We owe a debt

of gratitude to Jack Cockwell, Bruce Flatt, Robert Harding and George Myhal.

| wish to thank the committed, hard-working men and women throughout this Company — from
the ranks of both Noranda and Falconbridge — who came together during a period of prolonged
uncertainty to help us implement our strategy and attain our goals. It is thanks to their collective

efforts that we were able to achieve such positive results.

In conclusion, | believe it would be fair to say that this year's achievements speak for themselves,

in terms of having made good on our commitments to generate exceptional returns and to maximize
value for investors. | am confident that combining Falconbridge with Inco will best ensure that our

shareholders, employees, customers and other stakeholders can continue to grow and prosper as part
of an even more robust and dynamic, global mining-and-metals company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

i

DEREK PANNELL, Chief Executive Officer, February 22, 2006

TO QUR SHAREHOLDERS 11



Goals Going rorward

| Continue to Maximize Operating Base
l

Expand Six Sigma coverage and enhance cost position
at each operation

Faléonbridge’s goals in 2006 are

|
j aligned with our overall four-point Further improve health and safety performance at

strategy of value enhancement all operations

for our shareholders. In addition

Extract Full Benefit from Assets

Optimize production and recoveries at existing

! to completing the Inco transaction k
‘ and seizing the opportunities for |
|
|

| operations to leverage exposure to higher metal prices
—— Develop our human resources and attract and retain top
performers by providing the work environment in which
employees can prosper and grow

synergies, we expect to deliver on
numerous projects and objectives

Further Strengthen Financial Position

Maintain strong balance sheet enabling us to pursue
growth opportunities and reduce cost of capital

Manage capital investments, taking into account political
and geographical risks as wel! as economic returns
Carefully evaluate capital investment decisions to
generate robust returns throughout the commodity cycies

|
\ under these goals. J!
5

!

Pursue Focused and Disciplined Growth
Maintain profile as preferred exploration and
development partner and continue to seek partnership
opportunities

Keep long-term growth pipeline primed by implementing
value-creating acquisitions and exploration programs
Deliver capital projects on budget and on schedule

Falcondo nickel mine employees - Dominican Republic Kidd Creek coppet/zinc mine - Yimmins, Ontario
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Metals Outlook 2006

EXCELLENT MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

COPPER
Positive macroeconomic outlook

Funds viewing metals complex “favourably” and see
market as being “stronger for longer”

Increasing use of copper in China and India to build
basic infrastructure is driving demand

Inventories still remain at historically critical levels;
LME deliveries have failed to apply any price pressure
Developing concentrate market surplus forecast to keep \
processing charges above long-term benchmark averages |

NICKEL |
Current stainless steel de-stocking phase is cyclical;
market expected to turn around and strong sector
demand to resume

Non-stainless demand forecast to remain healthy
Strong Chinese demand and constrained

domestic supply

Inventories, despite trending upwards, remain low
by historical standards

Another strong year forecast for nickel in 2006

ZINC

Insufficient supply of mined zinc concentrates to meet
demand for metal

Mine project start-up dates keep being pushed forward
Strong metal demand being driven by vigorous }
economies of China and other developing countries
Existing inventories of zinc are being consumed at
fast rate

Expect zinc industry to be operating with minimal

metal inventories by 2007 |

ALUMINUM |

Extremely high raw material and energy costs

threatening marginal suppliers; further plant closures
expected |
23 Chinese smelters to reduce production in 2006

by 10% to combat rising alumina prices

Global economic growth fueling strong demand for i
primary and value-added aluminum products :
Very positive price outlook for aluminum

POSITIVE
FUNDAMENTALS AND
FUND INVOLVEMENT
PROVIDE A FAVOURABLE
ENVIRONMENT FQR
SUSTAINABLE HIGHER
COPPER PRICES

DEMAND PAUSED,
BUT NOW RETURNING.
THE STAINLESS STEEL
DE-STOCKING PHASE
IS EXPECTED TQ END
SOON WHICH WILL
TRANSLATE INTO
RENEWED STRONG
PRIMARY NICKEL
DEMAND

ZINC'S TIME TO SHINE:
MINE CONCENTRATES
INSUFFICIENT TO
MEET GROWING METAL
DEMAND; METAL
STOCKS FORECAST

TO DECLINE TO
CRITICAL LEVELS

ROBUST ALUMINUM
DEMAND: CHINA
AND ASIA REMAIN
KEY DRIVERS OF
ALUMINUM
CONSUMPTION
GROWTH

13
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Changed Industry Dynamics

Falconbridge is very well positioned as one of the world’s largest base
metal producers and is advancing one of the best pipelines of copper and
nickel development projects.

Naw Capacity is Consiralnad

Previous low price cycle resuited in dramatic reduction of capital available to mining
sector leading to under-investment in production capacity and exploration, resulting in
current high price environment

Increased consolidation and company diversification allows for greater internal
competition for resources and ability to prioritize projects

Sulbstantial Supply Barrers in Place

L

S R S S R 2

Existing industry operating at capacity and with declining grades

increased size and scale of next generation of projects

Higher complexity of new technologies and processes

Longer project development lead times due to more extensive permitting requirements
Higher expectations from local communities and government

Procurement lead times extended; engineering services, equipment, labour shortages

Raglan nickel mine -
Nunavik Territory, Quebec Lomas Bayas copper mine - Chile Aitonorte capper smelter - Chile
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World-Class Growth Opportunities

BROWNFIELD PROJECTS
Falconbridge is presently reviewing several expansion projects. Brownfield projects benefit

from existing or available infrastructure, have a better risk profile and generally have lower
construction and training costs per unit capacity.

Collahuasi

Optimization

Sudbury
Expansion
(Nickel Rim)

Antamina
Expansion

Kidd Creek

Mine D

Raglan
Expansion

Sudbury
Expansion
(Cnaping)

mEER

Copper
Nickel
Zing

Aluminum

Koniamba

Lomas Bayas
Expansion

El Pachon

Collahuasi

Expansion

Sudbury

Lennard Shelf I
i

Expansion
(Fraser Morgan)

Frieda River

Kabanga

El Morro

GREENFIELD PROJECTS
Greenfield projects provide an opportunity to grow in new areas, but require the development

of new infrastructure. These resources are continuing to be explored and analyzed with a view

;
!:

Lady Loretta

to bringing them into future commercial production.

Antamina copper/zinc mine - Pery

WORLD-CLASS GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES
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Brownfield Projects

Collahuasi copper mine - Chile

COPPER

Collahuasi, Region |, Chile

= Molybdenum Recovery Circuit: Construction of a $36 million molybdenum recovery circuit

was completed in the fourth quarter of 2005, ahead of schedule and under budget. Falconbridge's
44% share of 2006 production of molybdenum in concentrate is expected to be approximately
1,700 tonnes. Production will increase over time as a result of the increase in molybdenum grades
at depth in the Rosario orebody.

= Debottienecking project: A debottlenecking project that could potentially increase the nominal
design capacity of the sulphide circuit is currently under review. The objective is to maximize the
asset base with minimum deployment of capital.

= Expansion: Alternatives for future expansions are being evaluated in conjunction with the
definition of the Rosario Oeste orebody.

Lomas Bayas, Region I, Chile - Fortuna de Cobre Deposit: The deposit, adjacent to Lomas Bayas,
could expand production or extend the mine life by five years, to 2020. A pre-feasibility study was
initiated during the year and development of an exploration tunnel began in March 2005.

Construction of the pilot plant was completed in August 2005. The metallurgical test program was
initiated in the last quarter of 2005. Forfuna de Cobre is an attractive growth opportunity because
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of its low stripping ratio, proximity to existing infrastructure and very favourable mineralogy and
leaching kinetics. Falconbridge has the option to purchase Fortuna de Cobre by mid-2006.

Altonorte, Region I, Chile » Molybdenum Roaster: In June, the $6 miltion conversion of an
existing roaster to treat up to 10,000 tonnes per year of molybdenum concentrates was completed,
on time and on budget. This capacity equates to an estimated 5,000 tonnes per year of saleable
molybdenum contained in molybdenum trioxide and Altonorte operates this capacity on a toll
conversion basis.

Antamina, Ancash Department, Peru - Treatment Capacity Optimization: At Antamina, the
installation of a pebble crusher circuit that woutd pravide additional grinding capacity, as well as Kidd Creek copper/zinc mine -
other means of increasing overall throughput are being reviewed. This project is currently under Timmins, Ontario

review and a decision is expected in 2006.

CCR, Montreal, Canada = Capacity Expansion: In 2005, Falconbridge invested in the CCR refinery

to increase its capacity to refine anodes that are higher in nickel. This expansion will allow the

refinery to achieve full capacity of 370,000 tonnes of refined copper per year by adding capability

to process anodes that are high in nickel content. Recently, the refinery was processing less than

300,000 tonnes per year. The higher treatment rates include the processing of increased anode

output from the Horne smelter and the processing of Inco’s Copper Cliff refinery anodes that were

being refined in Sudbury. The refining agreement with Inco was announced in June 2005 and is set

to begin in the second quarter of 2006. This processing agreement with Inco is just one example CCR copper and precious metals
of the synergies that will be possible from the combination of the two companies. refinery - Montreal, Quebec

Kidd Creek, Timmins, Canada - Mine D: Kidd Creek mining operations are transitioning to the
newly developed Mine D, which is improving operational stability and predictability, and should
lead to improved financial performance. A new target schedule and budget were finalized and
approved in mid-2005, becoming the project baseline. Production from block 2 began in the fourth
quarter of 2005 and production from block 3 is now expected to begin in 2006. The capital
expenditures associated with this project increased following the approval of a new target schedule
and budget that became the project baseline in April 2005, as well as escalation associated with
delineation drilling that will take place in 2006. At the end of 2005, overall project progress was
90% based on this new target schedule and budget.

PARTNERING FOR SUCCESS

Faiconbridge

Operations and Projects Ownership Partners M,etf’!,

Collahuasi, Chile 449 * Anglo American PLC (44%), Mitsui Corporation and others (12%)  Copper

Antamina, Peru 33.75% BHP Billiton PLC (33.75%), Teck Cominco Limited (22.5%) and  Copper/zinc
Mitsubishi Corporation (10%)

El Morro, Chile o 70%7 : 7 :Metallica Resources Inc. (30%) Copper/gold
Falcondo, Dominican Republic  85.26% Government of Dominicén Republic (10%), Ferronickel
Redstone Resources Inc. (4:1%)

Frieda River, Papua New Guinea  72% ” Hiéﬁlands f’acific Lirr"mted and other (28%) Copper
Kabanga, Tanzania  50% Barrick Gold (50%) Nickel
Koniambo, New Caledonia 7 49% Société Miniere du Sud Pacifique (51%) Ferronickel
Lady Lorettra,rAustraliér;;i 75% BUKA Minerals Limited (25%) 7 VZinc
Lennard Shelf, Australia 50% Teck Cominco (50%) Zinc/lead

Perseverance, Quebec 90% Société de Développement de la Baie James (10% or 2.5% NSR) Zinc

WORLD-CLASS GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES 17



NICKEL

Nickel Rim South, Sudbury, Canada - Underground Definition and Development Program: In 2001
Falconbridge discovered Nickel Rim South - a high-grade 13.4 million tonne resource with over
1.8% nickel, 3.3% copper and significant platinum paliadium and gold located nine kilometres
from Falconbridge's Sudbury smelter. A five-year underground definition and development program
was initiated in 2004, and progressed in 2005. Ventilation shaft sinking began in February 2005
and was at 1,092 metres at the end of 2005. Main shaft sinking began in April 2005 and was at
467 metres at the end of 2005. The mine plan was optimized in 2005 to include additional
information from the ongoing drilling program and includes an improved production potential.
Raglan nicke! mine - The capital cost of this project is $524 million, reflecting an increase of $100 million in foreign
Nunavik Territory, Quebec exchange and escalation variations. This project is expected to be completed in 2009, with
production expected to begin in 2009,

Raglan, Nunavik Territory, Canada

= Mine Optimization Phase I: The conversion of the mill from autogenous to semi-autogenous
grinding was completed in October 2005. This conversion will increase the leve!l of annual
throughput to approximately one million tonnes of ore per year and increase the mill’s ability to
process harder ore. This project was completed on schedule and on budget with total project
investment of Cdn$33 million,

= Mine Optimization Phase /i: This next phase will focus on utilizing increased mill capacity by
expanding site infrastructure and ore production to allow for the mining, milling and processing of
1.3 million tonnes of ore annually, resulting in approximately 30,500 tonnes of annual contained
nickel production. Phase I} is expected to be completed in early 2008.

Fraser Morgan, Sudbury, Canada + Exploration Success: There has been continued exploration
success at Fraser Morgan, which contains 4.9 million tonnes of measured and indicated resources
plus 2.4 million tonnes of inferred resources. A pre-feasibility study completed in July 2005 resulted
in the decision to extend exploration development and complete another phase of underground
exploration drilling in 2006 to follow up on promising results from the 2005 surface drilling program.

Onaping Depth, Sudbury, Canada - Onaping Depth contains 14.6 million tonnes of high-grade
indicated resources plus 1.2 million tonnes of inferred resources. This orebody, located below the
Craig mine, would be accessible using Craig mine infrastructure by deepening the existing shaft. In
2005, Falconbridge continued research on enabling technologies to mine safely at greater depths.

ZINC
Nickel Rim South nickel project - Lennard Shelf, Western Australia < By acquiring a 50% earn-in right, Falconbridge has aligned
Sudbury, Gntario itself with another world-class partner, Teck Cominco. The mining operations are presently under

care and maintenance and the partners are conducting a long-term exploration program. The
partners are continuing to apply a disciplined approach to bringing this operation back on line.

Perseverance, Matagami, Canada = Falconbridge owns a 90% interest in this northern Quebec
property, comprising three small, high-grade zinc/copper lenses situated six kilometres from the
existing Matagami concentrator. Development of the mine and commercial production of zinc
concentrate could be completed in two years by utilizing existing Matagami camp infrastructure.
The mine would produce 75,000 tonnes of zinc in concentrate for six or more years with a very
attractive internal rate of return. As zinc market fundamentals continue to improve, the timing
of this project will be reviewed.
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Greenfield Projects

COPPER

El Pachén, San Juan Province, Argentina 2 EI Pachdn is a highly attractive copper mine
development project situated less than five kilometres from the Chilean border and the Las
Pelambres copper mine. It features a high-grade core, unusually low strip ratio and favourable
metallurgical recoveries which will substantially reduce mining and capital costs. The orebody has
the potential to produce over 200,000 tonnes of copper in concentrate per year over a life of more
than 20 years. During 2005, a conceptual study of the El Pachén project was completed. Two bulk
samples were extracted from an existing exploration tunnel and processed, engineering studies were
completed and environmental information was compiled to add to the environmental base line. In
addition, important advances were realized on El Pachén's specific protocol within the Mining
Integration Treaty between Chile and Argentina. In 2006, work will progress in road re-opening,
field studies, engineering studies and environmental data collection.

El Morro, Region I, Chile & Favourably situated close to two copper smelters, the deposit is a
large copper porphyry with high gold co-product credits that would result in low net copper cash
costs. It has inferred resources of 466 million tonnes grading 0.61% copper and 0.50 grams of
gold per tonne. El Morro also features a high-grade resource core and a low pre-stripping ratio, as
well as further exploration potential. In 2005, Falconbridge paid $10 million to earn a 70%
interest in the E! Morro property from Metallica Resources Inc. In 2006, Falconbridge will begin
feasibility-level work, including a 30,000 metre in-fill drill program and metallurgical test work.

NICKEL

Koniambo, North Province, New Caledonia = In 1998, Falconbridge entered into a joint-venture
agreement with Société Miniére du Sud Pacifique S.A. (SMSP) and its controlling shareholder,
Société de Financement et d’Investissement de la Province Nord, for the evaluation and develop-
ment of the Koniambo project - a 60,000-tonne-per-year nickel in ferranicke! mining and
processing complex. By signing its joint-venture agreement with SMSP, Falconbridge became
SMSP’s approved industrial partner under the Bercy Accord, with titles to the Koniambo orebody
held in escrow until the conditions of the Bercy Accord were met.

Koniambo nickel project —
New Caledonia

Ef Pachdn copper project — Argentina
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In 2005, Falcanbridge, along with its 51% partner SMSP fulfilled the requirements of the Bercy
Accord, including completion of a positive technical feasibility study and placement of firm orders
of at least $100 million for equipment and services relating to the project. This will result in the
transfer of the ownership of the Koniambo property to Koniambo Nickel SAS, a company owned
49% by Falconbridge and 51% by SMSP. In addition, Falconbridge and SMSP reached an
agreement on the financing framework for the project. Under the terms of the financing agreement
the common equity ownership of Koniambo remains at 51% (SMSP) and 49% (Falconbridge);
Falconbridge has agreed to assume responsibility for financing of up to 100% of the project; cash
generated by the project will be exclusively dedicated to debt retirement prior to shareholder
distributions; and the capital cost to be financed is $2.2 billion (in 2004 dollars). This excludes
Kabanga nickel project - Tanzania working capital and interest during construction.

Next steps for Koniambo include advancing detailed engineering in 2006. Once the necessary
permits are in place and the details of the financing are finalized, Falconbridge expects the start of
the construction phase in 2007. Based on the foregoing, start-up of the operation is expected to
occur in 2009/2010.

Kabanga, Kagera Region, Tanzania - In April 2005, Falconbridge announced a joint-venture

agreement with Barrick Gold Corporation on the Kabanga nickel deposit, located in northwestern

Tanzania. Barrick's current estimated inferred resource is 26.4 million tonnes grading 2.6% nickel.

Under the terms of the agreement, Falconbridge acquired a 50% indirect joint-venture interest in

respect of the Kabanga Project for $15 million and will be the operator of the joint venture. Over the

next several vears, Falconbridge will fund and conduct a further $50-million work plan. Current

work, including exploration and infill diamond drilling, metallurgical testing and engineering study j
work will lead to the completion of a scoping study in the first quarter of 2006. |

ZINC

Lady Loretta, Queensland, Australia -+ Falconbridge owns a 75% joint-venture interest in the
Lady Loretta deposit, located close to the Mt. Isa, Queensland camp. The orebody has measured
and indicated resources of 11.6 million tonnes grading 16.1% zinc and 5.7% lead. Work under-
taken to date indicates possible estimated production of more than 125,000 tonnes of zinc in

concentrate and 40,000 tonnes of lead in concentrate over more than ten years.
El Morro copper profect — Chile
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Exploration

Exploration is an essential component of the Company’s quest for growth and in

sustaining and optimizing production at existing operations. The mandate of

Falconbridge's “New Business Group”, which consists of the exploration team, the

business development team and the projects and engineering team, is to find or
acquire and develop economically attractive nickel and copper deposits. The Group targets deposits
with a minimum 15-year mine life that will have the benefit of more than one high period in the
economic cycle(s).

2005 HIGHLIGHTS:

In October 2005, Falconbridge announced a preliminary resource estimate for the Rosario Oeste
zone at Collahuasi. The zone, located only 300 metres from the Rosario open pit, is estimated to
contain an inferred resource of 248 million tonnes grading 1.54% copper at a 0.4% cut-off grade.
The resource remains open to the north, south and at depth, and these early stage results suggest
that Rosario Qeste has the potential to expand the existing reserve base and extend the life of the
current operation.

The Frieda River project in Papua New Guinea contains a primary porphyry copper inferred mineral
resource plus higher grade copper/gold mineralization in the Nena deposit. Recent drilling at the
Nena deposit firmed up a measured and indicated mineral resource of 42.7 million tonnes of 3.09%
copper and 0.59 grams of gold. Exploration of other high-grade targets will be pursued in 2006.

A new nicke! laterite deposit has been discovered in Para State, Brazil. A mineral resource estimate
should be available in the first half of 2006. The thickness of mineralization intersected to-date ranges
from 2 to 93 metres and averages 15.3 metres with a nickel content ranging from 1.0 to 3.2%.

The 2005 Raglan, Quebec program returned the best exploration results since the mine
commenced production, with 2.5 million tonnes of new resources (mostly inferred resources)
discovered, exceeding 2005 production of 934,000 tonnes.

in Norway, a joint-venture exploration program with Blackstone Ventures Inc. for nickel continues to
produce enticing results in four separate areas (as an example, 7.2 metres of 1.05% nickel, 0.46%
copper at Vesle), The joint venture has been expanded to include five new prospective areas in
south Norway. Geological/gecphysical surveys and diamond drilling will continue in 2006.

New zinc mineralization has been discovered at the Pallas Green project, Ireland, where the best
intersection to date is 9.2% zinc over 10.5 metres. Additional diamond drilling will be required to
determine the significance of this mineralization.

The Sudbury exploration team received the Bill Dennis Prospector of the Year Award from the
Prospectors & Developers Association of Canada for the discovery of the Nickel Rim South deposit
at Sudbuyy, Ontario.

The Quebec-based Falconbridge and Alexis Minerals Corporation joint-venture exploration team
received the Prospector of the Year Award from the Quebec Mineral Exploration Association for the
discovery of the West Ansil copper mineral deposit at Rouyn-Noranda, Quebec in 2005.

El Morro copper project - Chile

Ragilan nickel mine — Nunavik
Territory, Quebec

(Left) Araguaia nickel project -
Brazil. (Right) Antamina
copper/zinc mine - Peru

WORLD-CLASS GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES
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VID&A at a Glance

THIS “MD&A AT A GLANCE"” HIGHLIGHTS SOME OF THE MORE SIGNIFICANT AND INFORMATIVE N
ITEMS THAT APPEAR IN THE FULL MD&A. FOR A COMPLETE SUMMARY OF FALCONBRIDGE'S \
PERFORMANCE, STRATEGIES, BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT, RISKS AND OTHER MATERIAL -
INFORMATICON, PLEASE REFER TO THE FULL MD&A BEGINNING ON PAGE 24.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS
» Revenue increased to $8.1 billion in 2005, compared to - Noranda completed an issuer bid to exchange Noranda

$6.8 billion in 2004, common shares for new junior preferred shares on May 5,
= Income generated by operating assets increased to 2005, repurchasing 63,377,140 common shares and issuing

$1.8 billion in 2005, compared to $1.4 billion in 2004, 50,000,000 new junior preference shares as consideration.
= Net income increased to $872 million in 2005, compared - Noranda and Falconbridge completed a merger on June 30,

to $521 million in 2004. 2005 and chose to continue under the name Falconbridge
- Net income per basic common share increased to $2.52, Limited.

compared to $1.71 in 2004. 2 Inco Limited announced an offer to acquire ali outstanding
- Realized higher prices for all metals. Copper, nickel, zinc and common shares of Falconbridge on October 11, 2005.

aluminum increased 32%, 7%, 35% and 8%, respectively. Falconbridge’s Board of Directors unanimously endorsed the
- Net-debt-to-total-capitalization ratio decreased to 37% at acquisition offer and recommended shareholders tender

year end 2005, compared to 39% at year end 2004. their shares.

MARKET OUTLOOK RECENT INDUSTRY ACCOUNTING CHANGES
-+ Global economic growth cutiook remains positive with global APPLICABLE TO FALCONBRIDGE

GDP expected to grow by over 4% in 2006. - Effective January 1, 2005, Falconbridge adopted the
- Aresilient U.S. economy, a sustained recovery in Japan and following new accounting standards:

a strong Chinese economy are all reasons to be positive on (1) CICA Handbook 3860 for presentation and measurement

global economic prospects and the expected increase in of convertible debentures;

base metals demand. (2) CICA Handbook 3860 for presentation and measurement
- For 2006, strong fundamentals offer underlying support for of Preferred Shares Series H; and,

above-average base metals price forecasts. (3) Accounting Guidelines (AcG-15) for consolidation of

variable interest entities.

Copper Income Generated Nickel Income Generated Zinc Income Generated Aluminum Income Generated

by Operating Assets by Operating Assets by Operating Assets by Operating Assets

($ millions) ($ millions) ($ millions) ($ millions)

1,086

637 . 106

ﬂ

291

03 04 05 03 04 05
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idiiagCllITlIl o UlIoLUSSIVIT & Mildlysls

The following analysis and discussion of the Company’s activities take into account management's knowledge of all material facts and
events up to and including February 22, 2006. Unless otherwise noted, all amounts in this discussion are expressed in U.S. dollars. The
2004 financial results, as presented in this discussion, represent the consolidated results of “Noranda Inc.”, which was renamed
“Falconbridge Limited" after the amalgamation of Noranda and the former Falconbridge on June 30, 2005. The 2005 financial results,
and the balance of this discussion, represent the results and activities of Falconbridge Limited, the amalgamated company.

Additional information on Falconbridge, including Falconbridge’s Annua!l Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Falconbridge Limited is a global integrated copper and nickel producer with investments in
integrated zinc and aluminum assets. The Company employs approximately 14,500 people at its
operations and offices in 18 countries and is listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (FAL.LV) and
the New York Stock Exchange (FAL).

Falconbridge's goal is to deliver superior returns to shareholders by owning, developing and
efficiently managing fully-integrated copper and nickel operations, and opportunistically investing
in zinc, aluminum and other mining and metals processing activities. Falconbridge is focused on
aggressively managing assets to maximize production, while minimizing invested capita!.

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS

Merger of Noranda Inc. and Falconbridge Limited

In March 2005, as neither improved fundamentals for base metals nor improvements in Noranda
Inc.’s operations were being reflected in the Company’s share price, Noranda announced an all-
encompassing plan to combine Noranda and the former Falconbridge to create one of North
America's largest base-metals companies. This merger resolved the dual public ownership structure
of Noranda and Falconbridge (Noranda held 59% of Falconbridge), and brought Noranda's
strategic alternatives review process to a close.

Prior to completing the merger, Noranda completed an issuer bid to exchange Noranda common
shares for the new Noranda junior preferred shares on May 5, 2005. A total of 63,377,140
Noranda common shares were repurchased as a result of this offer and a total of 50,000,000 new
Noranda junior preferred shares were issued as consideration.

On May 6, 2005, Noranda announced the results of its merger offer to former Falconbridge
Limited minority common shareholders whereby it offered to exchange 1.77 Noranda common
shares for each outstanding former Falconbridge common share that it did not own. Pursuant to
the offer, 58,476,589 former Falconbridge common shares were tendered, representing 78% of
the shares held by the minority shareholders, increasing Noranda's ownership in former
Falconbridge to 164,235,689, or 91% of the outstanding former Falconbridge common shares.

Noranda and former Falconbridge shareholders approved the amalgamation of the two companies
on June 30, 2005. The amalgamated company chose to continue operating under the name
Falconbridge Limited and effective July 6, 2005, began trading under a new stock symbaol (TSX:
FAL.LV and NYSE: FAL). The new Falconbridge, with a market capitalization of $10 billion, became
a more widely held copper/nickel-focused mining and metals company with simplified governance,
improved risk management, increased liquidity and greater financial strength and capacity.

Falconbridge Endorses Inco Offer

On October 11, 2005, Inco Limited announced an offer to acquire all outstanding common shares
of Falconbridge. The offer was comprised of part cash and part Inco common shares, which when
pro-rated subject to the maximum amounts offered would provide Cdn$7.50 and 0.524 Inco
shares for each Faiconbridge common share. Both Boards of Directors unanimously endorsed the
acquisition offer and the Falconbridge Board recommended the Company's shareholders tender
their shares to the offer, which remains open for acceptance to June 30, 2006.
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The combined organization, which would be known as Inco Limited, would be one of the
world's premier mining and metals companies. [t would be the world's largest producer of nickel
and eighth-largest producer of copper, and would also operate integrated zinc and aluminum
businesses. The new company would have one of the mining industry's most attractive portfolios
of low-cost, profitable growth projects. The new Inco would benefit from estimated annual
synergies of approximately $350 million starting in fate 2007.

Inco has obtained regulatory clearances from the Canadian Competition Bureau. It continues to
proceed to meet all information and other requests from antitrust/competition authorities reviewing
the pending acquisition and to work with the U.S. Department of Justice and competition
authorities in Europe to obtain the remaining required regulatory clearances for the transaction.

Statements regarding the combination of Falconbridge and Inco are subject to various risks and
assumptions. See “Forward-looking Information” on page 63.

KEY FACTORS AFFECTING OUR BUSINESS-

Falconbridge's business is international in scope and, in essence, is the production and marketing
of base metal commodities and the by-products of those production processes and the treatment of
custom feed materials. As a resuft, profitability and cash flows from operations are determined
primarily by the price of the metals sold and the Company’s ability to produce at a low cost.

Prices and Markets

Historically, the Company has experienced and expects to continue to be subject to volatile
commodity prices, which are influenced primarily by the world supply-demand balance for those
commodity products and related processing services, and other related factors such as speculative
activities by market participants, production activities by competitors, political and economic
conditions, as well as production costs in major producing regions. The realized price for metals is
also influenced by regional supply-demand factors, the availability and price of secondary or metal
containing scrap materials, and other substitute commodity products. Falconbridge generally
realizes prevailing market prices and does not hedge the price it realizes on the sale of its own
production. A detailed analysis of relevant metal markets is discussed in “Metal Markets" on
page bl.

Production Costs

The other primary determinant of profitability and cash flow from operations is the Company's
ability to produce at a low cost. Production costs are largely influenced by ore grades, mine
planning, processing technology, energy and supply costs and the impact of exchange rate
fluctuations on costs of operations.

Business Risks

The primary risks facing Falconbridge are:

Fluctuating metal prices - Energy supply and prices
Mining and processing risks - Foreign operations
Environmental risks -+ Market access

Labour relations - Production technology
Uncertainty of reserve and production estimates = Legal proceedings

Exchange rate fluctuations > Raw material procurement risks
Interest rate and counter-party risks

The nature, implications and tools used to manage these risks are discussed in “Risk Factors”
starting on page 58.

R 2R Y T P N A A

Capital

Falconbridge’s business is capital intensive with significant costs involved in exploration activities,
and the development and maintenance of mining and metallurgical facilities. As such, securing
low-cost capital is instrumental in profitability. Historically, Falconbridge has sourced capital from
cammon and preferred equity markets, public debt markets and bank debt. A more detailed
description of the Company's use of interest rate and foreign currency management instruments is
provided in “Financial Instruments and Other Instruments” on page 54.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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The Management Discussion and Analysis contains a number of measures that are not defined by
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The measures, as calculated by the Company,
may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers.

Income generated from operating assets is defined as follows: net income before interest expense,
net; corporate and general administration; research, development and exploration; minority interest
in earnings of subsidiaries; gain, net of restructuring costs and other; and tax expense. Since this
measure captures the Company’s key revenues and operating expenses of assets currently in
operation, income generated from operating assets is a key performance measurement that
management uses to evaluate the performance of both individual assets and business units.

Net-debt-to-capitalization ratio is calculated as follows:

Dec. 31, Dec, 31,
($ millions) 2005 2004
Long-term debt $ 3,474 $ 2,858
Debt due within one year 353 570
Cash and cash equivaients (886) (884)
Net debt (1) 2,941 2,544
Interests of other shareholders 54 1,197
Shareholders’ equity 5,031 2,839
Stockholders’ interests (equity) (2) 5,085 4,036
Total capitalization (3)=(1)+(2) 8,026 6,580
Net-debt-to-total-capitalization ratio (1(3) 36.7% 38.7%

Management believes the presentation of this measure is retevant and useful for investors
when assessing the Company's liquidity and its ability for growth and investment. This measure
should not be considered an alternative to liquidity as determined under generally accepted
accounting principles.

Integrated cash cost or operating cash costs include all cash costs of operations and selling costs,
net of processing credits and by-product credits, and are calculated as foliows. Continuing costs
incurred during shutdowns or strikes are excluded.

Copper (Integrated) Nickel (Mined) Zinc (Mined) Aluminum' (Integrated)

($ millions, except as noted) 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Mining, processing,

and refining costs,

as reported $ 993 $ 803 $ 810 $ 604 $ 168 $ 158 $ 300 $ 282
Non-mining costs — — — — (47) (73) — —
By-product and processing

credits (899) (613) (238) (206} (58) (68) (76) (76)
Processing fee on sale of

concentrates 178 125 — — 121 127 — —
Purchases of raw

materials — — — — —_ — 113 103
Other operating and

non-cash costs 8 36 40 117 18 72 9 12
Cash costs - net 280 351 612 515 202 216 346 321
Volumes - 000s Ibs.? 900,504 921,900 175,500 176,030 494,677 684,530 546,241 548,900
Cash cost per pound - $ 0.31 0.38 3.49 2.93 0.41 0.32 0.63 0.58

1. Represents Primary operations only: Aluminum segment cost of operations reported for 2005 totals $583 miltion (2004 - $420 million), which includes foil processing and other costs of
$283 million (2004 - $138 million).
2. Volumes as shown are based on production, except for Aluminum business, which represent shipments of primary aluminum,
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Integrated cash costs are furnished to provide additional information about the cash generating
capabilities of the Company’s business units and operations. Since this measure captures the key
costs of operations and the impact of our processing credits and the prices of our by-products, it is
a key performance measurement that management uses to evaluate our costs and operations.
Integrated cash costs is not intended to be considered as an alternative to determining “mining,
processing and refining costs” as determined under GAAP.

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION

The analysis contained herein is based upon the financial position, results of operations and cash
flows defined under Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Unless otherwise noted,

all amounts in this report are expressed in U.S. dollars.

($ millions, except per share data) 2005 2004 2003
Resulits of operations
Revenues $ 8,148 $6,764 $ 4,456
Income generated by operating assets 1,820 1,391 409
Net income from continuing operations 880 594 33
Net income 872 521 2
Net income (loss) per common share - basic

Continuing operations $ 254 $ 1.96 $ 0.07

Discontinued operations $ (0.02) $ (0.25) $ (0.12)

Net income (loss) $ 2.52 $ 1.71 $ (0.05)
Net income (loss) per common share — diluted

Continuing operations $ 2.52 $ 194 $ 0.07

Discontinued operations $ (0.02) $ (0.24) $ (0.12)

Net income {l0ss) $ 2.50 $ 1.70 $ (0.05)
Cash flow
Cash flow from operating activities $1,635 $1,184 $ 408
investment in growth projects 409 432 307
Sustaining capital expenditures 328 234 182
Dividends per common share Cdn$0.48 Cdn$0.48 Cdn$0.64
Financial position
Cash and short-term investments $ 886 $ 884 $ 630
Operating capital assets 6,803 4,870 4,765
Development projects 1,707 1,166 973
Total assets 12,418 9,628 8,351
Long-term debt 3,474 2,858 2,975
Shareholders’ equity 5,031 2,839 2,401
Net-debt-to-capitalization ratio 37% 3%% 47%

Financial Impact of Merger of Noranda and Falconbridge

Prior to the merger of Noranda and Falconbridge, Noranda had consolidated the results of
operations and the financial position of former Falconbridge in its financial statements reflecting
its ownership of 58.5% of the common shares. On May 5, 2005, Noranda increased its ownership
in Falconbridge to 90.8%, and to 100% on June 30, 2005 through the issuance of approximately
$2.5 billion in common shares. Upon completion of the merger, the combined entity was renamed

Falconbridge Limited.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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Falconbridge exceeds the book value of those assets by approximately $1.4 billion, which has been
allocated to the assets and liabilities of the acquired assets at their respective preliminary fair
vatues. The preliminary aliocation of these values is as follows:

($ millions)

Preliminary fair value increment of assets acquired by the Company
Accounts receivable $ 9
Metals and other inventories 42
Operating capital assets 1,966
Development projects 255
Investments and other assets (41)

Preliminary fair value increment of liabilities assumed by the Company

Long-term debt 8
Future income taxes (708)
Asset retirement obligation, pension and other provisions (114)
Net assets acquired $1417
Book value of minority interest and other 1,117
Acquisition value $ 2,534

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Falconbridge’s consolidated assets totaled $12.4 billion as at December 31, 2005 on a book-
value basis compared with $9.6 billion at the end of 2004. The increase is primarily due to the
acquisition of the common shares of the former Falconbridge Limited that the company did not
already own, as discussed in Corporate Developments. Total revenues increased to $8.1 billion
during 2005, an increase of $1.3 billion over the $6.8 billion in revenue generated in 2004, due
to stronger metals prices and higher copper and nickel sales volumes. Falconbridge generated net
income of $872 million, or $2.50 per share on a diluted basis, an increase of $351 million from
the net income of $521 million, or $1.70 per share on a diluted basis in 2004. The improved
results were mostly attributable to higher base metals prices, partially offset by the impact of a
weaker U.S. dollar on operating costs at all Canadian and South American operations and
increasing energy and supply costs throughout the operations.

Net income for 2005 includes a loss of $8 million, or $0.02 per basic share and $0.02 per
diluted share from discontinued operations. This compares to a loss of $73 million, or $0.25 per
basic share and $0.24 per diluted share from discontinued operations in 2004. Discontinued
operations reflect the operating results of the Company’s custom wheel manufacturing operations
prior to its disposal in June 2005 and the net gain recorded from its disposal.

At December 31, 2005, Falconbridge held cash and cash equivalents of $886 million. During
2005, Falconbridge’s consolidated net-debt-to-capitalization declined to 37% as cash generated
from operations was utilized in part to reduce debt instruments issued to effect the reorganization
of the Company. Cash resources, combined with undrawn credit facilities of over $1.6 billion,
provide the Company with sufficient liquidity to pursue its development projects, new investment
and development opportunities currently contemplated and repay near-term debt maturities.
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OPERATING ASSETS

Of the $12.4 billion of assets, the book value of capital assets currently contributing to earnings
totaled $6.8 billion, while projects under development which are not currently contributing to
earnings totaled $1.7 bilfion. Combined, these assets represent 63% of the total asset base of the
Company. Included in the $6.8 billion of operating assets is the $2 biilion preliminary fair market
value increment on the cperating assets for the purchase accounting of acquisition of the former
Falconbridge, as well as $77 million being transferred from projects under development to
operating capital assets for the completion of the new Montcalm nickel/copper mine near Timmins,
Ontario. The operating assets are distributed in the Company’s business segments as follows:

($ miliions) 2005 2004
Operating capital assets
Copper $ 3,807 $ 2,890
Nickel 2,114 1,078
Zinc 139 158
Aluminum 710 702
Other 33 42
Total $ 6,803 $ 4,870

INTEGRATED OPERATIONS

As an integrated producer of metals, Falconbridge's operations include mines and metallurgical
facilities which provide the Company with maximum flexibility in both minimizing costs and
maximizing operating performance by processing its own minerals. This integration also reduces
the Company's exposure to treatment-charge fluctuations and shipping-rate volatility.

When milling, smelting or refining capacity exceeds the Company’s own mine production,
Falconbridge acquires third-party concentrates and secondary feeds to utilize this capacity and
realize incremental treatment revenues. These treatment revenues provide incremental income to
the Company and absorb fixed costs at metallurgical sites, with custom milling, smelting and
refining operations being conducted throughout the Company as capacity allows. Operations
conducting custom feed processing of copper and nickel feeds are located in North and South
America, and Norway. This integration allows Falconbridge to maintain what it believes to be some
of the lowest cash cost operations in the industry. The flexibility of the processing facilities also
enables the Company to treat complex ores, concentrates and secondary feeds. The Company also
captures the sulphur content of the concentrates that it treats at its metallurgical sites and
produces sulphuric acid as a marketable by-product. This by-product can provide incremental
revenues that help reduce cash operating costs.

The price paid to suppliers of custom feeds varies with the prevailing price of the metals being
treated and as such, Falconbridge's exposure to increasing metals prices is primarily based upon
its own mine production. Falconbridge's continued focus on the identification and development of
long-life, high-quality copper and nicke! mining assets will continue to increase its leverage to
copper and nickel while current metallurgical site infrastructure will minimize the investment
required to bring new deposits into commercial production.
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($ millions, except per share information)

Years ended December 31 2005 2004
Revenue $ 8,148 $ 6,764
Operating expenses
Mining, processing and refining costs 2,538 1,976
Purchased raw materials 3,235 2,904
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 555 493
Total operating expenses 6,328 5,373
Income generated by operating assets 1,820 1,391
Corporate costs! 291 233
Minerity interest 155 297
Gain, net of restructuring costs and other (17) (84)
Taxes 511 351
Net income from continuing operations 880 594
Loss on discontinued operations, net of tax 8 73
Net income 872 521
Deduct
Preferred share dividends 17 13
[ncome available to common shareholders ~ basic 855 508
Impact of convertible debentures 9 7
Income available to common shareholders - diluted 864 515
Basic weighted average number of shares — 000s 339,756 296,246
Diluted weighted average number of shares ~ 000s 346,174 303,458
Net income per common share - basic
Continuing operations $ 254 $ 19
Discontinued operations (0.02) (0.25)
Net income $ 252 $ 1.71
Net income per common share - diluted
Continuing operations $ 252 ¢ 194
Discontinued operations (0.02) (0.24)
Net income $ 250 $ 170

1. Corporate Costs include net interest, corporate and general administration, research and

development and exploration costs.

Revenues

For 2005, total revenues increased to $8.1 billion from $6.8 billion for the year prior primarily
due to the significant increase in realized metals prices. Copper reached a new historical high and
zinc and aluminum also finished the year at multi-year highs. Average historical realized prices for

copper, nickel, zinc and aluminum are as foliows:

(% per pound) 2005 2004 2003
Copper 1.71 1.30 0.82
Nickel 6.85 6.40 4.40
Zinc 0.70 0.52 0.43
Aluminum 0.91 0.84 0.68

Prices for by-product metals such as lead, molybdenum and precious metals, which are found
and processed in conjunction with core metals, have also experienced similar price increases

during these periods.

Sales volumes of refined copper, nickel and fabricated aluminum products were all higher in
2005 than 2004 levels. Due to the closure of the Bell Allard mine in October 2004, mined zinc
sales valumes were lower in 2005. Bauxite and alumina sales to third parties increased as the
Company recorded its first full year of joint ownership of the St. Ann and Gramercy operations
since their acquisition in October 2004. The Company also recorded significantly higher
molybdenum concentrate sales from the Antamina mine and produced its first molybdenum

concentrate from the Collahuasi mine in the fourth quarter of 2005.
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Operating Expenses
Operating expenses totaled $6.3 billion in 2005, 18% higher than $5.4 billion in the same period
fast year. Mining, processing and refining costs increased to $2.5 billion, a 28% increase from
2004 levels of $2.0 billion, largely due to the impact of a weaker U.S. dollar on operating costs at
all Canadian and South American operations and increasing energy costs throughout the
operations. Mining, processing and refining costs included $191 million of costs associated with
the new operations at the new Montcalm mine and the acquired operations at St. Ann and
Gramercy. The average value of the Canadian dollar increased 8% to US$0.83 versus US$0.77
during 2004. Upon completion of the acquisition of former Falconbridge minority shares, the
carried value of inventory on hand was increased by $42 million to reflect its preliminary fair
value, which is charged to income as the related inventory is sold. As a result, the increased cost
reduces 2005 income by $42 million, lowering income in 2005 as a result of the acquisition.

The value of raw material purchases was $3,235 million, 11% higher than $2,904 million in
2004, due to higher metal prices and increased custom feed processing at the Nikkelverk nickel
refinery and at all copper smelting and refining operations. Higher purchased raw material values
are recovered at the time of sale of the metals contained in the materials treated.

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense increased to $555 million from $493 million
a year ago, with $21 million of the increase being attributable to the amortization of the
preliminary fair value increment related to the purchase of the Falconbridge minority shareholders’
interest and the resulting increase in the book value of the mining and processing assets acquired.
Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense also increased due to the addition of
amortization expenses associated with the new operations at Montcalm and the acquired assets at
St. Ann and Gramercy.

Income from Operating Assets and Net Income

Income generated by operating assets for 2005 was $1,820 million, 31% higher than $1,391
million in 2004, Income from operating assets increased 61% to $1,086 million in the copper
business, decreased 6% to $597 million in the nickel business, increased to $60 million in the
zinc business and increased 19% to $106 million in the aluminum business.

Interest expense increased to $152 million in 2005, an increase of 27% over $120 million in
2004, due mostly to the inclusion of dividends that were paid on the new junior preference shares
that were issued in 2005, offset partially by lower average debt levels and interest rates below the
levels of 2004. Interest expense included a one-time early redemption premium of $5 million
paid to the holders at the time of the partial redemption of the junior preferred shares in August,
2005. Corporate and general administration costs as well as research and development costs
increased from 2004 primarily due to strengthening of the Canadian dollar.

Minority interest in earnings of subsidiaries decreased to $155 million from $297 million,
largely as a result of the elimination of the former Falconbridge minority share ownership since
the completion of the merger on June 30, 2005.

In 2005, the Company also recorded a $17-million gain, net of restructuring costs and other,
compared to $84 million in 2004, Included in the $84-million gain in 2004 was the $80-million
gain on the settlement of an alumina supply contract upon acquisition of Gramercy alumina joint
venture, Tax expenses recorded increased to $511 million from $351 million during 2005, due
primarily to the increase in net income from continuing operations before taxes and minority
interest to $1,546 million from $1,242 million.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $872 million or $2.50 per common
share on a diluted basis, compared with a net income of $521 million or $1.70 per common
share on a diluted basis for 2004. The significant improvement in 2005 results is due to higher
average realized prices for all four primary metals and strong operational performance from each
business unit supported by improved by-product credits. Offsetting the impact of price increases
and cost containment initiatives was the impact of rising energy costs and supply costs, combined
with the further weakening of the U.S. dollar relative to both the Canadian dollar and Chilean peso,
thereby increasing operating costs in those jurisdictions.
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Production of refined copper and nickel increased substantially in 2005, as increased quantities of
concentrates were processed, versus 2004 levels. Copper production benefited from increased anode
production at the Altonorte smelter and the ramp-up of cathode production at the CCR refinery.
Nickel production benefited from increased custom feed processing. Production of refined zinc was
lower than 2004 levels mostly due to a month-long strike at the Kidd Creek metallurgical complex
in October. Mined copper production was higher in 2005, at the Antamina, Kidd Creek, Lomas
Bayas and Montcalm mines, but was offset by lower production at the Collahuasi mine and
reduced production from the Louvicourt mine which closed in July 2005. Mined nickel production
was stable in 2005 as the new Montcalm mine contributed its first full year of production
offsetting lower production at Raglan and Sudbury mines, resulting from lower grades. Mined zinc
production was lower due to the closure of the Bell Aliard mine, which closed in October 2004.
Primary aluminum production was slightly lower in 2005 than in 2004, due mostly to the impact
of the fall hurricanes, while fabricated aluminum products sales were higher versus the year prior.
Further information on production and sales volumes can be found on page 103/104 of this report.

COPPER BUSINESS UNIT

The Copper Business is a fully-integrated producer of copper metal and concentrate, molybdenum,
precious metals and sulphuric acid. It is comprised mostly of long-life, low-cost mines located
primarily in South America. They include Falconbridge’s interest in the Antamina copper and zinc
mine in Peru, the Collahuasi and Lomas Bayas mines in Chile and the Kidd Creek mine in Ontaric,
Canada. In addition to these mines, the operations include the Altonorte copper smelter in Chile,
as well as refining, smelting and recycling facilities in Canada and the United States. There are
several potential brownfield and greenfield expansion opportunities which can further increase
earnings from this business (see “Capital Expenditures, Capacity Enhancements and Projects
Under Development” on page 44).

2005 2004
Revenues ($ millions) 4,421 3,592
Mining, processing and refining costs ($ millions) 993 803
Purchased raw materials ($ millions) 2,082 1,882
Income generated by operating assets ($ millions) 1,086 673
Realized copper price ($ per pound) $ 171 $ 1.30
Operating cash cost ($ per pound of copper) $ 0.31 $ 0.38
Sales and throughput (Q00s tonnes)!
Copper in concentrates 267 275
Copper metal 627 612
Copper concentrate processed 1,899 1,810
Zinc in concentrates 83 68
Zinc metal 116 120
Sulphuric acid 811 749

1. 100% basis except for Collahuasi (44%) and Antamina (33.75%).

Revenues: For the year, consolidated revenues for the Copper Business were $4,421 million, an
increase of 23%, over the $3,592 million for the same period of 2004. Higher realized copper,
zinc and molybdenum prices accounted for the increase in revenues. During 2005, the realized
copper price averaged $1.71/lb., compared to $1.30/Ib. in 2004, Sales volumes of refined copper
and copper anodes increased 2% in 2005, as a result of increased production at CCR, Altonorte,
Kidd Creek and Lomas Bayas. By-product revenues from molybdenum also increased from

$19 million in 2004, to $138 million in 2005.

Costs: Total operating expenses were $3,335 million in 2005, versus $2,919 million in 2004.
Mining, processing and refining costs totaled $993 mitlion in 2005, versus $803 million in 2004,
The increase was due to higher energy costs, supply costs, contractor costs, and the impact of the
weaker U.S. dollar. Value of purchased raw materials increased to $2,082 mitlion from $1,882
million, a 11% increase year over year due to higher metal prices and increased throughput at CCR
and Altonorte. In 2005, the operating cash cost of producing a pound of copper was $0.31/1b.
versus $0.38/1b. in 2004,
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Income generated by operating assets: Copper Business income

generated by operating assets was $1,086 million in 2005, Copper
compared to $673 million in the same period for 2004. The Price (US$/1b.) Inventories (000s tonnes)
$413 million increase was mainly attributable to higher copper,
zinc and molybdenum prices which more than offset lower mine 2.00 f1.200
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was more than offset by lower production from Collahuasi. At | R e \~AV/V‘
Antamina, higher recoveries more than offset a 3% reduction in ‘
ore mitled. At Kidd Creek, higher mill throughput more than
offset lower copper grades as the new Mine D expansion
provided more stable feed for the mill. At Collahuasi, lower production was a result of lower head
grades, material handling issues and temporary problems with one of the mill motors. Copper
anode production from copper smelters increased from 534,000 tonnes in 2004 to 563,000
tonnes in 2005 due to increased production at Altonorte. During the fourth quarter, annual
production at the Horne smelter was increased from the recent past operating rate of 140,000
tonnes per year to 170,000 tonnes per year.

Copper cathode production at CCR and Kidd Creek increased to 415,000 tonnes from 404,000
tonnes as increased production at CCR more than offset lower production at Kidd Creek, which was
affected by a month-long strike in October. CCR refined cathode output benefited from the
agreement reached with Inco Limited earlier in the ysar whereby CCR began the treatment of Inco's
Sudbury operations copper anode output. CCR is investing in expanding its capacity to treat anodes
that are higher in nickel. This is expected to allow CCR to achieve its full capacity of 370,000
tonnes, compared to an average output of less than 300,000 tonnes in recent years, Total copper
cathode production in 2005 was 505,000 tonnes, compared to 492,000 tonnes in the previous
year as higher production from CCR, Collahuasi and Lomas Bayas more than offset lower production
from Kidd Creek.

During the year, the Company also completed the modification of a former copper roaster at
the Altonorte smelter and began the tolling of molybdenum concentrates. Construction of the
$6 million project was completed on time and on budget. Tolling operations started at the end of
June 2005 and reached the design capacity run-rate of 10,000 tonnes per year shortly thereafter.

By-product mined zinc in concentrate totaled 182,000 tonnes in 2005 versus 152,000 tonnes
in 2004. Zinc concentrate volumes increased due to higher mill throughput and higher zinc grades
at Kidd Creek. By-product refined zinc volumes in 2005 were 114,000 tonnes versus 122,000
tonnes in 2004, due to the labour disruption at Kidd Creek metallurgical facilities. Mined molyb-
denum production at Antamina was 2,300 tonnes, compared to 1,200 tonnes in 2004, mainly due
to the increase in recoveries.

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

NICKEL BUSINESS UNIT

The Nickel Business is comprised of Integrated Nickel Operations (INO), which includes nickel
mines and processing facilities in Sudbury, Timmins and northern Quebec, Canada, and a refinery
in Kristiansand, Norway; and a ferronicke! operation at Falcondo in the Dominican Republic. Mine
concentrate is acquired from both the Company’s mining operations and through purchases of
custom feeds. The business produces and sells ferronickel and refines and markets nickel, copper,
cobalt and significant quantities of precious and platinum-group metals, Nicke!l exploration and
new mine development is one of the core-growth focuses for the Company.
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Nickel
Price (US$/1b.)

Revenues ($ millions) 2,146 1,824
Mining, processing and refining costs ($ millions) 810 604
Purchased raw materials ($ miilions) 574 447
Income generated by operating assets ($ millions) 597 637
Realized nickel price ($ per pound) $6.85 $6.40
Realized ferronickel price ($ per pound) $6.74 $6.37
Operating cash cost ($ per pound of nickel/ferronickel) $3.49 $2.93
Operating cash cost ($ per pound of nickel) $2.97 $ 2.57
Operating cash cost ($ per pound of ferronickel) $ 4.40 $3.50
Sales (000s tonnes)

Nickel 85 71

Ferronickel 26 29

Cobalt 4 4

Revenues: For 2005, consolidated revenues for the nickel business were $2,146 million, an
increase of 18%, over the $1,824 million recorded in 2004. At the INO, sales volumes of nickel
and copper increased by 20% and 16%, respectively in 2005, as a result of increased production
from the Montcalm mine, which achieved commercial production at the end of 2004 and due to
increased volumes of custom feeds. Cobalt sales increased 5% from 2004 levels due to increases
in production related to custom feeds. At Falcondo, sales volumes decreased 9% to 26,300 tonnes
from 28,900 tonnes in 2004, reflecting destocking in the stainless steel market and the lower
production level in 2005. Realized nickel prices of $6.85/Ib. increased by 7%, compared with
$6.40/1b. in 2004. The realized ferronickel price increased 6% in 2005, compared to 2004,
Realized cobalt prices decreased by 33% versus 2004,

Costs: Total nickel operating expenses were $1,549 million in 2005 versus $1,187 million in
2004. Mining, processing and refining costs totaled $810 miflion in 2005, versus $604 million in
2004, an increase of $206 million reflecting a full year of operations at Sudbury (the 2004 results
were impacted by a three-week labour strike), new production costs related to the Montcalm mine,
increased oil purchase costs at Falcondo and the impact of the change in the value of the Canadian
dollar on operating costs at the Canadian operations. The value of purchased raw materials
increased from $447 million to $574 million due to higher metal prices and increased volumes,

The weighted average operating cash cost per pound of mined nickel for all of Falconbridge was
$3.49 in 2005, compared with $2.93 in 2004. At INO, in 2005, the operating cash cost of
producing a pound of nickel from INO mines was $2.97 prior to the inclusion of custom feed
processing credits. This cost was $0.40/1b., or 16% higher than the 2004 cost due to the impact of
the stronger Canadian dollar on operating costs at the Canadian operations, the impact of lower ore
grades on mine production and higher energy costs which offset the impact of increases in by-
product credits due to higher metal prices. At Falcondo, operating cash cost per pound of ferro-
nickel was $4.40 in 2005, compared with $3.50 in 2004. The increase in costs was largely due to
the significant increase in the oil price. Qil costs rose from $36.63 per barrel in 2004, to $49.09
in 2005. Purchased fuel oil costs accounted for 71% of total operating cash costs in 2005.

income generated by operating assets: For 2005, nicke!
business income generated by operating assets was $597

8.00

LME price

Inventories (000s tonnes) million, compared with $637 million for 2004. The $40-miifion
decrease was mainly due to the amortization of the preliminary
40 fair value increment relating to the Noranda/Falconbridge
/\ AI\/J\\ merger, and higher unit costs, again caused in part by the
J 30 strengthening of the Canadian dollar, which offset the impact of

higher nickel and copper prices and increases in sales volumes.

Production: Refined nickel production totaled 113,600 tonnes in
2005, compared to 100,900 tonnes in 2004, setting a new

2001 2002

— 10 record for production. During 2005, Sudbury mines nickel
production was 19,700 tonnes, compared with 22,600 tonnes in
0 2004. The reduction in nickel production was attributable to a
2004 2005 reduction in ore grade. For 2005, Raglan nickel-in-concentrate

production was 22,200 tonnes, compared with 26,600 tonnes of
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nickel in 2004. The decrease in production from 2004 levels was due to the impact of a lower
nickel ore grade. In its first full year after achieving commercial production, the Montcalm mine
produced 9,000 tonnes of nickel. In Sudbury, smelter production of nickel in matte, which
established a new annual production record, was 63,100 tonnes in 2005, compared with 52,600
tonnes in 2004, as a result of the treatment of higher concentrate tonnages with lower feed grades.
At Nikkelverk, 2005 refined nickel production of 84,900 tonnes was higher than the 71,400
tonnes produced in 2004, establishing a new annual production record. Nikkelverk cobalt
production also set a new record at 5,000 tonnes. The Falcondo ferronickel operation produced
28,700 tonnes of nickel in ferronickel, compared to 29,500 tonnes in 2004.

ZINC BUSINESS UNIT

The Zinc Business includes the Brunswick mine and the Brunswick lead metallurgical operations
(lead smelter and refinery), General Smelting (zinc and lead alloy foundry), and Falconbridge's
25% interest in the Noranda Income Fund, which owns 100% of the Canadian Electroiytic Zinc
refinery. The zinc business is an integrated operation that produces and sells zinc and lead
concentrates and refines and markets zinc and lead metal and a significant amount of by-product

silver and sulphuric acid.

Zinc Mining, Processing
and Refining Costs

2005 2004

Revenues ($ millions) 504 415
Mining, processing and refining costs ($ miilions) 168 158
Purchased raw materials ($ millions) 243 187 Energy
Income generated by operating assets ($ millions) 60 14 2 éit;%l‘iires and consumables
Realized zinc price ($ per pound) $0.70 $0.52 B Contract and other
Realized lead price ($ per pound) $ 0.50 $0.43
Operating cash cost ($ per pound of zinc) $0.41 $0.32
Sales (000s tonnes)

Zinc in concentrates 218 293

Lead metal 74 83

Revenues: For the year, revenues for the Zinc Business increased 21%, to $504 million from
$415 million in 2004, as higher realized prices for zinc and lead more than offset lower
production and sales volumes. Sales volumes of zinc in concentrate decreased in 2005, by 25% to
219,400 tonnes, compared to 292,500 tonnes in 2004, principally due to the closure of the Bell
Allard mine in Quebec in October 2004. Lead metal sales volumes decreased in 2005, by 11% to
73,700 from 83,200 tonnes in 2004. The decrease in lead metal sales is primarily due to a
decrease in lead metal production in 2005, versus 2004, due to lower tonnage processed at the
Brunswick lead metallurgical operation.

Costs: Zinc Business operating expenses totaled $444 million in 2005, an increase from

$401 million in 2004. Mining, processing and refining costs totaled $168 million in 2005, versus

$158 million in 2004. The value of purchased raw materials increased from $187 million in 2004,
to $243 million in 2005 primarily due to higher metai prices. In 2005, the operating cash cost of

producing a pound of zinc increased 28% to $0.41, from $0.32

in 2004. The increase is mainly due to a stronger Canadian

dollar, higher energy costs, higher consumable costs, and higher Zine

freight charges and also reflects the loss of production from the Price (US$/Ib.)

Bell Allard mine which closed in October 2004,

Inventories (000s tonnes)

1.00 800

Income generated by operating assets: For 2005, the Zinc LME price e TN

Business income generated by operating assets was $60 0.75 —
million, compared to $14 million in 2004, The $46-million
increase was mainly relating to higher metal prices, which were 0.50 —|
partially offset by lower sales volumes and the negative effect of =~
the stronger Canadian dollar on costs. 0.25 ‘/,//
[T Teerinds
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Aluminum Mining, Processing
and Refining Costs

B Energy

I Labour

B Supplies and consumables
W Contract and other
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367,000 tonnes in 2004. The decrease in mine production in 2005 is attributable to the loss of
production from the Bell Allard mine. Brunswick mine production was 265,600 tonnes of zinc in
concentrate in 2005, compared with 268,100 tonnes of zinc in concentrate in 2004. The
decrease in zinc production was attributable to ore-pass operating issues and a rock burst during
the fourth quarter of 2005. During 2005, the Brunswick smelter consumed 189,700 tonnes of
feed, compared to 205,500 tonnes of feed in 2004, Refined lead production totaled 76,100
tonnes in 2005 versus 83,800 tonnes in 2004, a decrease of 9% resuiting from a reduction in
tonnage of material processed.

The principal zinc and lead concentrate producing asset within the Zinc Business is the
Brunswick mine. At planned operating rates, the Brunswick mine has an estimated life of four to
five years. Detailed technical and economic studies of the additional mineral resources and other
mining remnants located throughout the mine are continuing. If this evaluation is successful in
converting remaining resources to reserves, the four-year mine life could be extended by an
additional year of operation, subject to the risks and hazards associated with the mining
business and the mine in its final stage of extraction. At current zinc and lead prices, the
existing zinc business is expected to be a significant contributor of cash flow to the Company,
providing & very high rate of return on the book value of these assets. Falconbridge's strategy
also has the potential to maintain approximately one billion pounds per year exposure to the zinc
price via the potential development of its brownfield and greenfield projects, described under
“Capital Expenditures, Capacity Enhancements and Projects Under Development”. (Note:
Statements regarding estimated mine life and projections of future cash flows and rates of return
are subject to risks and uncertainties. See “Forward-looking Information” on page 63.)

ALUMINUM BUSINESS UNIT

Falconbridge's fully-integrated aluminum operations consist of a primary aluminum reduction
facility in New Madrid, Missouri, and four modern aluminum rolling mills, capable of producing a
variety of foil and sheet products to fulfill numerous applications. The primary and rolling
operations are supported by the Company’s 50% interest in the St. Ann bauxite mine in Jamaica
and the Gramercy alumina refinery in Gramercy, Louisiana. The St. Ann bauxite mine is the major
source of raw material for the Gramercy alumina refinery and is also the main supplier of raw
material for the primary aluminum smelter in New Madrid. During 2005, the New Madrid smelter
accounted for approximately 10% of aluminum production in the U.S. and the foil operations
supplied approximately 23% of North American demand for aluminum foil sheet. Falconbridge
now has the benefit of being a fully-integrated aluminum producer and has full leverage to the
current strong aluminum prices.

2005 2004
Revenues ($ millions) 1,077 935
Mining, processing and refining costs ($ millions) 583 420
Purchased raw materials ($ millions) 335 388
Income generated by operating assets ($ millions) 106 89
Realized aluminum price ($ per pound) $0.91 $0.84
Average fabricating spread ($ per pound of foil) $ 0.46 $0.42
Operating cash cost ($ per pound of aluminum) $ 0.63 $0.58
Sales (000s tonnes)
Primary aluminum 248 249
Aluminum foil 178 174

Revenues: For the year, consolidated revenues for the Aluminum Business increased 15%, to
$1,077 million from $935 million in 2004. Primary sales volumes were slightly lower than
2004, resulting from fewer average number of operating pots. Realized Mid-West prices in 2005
increased by 8% to $0.91/Ib., from $0.84/lb. in 2004. For the rolled products division, sales
volumes were up by 2% for the year mainly due to improved production levels. Overall weighted
fabrication spreads were up $0.04/lb., or 10% from 2004 levels, due entirely to strong demand
and related price increases in heavy-gauge product lines.
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Costs: Total Aluminum Business operating expenses totaled
$971 miition in 2005, versus $846 million in 2004, primarily Aluminum

due to the inclusion of Falconbridge’s share of the newly Price (US$/Ib.) Inventories (000s tonnes)
acquired St. Ann bauxite mine and Gramercy alumina refinery
operating costs, which are offset by the benefits of a fully-
integrated aluminum business and certainty of long-term

1.00 _ £1,600
LME price

alumina supply. Mining, processing and refining costs totaled 0.7% 1,200
$583 million in 2005, versus $420 million in 2004, an ’ y

increase of $163 million. Operating costs were negatively 0.50 ——-—/ \——~——- 800
affected by the temporary production disruption at the Gramercy 7 N y
alumina refinery that resulted from the impact of hurricane 0.25 ﬁ"/ T 400
Katrina and the resulting higher natural gas costs. Energy costs } U0E *variarie \

at the New Madrid smelter were negatively impacted by slightly o ] \’ 0

higher electricity rates that came into effect under the new 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
fifteen-year electricity supply contract, but these contract rates

compare very favourably with electricity costs incurred by other

U.S. aluminum producers. The value of purchased raw materials decreased to $335 million from

$388 million in 2004, due to the fact that alumina purchases in 2004 were from third-parties

prior to the fourth quarter acquisition of Gramercy Alumina. The primary aluminum smelter

continues to benefit from the secure internal supply of alumina at very favourable cost compared to

current spot-market prices.

For the year, the net operating cash cost at the primary division was $0.63/Ib., compared with
$0.58/Ib. in 2004. Higher natural gas and electrical energy costs were the major contributors to
the higher unit costs. For the rolled products division, conversion costs on average were down 6%
from last year, due in part fo a heavier-gauge product mix and improvements in manufacturing
efficiencies at all plants offsetting the negative impact of higher natural gas prices.

ncome generated by operating assets: For 2005, income generated by operating assets for the
Aluminum Business was $106 million, compared with $89 million for 2004. The increase was
mainly due to higher metal prices and fabrication margins, improved production levels at the rolled
products divisions, and higher margins received on value-added product sales such as rod, billet
and rolled aluminum products.

Production: For the year 2005, production of primary aluminum was 245,600 tonnes, compared to
247,500 tonnes in the same period in 2004, For the rolfed products operations, shipments were
177,900 tonnes for the year, up 2% compared to 173,900 tennes in 2004,

AVERAGE REALIZED PRICES

Average realized prices for the company’s main products during 2005 and 2004, as well as
estimated current realized prices in 2006, are as follows:

($ per pound) Estimated Current Price! 2005 2004
Copper 2.24 1.71 1.30
Nickel 6.67 6.85 6.40
Ferronickel 6.29 6.74 6.37
Zinc 1.02 0.70 0.52
Aluminum 1.15 0.91 0.84
Lead 0.65 0.50 0.43
Cobalt 12.46 14.97 22.48
Molybdenum 23.50 31.09 16.21

1. As at Feb, 16, 2006
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The following table shows the annualized impact on Falconbridge's net income from changes in
metals prices and the U.S./Canadian dollar exchange rate.

Change in Impact on Impact on
($ millions) US$/b. Price Net income Income per share
Copper $0.05 $37 $0.10
Nicke! $ 0.50 63 Q.17
Zinc $0.05 38 0.10
Aluminum $0.05 19 0.05
Lead . $0.05 6 0.02
Exchange rate Cdn$ = US$ $0.01 12 0.03

MINING OPERATIONS AND RECOVERIES

The following table details the results of milling operations and recoveries at the Company's
operating mines in 2005:

Copper Nicke! Zinc
Ore treated Grade Recovery Grade Recovery Grade Recovery
(000s tonnes) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
Copper Mines
Antamina 10,241 1.35 90.3 — — 0.92 82.7
Collahuasi! 20,495 1.15 81.6 — — — —
Kidd Creek 2,320 2.02 93.0 — — 6.19 835
Lomas Bayas - heap leach 13,286 0.50 76.8 — — — —
Lomas Bayas - ROM leach 22,432 0.22 24.6 — — — —
Louvicourt 369 2.20 95.0 — — 1.85 85.6
Nickel Mines
Falcondo 3,920 — — 1.18 75.32 — —
Montcalm 750 0.79 85.6 1.62 82.1 — —
Raglan 934 0.84 80.4 2.84 86.4 — —
Sudbury 2,171 1.26 93.3 1.16 80.5 —_ —
Zinc Mines
Brunswick 3,529 0.35 48,9 — — 8.59 87.7
1. Collahuasi figures reflect a weighted average of sulphide and oxide ores.
2. Falcondo upgrade circuit.
PRODUCTION FORECAST
2006 Forecast 2005 Actual
Production {tonnes) (tonnes)
Copper Mined 475,000 462,000
Refined 635,000 544,000
Nickel Mined 82,000 80,000
Refined 115,000 114,000
Zinc Mined 460,000 454,000
Refined! 210,000 182,000
Aluminum  Primary 250,000 246,000
Fabricated 195,000 178,000

1. Inctudes 100% of Kidd Creek refinery production and 25% of the Noranda Income Fund
CEZ refinery production

Statements regarding production forecasts are subject to various risks and assumptions.
See "Forward-looking Information” on page 63.
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QUARTERLY EARNINGS

($ miltions, except per share data) Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 2005 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 2004
Results of operations
Revenues $1,920 $2,057 $2,006 $2,165 $ 8,148 $1,603 $1,632 $1,662 $1,867 $6,764
Mining, processing and

refining costs 595 643 615 685 2,538 435 477 517 547 1,976
Purchased raw materials 748 804 816 867 3,235 688 744 656 816 2,904
Depreciation, amortization

and accretion 118 147 140 150 555 116 124 118 135 493
Income generated by

operating assets 459 463 435 463 1,820 364 287 371 369 1,391
Interest expense, net 28 37 51 36 152 26 36 30 28 120
Corporate and general

administration 17 19 18 26 80 13 15 17 21 66
Research, development

and exploration 11 16 16 16 59 7 12 14 14 47
Minority interest in earnings

of subsidiaries 94 55 5 1 155 79 64 76 78 297
Income before undernoted 309 336 345 384 1,374 239 160 234 228 861
Gain, net of restructuring

costs and other 1 1 (5) (14) 17) (6) (11) 6 (73) (84)
Tax expense 124 133 136 118 511 88 58 101 104 351
Net income from continuing

operations 184 202 214 280 880 157 113 127 197 594
Loss on discontinued operations,

net of tax 8 — — — 8 5 5 9 54 73
Net income 176 202 214 280 872 152 108 118 143 521
Net income per common share

from continuing operations:

Basic $ 061 $ 062 $ 056 $ 075 $ 2.54 $ 052 $ 037 $ 042 $ 065 $ 1.96

Diluted $ 060 $ 061 § 056 $ 074 $ 2.52 $ 051 % 037 $ 041 $ 064 $ 194
Net income per common share:

Basic $ 058 $ 062 $ 057 $ 075 $ 252 $ 050 $ 035 % 039 % 047 $ 171

Diluted $ 057 $ 061 $ 056 $ 074 $ 250 $ 049 $ 035 $ 038 $ 047 $ 1.70

FOURTH QUARTER 2005 RESULTS

Net income for the fourth quarter of 2005 was $280 million, or $0.74 per share on a diluted
basis, compared to $143 million or $0.47 per share on a diluted basis for the same period in
2004. This increase was as a result of significantly higher metals prices realized in the fourth
quarter of 2005 versus 2004 offset by the impact of a strong Canadian doliar. Realized copper
prices increased to $1.99/Ib. in the fourth quarter of 2005, compared with $1.43/lb. realized in
the same period of 2004, while nickel prices realized in the fourth quarter of 2005 averaged
$5.88/ib. versus $6.45/b. realized in the fourth quarter of 2004. Zinc prices realized in the fourth
quarter of 2005 averaged $0.80/Ib. versus $0.56/ib. realized in the fourth quarter of 2004, while
realized aluminum prices increased to $0.94/lb. in the fourth quarter of 2005, compared with
$0.89/Ib. realized in the same period of 2004,

COPPER BUSINESS UNIT

Revenues: For the fourth quarter of 2005, consolidated revenues of $1,276 million increased 28%
from $997 million in the fourth quarter of 2004. The increase reflects higher average realized
copper, zinc, molybdenum and precious metals prices. Total sales of copper during the quarter
were 232,000 tonnes versus 243,000 tonnes in the same period in 2004. Increased sales of CCR
cathodes, Antamina concentrates, Altonorte anodes and Horne concentrates were more than offset
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Dy UELTICASEU Sates DI LUIIdNUas! CONCENLIGLEs allld AUU LIETK CalliDUEs. sales O Dy-prouuct JHe
meta! from Kidd Creek were lower due to the one-month labour disruption at the Kidd Creek
metallurgical operations. The realized copper price of $1.99/lb. increased by 39% in the quarter,
compared to $1.43/Ib. rezlized in the same period in 2004.

Costs: Total operating expenses increased to $917 million from $827 million in the fourth quarter
of 2004. Mining, processing and refining costs increased to $246 million from $227 million in the
same period last year as a result of the impact of a weaker U.S. dollar and higher energy and
supply costs. Purchased raw materials increased to $600 million from $534 million in the fourth
quarter of 2004, due to the rise in copper prices. The operating cash cost of producing & pound of
copper in the fourth quarter of 2005 decreased to $0.35/Ib., from $0.43/Ib. in the fourth quarter
of 2004,

Income Generated by Operating Assets: Income generated by operating assets for the Copper
Business in the fourth quarter of 2005 increased to $359 miltion from $170 million a year ago,
due to the impact of higher copper, zinc and molybdenum prices. Offsetting the stronger revenues
were increased costs resulting from the impact of a weaker U.S. dollar on Canadian and South
American operating costs, as well as higher energy and supply costs.

Production: During the fourth quarter of 2005, copper mine production from Canadian and South
American operations totaled 108,800 tonnes, compared to 117,500 tonnes a year ago. Lower
copper grades at Collahuasi more than offset higher production from Antamina and Kidd Creek.
Refined copper production was 120,900 tonnes of copper cathode in the fourth quarter of 2005
versus 133,800 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2004 as lower production from Kidd Creek more
than offset increased production from CCR. Kidd Creek production of refined copper and zinc were
impacted by a one-month strike during October 2005. By-product zinc-in-concentrate production
decreased to 27,600 tonnes from 38,900 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2004 due to lower zinc
grades. Mined molybdenum in concentrate at Antamina increased to 800 tonnes from 600 tonnes
due to improved recoveries.

NICKEL BUSINESS UNIT

Revenues: For the fourth quarter of 2005, consolidated revenues of $489 miltion decreased from
$495 miliion in the fourth quarter of 2004, Sales volumes of refined nicke! increased 4% to
20,500 tonnes from 19,800 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2004. At Falcondo, ferronickel sales
volumes increased by 2% to 8,300 tonnes from 8,100 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2004. In
the fourth quarter 2005, by-product copper sales volumes of 13,700 tonnes increased 9% from
12,500 tonnes in the same period a year ago. Cobalt sales volumes decreased by 18% to

900 tonnes. Realized nickel prices of $5.88/Ib. decreased by 9% in the quarter, compared with
$6.45/1b. in the same period in 2004, Realized ferronickel prices of $5.93/Ib. decreased by 8% in
the quarter, compared with $6.42/lb. in the same period in 2004, Precious metals revenues
increased by $5 miliion in the fourth quarter of 2005 compared to the same period in 2004.

Costs: Total operating expenses increased to $414 million from $327 million in the fourth quarter
of 2004. Mining, processing and refining costs increased to $235 million from $174 million in the
same period last year largely due to the exchange rate impact on operating costs at Canadian
operations and increases in energy prices. In addition, 2005 mining, processing and refining costs
include a full quarter of costs from the Montcalm nickel mine. The value of purchased raw
materials increased to $131 million from $105 million in the fourth quarter of 2004 due to
increased sales volumes. The operating cash cost per pound of mined nickel for all of Falconbridge
{including INO and Falcondo) was $4.03 in the fourth quarter of 2005, compared with $3.05 for
the same period in 2004. The operating cash cost of producing a pound of nickel from INO mines,
was $3.52. The $1.06/lb., or 43%, increase from 2004 costs was the result of the impact of the
stronger Canadian dollar on operating costs at Canadian operations, higher energy costs, the
impact on costs and mine production of the mill conversion at Raglan, and lower ore grades, which
offset the impact of increased by-product credits due to higher metal prices. At Falcondo,
operating cash cost per pound of ferronicke!l was $4.80 in 2005, compared with $4.17 in 2004.
The increase in costs was largely due to the increase in the oil price, as average oil costs rose from
$42.34 per barrel in 2004 to $55.63 per barrel in 2005, Qil is the source of fuel for the
electricity plant operated on site. Fuel oil represented 73% of total operating costs at Falcondo
during the fourth quarter of 2005.
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Income generated by operating assets: Fourth quarter income generated by operating assets for the
nickel business totaled $75 million, compared to $168 million in the fourth quarter of 2004,

The $93 million decrease was mainly due to the impact of lower nickel and cobalt prices, higher
depreciation and amortization charges, largely as a result of the amortization of the fair value
increment relating to the Noranda/Falconbridge merger, and higher unit costs, caused in part by
the stronger Canadian doliar.

Production: Total mined nickel production was 18,100 tonnes during the quarter versus 21,100
tonnes during the same period in 2004. Sudbury mines production was 3,900 tonnes of nickel
and 4,200 tonnes of copper during the fourth quarter of 2005, compared with 5,700 tonnes of
nickel and 6,800 tonnes of copper during the same period in 2004. The reduction in mine output
relates primarily to lower ore grades and unplanned ore-pass repairs at the Thayer Lindsley mine.

At Raglan, nickel-in-concentrate production in the quarter was 4,600 tonnes and copper
production was 1,200 tonnes, compared with 6,700 tonnes of nickel and 1,700 tonnes of copper
in 2004. Mill output in the quarter was reduced due to the planned conversion of the mill and
lower mine ore grades.

At Montcalm, nickel production in the quarter was 2,300 tonnes.

At the Sudbury smelter, nickel-in-matte production in the fourth quarter of 2005 decreased to
16,100 tonnes from 18,100 tonnes in the same period of 2004 as a result of the treatment of
lower concentrate tonnages with lower feed grades. Total refined nicke! production was 20,800
tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2005, compared to 20,500 tonnes in the same period in 2004.

in the fourth quarter of 2005, Falcondo produced 7,300 tonnes of nickel in ferronickel, a 2%
increase from 7,200 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2004,

ZINC BUSINESS UNIT

Revenues: Total zinc revenues increased to $155 million or 30% higher than $119 million
recorded during the fourth quarter of 2004. In the fourth quarter of 2005, sales volumes of zinc in
concentrates decreased 39% to 39,800 tonnes from 64,800 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2004.
Fourth quarter 2005 lead metal sales decreased to 19,500 tonnes from 23,100 tonnes in the
same period a year ago, primarily as a result of lower tonnage processed at the Brunswick lead
smelter. The average realized price per pound of zinc during the fourth quarter was $0.80/1b.
versus $0.56/1b. in the same period last year. The avetage realized price per pound of lead during
the fourth quarter was $0.54/b. versus $0.46/1b. in the same period last year.

Costs: Total operating expenses increased to $131 million from $114 million in the fourth quarter
of 2004. Mining, processing and refining costs decreased to $33 million from $45 million in the
same period last year, while the value of purchased raw materials increased to $91 million from
$60 million in the fourth quarter of 2004. The value of raw materials increased along with the rise
in zinc and lead prices. The operating cash cost per pound of mined zinc increased to $0.48 in
the fourth quarter of 2005 from $0.32 for the same period in 2004 due to higher costs and
reduced mine production volumes.

Income generated by operating assets: The fourth quarter 2005 income generating from operating
assets for the Zinc Business was $24 million, compared to $5 million for the fourth quarter of
2004. The $19-million increase was due to the impact of higher metal prices and decreased
depreciation and amortization charges which were partially offset by the impact of lower sales
volumes, and an unfavourable impact on costs due to the foreign exchange variance caused by the
strengthening of the Canadian dollar.

Production: Contained zinc production was 59,400 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2005,
compared to 74,900 tonnes in the same period in 2004. The decrease was due to the closure of
the Bell Allard mine in October, 2004 and also attributable to ore-pass operating issues and a rock
burst at Brunswick mine.

The Brunswick lead smeiter processed 57,100 tonnes of lead concentrates and secondaries during
the fourth quarter of 2005, compared to 61,700 tonnes during the same period in 2004, Lead metal
production was 23,900 tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2005, compared to 25,900 tonnes in the
same period in 2004. The decreased feed consumption and lead metal output at the Brunswick
smelter was due to process reliability issues, which are currently being addressed.
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Revenues: Aluminum business revenues were $244 million, compared to $257 million recorded
during the fourth guarter of 2004, Sales volumes of primary aluminum increased to 63,200
tonnes, compared to 61,700 in the fourth quarter of 2004. The fourth quarter rolled-products
sales volumes increased by 3% 1o 43,200 tonnes, compared to 42,000 tonnes the same period a
year ago primarily due to manufacturing throughput improvements. The realized mid-west primary
aluminum price increased by 6% in the quarter to $0.94/Ib., compared with $0.89/ib. in the same
period in 2004.

Costs: Aluminum business operating expenses decreased to $223 million from $228 million in the
fourth quarter of 2004. Mining, processing and refining costs increased to $162 million from
$102 million in the same period last year. In addition, 2005 mining, processing and refining costs
include a full quarter of costs from Gramercy and St. Ann aluminum operations. Operating costs
were impacted by significantly higher natural gas costs at the Gramercy alumina refinery and
increased electrical energy costs at the New Madrid smelter that came into effect under the new
fifteen-year electricity supply contract. These rates compare very favourably with electricity costs
incurred by other U.S. aluminum producers. The value of purchased raw materials decreased to
$44 million in the fourth quarter from $116 million in the fourth quarter of 2004,

The operating cash cost per pound of primary aluminum metal production was $0.68/lb. in the
fourth quarter of 2005, an increase from $0.57/b. for the same period in 2004, Higher electrical
energy and alumina costs were the major contributors to the higher unit costs. The cost per pound
at the rolled products division was 6% lower in the fourth quarter of 2005, compared the same
period in 2004,

Income generated by operating assets: Fourth quarter 2005 income generated by operating for the
aluminum business was $21 million, compared with $29 million for the fourth quarter of 2004,
The $8-million decrease was mainly due to higher power costs as well as higher natural gas costs.
These caosts increases were somewhat offset by the benefits of the increased aluminum price.

Production: In the fourth quarter of 2005, primary aluminum production was 62,300 tonnes,
unchanged compared to the same period last year. For the rolled products operations, shipments
were 43,200 tonnes, compared with 42,000 tonnes for the fourth quarter of 2004,

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

During 2005, the corporate initiatives undertaken to simplify the ownership structure of
Falconbridge resuited in a significant repositioning of the Company to enhance liquidity and reduce
the cost of capital.

On May 4, 2005, the Company completed a $1.25-billion issuer bid and acquired for cancella-
tion 63.4 million common shares in exchange for the issue of $1.25 billion of junior preferred
shares at a price of Cdn$19.72 per common share. The junior preferred shares were issued in these

series as follows:

Mandatory
Principat Amount Redemption date Dividend rate
Series 1 $ 500M June 30, 2008 6.0%
Series 2 $ 500M June 30, 2010 6.2%
Series 3 $ 250M June 30, 2013 6.5%

Total $ 1,250M

The issuer bid represented an opportunity for the Company to acquire 63.4 million common
shares at attractive price levels, and reduced the dilution of common shareholder interest when
common shares were subsequently issued to acquire the remaining common shares outstanding of
the former Falconbridge.

The junior preferred shares were issued at a time of relative uncertainty regarding the
Company’s ability to complete the acquisition of the former Falconbridge and therefore have
unrestricted access to the cash flow of the combined entity. As such, the junior preferred shares
were issued with the Company retaining the right to redeem these shares at any time for 101% of
fair value; were issued with an average term to maturity of seven years to provide an opportunity to
refinance these instruments without placing undue strain on the liquidity of the Company and; the
Company retained the right to repay the junior preferred shares at their maturity in common shares
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the Company, these instruments are retractable at the option of the holder. These provisions
provided the Company with maximum flexibility. As a result of the share attributes, the junior
preferred shares were classified as debt instruments on the balance sheet and dividend payments
on these instruments were classified as interest expense.

On June 30, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition of the minarity interest in
Falconbridge through the two-step transaction and the issuance of 132,840,641 common shares,
representing a total acquisition price of $2.5 billion. The consolidation of the ownership and
simplification of the capital structure of the combined entity created a financially stronger entity
with opportunities to further reduce the weighted average cost of capital of the combined entity.

Following the successful completion of the merger of Noranda and the former Falconbridge,
Falconbridge received affirmation of its ratings from its respective rating agencies in recognition
of the combined entities continued strong cash flow, liquidity and the sustained strength of
metal prices.

The completion of the merger aiso altered the credit risk profile of the combined entity, and the
enhancement of the availability of other long-term sources of capital as a result of the investment
grade ratings caused the Company to redeem $500 million of junior preferred shares for cash in
August 2005, from available cash resources.

Falconbridge maintains long-term credit arrangements and relationships with a variety of financial
institutions and investors in order to facilitate its ongoing access to domestic and international
financial markets to meet its funding needs. Falconbridge's future financial requirements related to
debt maturities, operating costs, the projects currently under development and other capital
investments will be funded primarily from a combination of existing cash balances, committed bank
lines, operating cash flows, project financings and new long- and short-term borrowings.

Working capital*, excluding cash and cash equivalents, and debt due within a year, decreased
to $1,024 million from $1,119 million at the end of 2004. During the year, Falconbridge
continued to improve its balance sheet and operating capacity to support its strategic objective of
maintaining an investment grade credit rating.

Cash.and cash equivalents at December 31, 2005 totaled $886 million, compared to $884
million at December 31, 2004. In addition to its cash balances, Falconbridge’s liquidity and
financial flexibility is augmented by revolving credit facitities. Committed lines of credit at
December 31, 2005 totaled $780 million, none of which had been drawn upon. These bank lines
are provided by various Canadian and international chartered banks and are scheduled to expire in
August 2010.

Long-term debt, excluding the amount due in less than one year and junior preferred shares
liabilities, amounted to $2,598 million at December 31, 2005, compared to $2,736 million a
year earlier. In June 2005, the Company issued $250 million aggregate principal amount of
12-year notes and $250 million aggregate principal amount of 30-year notes. The 12-year notes,
which are unsecured, bear interest at the rate of 5.5% per annum and mature on June 15, 2017.
The 30-year notes, which are also unsecured, bear interest at the rate of 6.2% per annum and
mature on June 15, 2035. Both series of notes are redeemable in whole, or in part, at any time, at
a redemption price equal to 100% of their principal amount plus a make-whole premium. At
December 31, 2005, Falconbridge’s consolidated net-debt-to-total-capitalization ratio was 36.7%,
compared to 38.7% at December 31, 2004, following the repayment of in excess of $1 billion in
debt during 2005.

Shareholders’ equity at the end of 2005 was $5 billion, an increase of $2.2 billion due to the
issue of common shares to acquire the minority interest of Falconbridge, retained earnings in
excess of dividends paid, offset by the reduction in common equity as a result of the substantial
issuer bid completed in May 2005.

Falconbridge’s long-term public debt ratings at December 31 are noted below:

2005 2004
Standard & Poor's BBB- BBB-
Moody’s Baa3 Baa3
Dominion Bond Rating Services BBB BBB

Note: A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities, and may be subject
to revision or withdrawal at any time by a rating organization.

*Defined as current assets, less current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.
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Operating Activities

Cash generated from operations, before net changes in non-cash working capital, totaled $1,650
million in 2005, up from $1,461 million in 2004. The increase is primarily the result of the
higher sales volumes, and higher metal prices despite the adverse impact of increasing energy and
supply costs and foreign exchange movements on the mining, processing and refining costs. Higher
accounts receivable and inventories resulting from higher metal prices were mostly offset by higher
accounts and taxes payable as non-cash working capital increased by $15 million during the year.

Investment Activities
Capital investments totaled $737 million in 2005, compared to $666 million in 2004. Major

capital expenditures during 2005 included the expansion and transfer of the mining operations at
the Collahuasi copper mine, the Kidd Creek Mine D underground extension, the Montcalm nickel
mine, the Nickel Rim South underground exploration project (initiated in early 2005) and $100
million for equipment and services relating to the Koniambao project. Capital investments for 2006
are budgeted to be $750 million. A more detailed discussion is provided on page 47. During
2006, proceeds from dispositions totaled $93 million mostly from the sale of the Company's
wholly-owned wheel manufacturer and from the sale of cost-accounted investments.

Financing Activities
In 2005, Falconbridge used $843 million to reduce its net debt outstanding (repaid $1,394
million of debt while issuing $551 million). This does not include the junior preferred share
transaction as this did not involve the receipt of any cash by the Company. During 2005,
Falconbridge's common and preferred share dividend payments were $150 million, compared to
$123 million in 2004. Total dividend obligations increased due to the increase in the total
common share outstanding that resulted from the acquisition of the minority interest in former
Falconbridge that the Company did not already own. The annual common share dividend was
Cdn$0.48 per share in 2005, which remained unchanged from 2004,

Significant future obligations of Falconbridge and its partially-owned subsidiaries, excluding the
employee future benefit obligations, are summarized as follows:

($ mitiions) Payments by year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010  Thereafter Total

Nature of obligation:
Convertible debentures and

other {oans $ 15 $ 120 $ 23 $ — $ 5 % — $ 163
Senior debentures 250 — 150 — — 1,943 2,343
Preferred share liabilities? — — 126 — 300 450 876

265 120 299 — 305 2,393 3,382
Debt of joint ventures 87 87 87 87 40 42 430
Capital leases 1 5 1 1 1 7 16
Operating leases and purchase

commitment 172 18 13 9 8 21 241
Total 525 230 400 97 354 2463 4,069

1. May be redeemed for common shares

CAPITAL EXPENDI!TURES, CAPACITY ENHANCEMENTS AND PROJECTS
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Falconbridge has invested significant capital in the expansion of its operating capacity with the
addition of world-class, low-cost assets and the improvement of existing operations. The Company
increased its copper and nickel ore reserves, enhanced its copper and nickel processing capacity,
added new zinc projects, expanded its primary and fabricated production capacity and acquired
bauxite mining and alumina refining assets to fully integrate its aluminum operations. These
investments have substantially increased the Company’s baseline earnings and its leverage to metal
prices. The following is a summary of these initiatives and their impact on Falconbridge.

Investments in development projects at the end of the year totaled $1,707 million, an increase
of $541 million since December 31, 2004. Nickel and copper mining remains the focus of the
Company's growth program. As shown in the foliowing table, Falconbridge has expansion projects
in both these commodities that are currently under development.
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PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT - CAPITAL SPENDING 2005

Falconbridge Book Value at Book Yalue at
Limited’s Interest Dec. 31, 2004 Dec. 31, 2005
(%) ($ miltions) ($ millions)
Copper
El Morro Feasibility 70.0 $ 12 $ 16
Kidd Creek Mine
Extension 100.0 404 518
Nickel
Koniambo 49.0 180 276
Nickel Rim South 100.0 101 173
Kabanga 50.0 — 34
Other 469 690
Total $1,166 $ 1,707

PRCJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT - 2005

Expectations with respect to development projects are subject to various risks and assumptions.
See “Forward-looking Information” on page 63.

EL MORRO, REGION III, CHILE

Favourably situated close to two copper smelters, the deposit is a large copper porphyry with high
gold co-product credits that would result in low net copper cash costs. It has inferred rescurces of
466 million tonnes grading 0.61% copper and 0.50 gram of gold per tonne. E} Morro also features
a high-grade resource core and a low pre-stripping ratio, as well as further exploration potential. In
2005, Falconbridge paid $10 million to earn a 70% interest in the EI Morro property from
Metallica Resources Inc. In 2006, Faiconbridge expects to begin feasibility-leve! work, including a
30,000 metre drilling program for in-fill drilling and metallurgical test work.

EL PACHON, ARGENTINA

El Pachén is an attractive copper mine development project situated less than five kilometres from
the Chilean border and the Las Pefambres copper mine. ft features a high-grade core, unusually
low strip ratio and favourable metalliurgical recoveries which will substantially reduce mining and
capital costs. The orebody has the potential to produce over 200,000 tonnes of copper in
concentrate per year over a life of more than 20 years. During 2005, a conceptual study of the

EI Pachon project was completed. Two bulk samples were extracted from an existing exploration
tunnel and processed, engineering studies were completed and environmental information was
compiled to add to the environmental base line. In addition, important advances were realized on
El Pachén’s specific protocol within the Mining Integration Treaty between Chile and Argentina. In
2006, work is expected to progress in road re-opening, field studies, engineering studies and
environmental data collection.

KIDD CREEK, TIMMINS, CANADA

Kidd Creek mining operations are transitioning to the newly developed Mine D, which is improving
operational stability and predictability, and should lead to improved financial performance. A new
target schedule and budget were finalized and approved in mid-2005, becoming the project
baseline. Production from block 2 began in the fourth quarter of 2005 and production from block 3
is now expected to begin in the third quarter of 2006. The capital investment is now expected to
total Cdn$684 million. The capital expenditures associated with this project increased following the
approval of a new target schedule and budget that became the project baseline in April 2005, as
well as escalation associated with delineation drilling that will take place in 2006. At the end of
2005, overall project progress was 90% based on this new target schedule and budget.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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Good progress was made during 2005 in advancing Falconbridge’s objectives with respect to the
Koniambo ferronickel project in the Northern Province of New Caledonia. Final agreements were put
in place by and among Falconbridge, Société Miniére du Sud Pacifique S.A. (SMSP), and other
relevant parties to provide for the transfer of the Koniambo orebody in New Caledonia to Koniambo
Nickel SAS, a company owned 49% by Falconbridge and 51% by SMSP. Falconbridge had
announced in late December 2005 that it had met the relevant conditions of the Bercy Accord for
this transfer to take place, including having placed firm orders for at least $100 million in total for
equipment and services relating to the project.

It is currently planned that the Koniambo project will encompass the construction of a 60,000-
tonne-per-year ferronickel processing plant and related development of the mine site and
infrastructure. A detailed feasibility study was completed in December 2004. The feasibility study
was subject to two independent reviews in 2005, by two international engineering firms and
feedback from both reviews has been positive.

The capital cost of the project is estimated to be $2.2 billion in 2004 dollars excluding interest
to be incurred during construction and initial working capital requirements. The capital cost of
$2.2 billion includes the construction of a $600-million power station with an installed generating
capacity of 390 MW. The remaining $1.6 billion relates to the metallurgical plant, mine
development, and other infrastructure such as the port and road facilities.

Detailed engineering for the project continues in 2006. Falconbridge expects to receive the
necessary construction and operating permits in 2006, enabling the construction phase to
commence in 2007. Based on these key milestones being met as currently planned, start-up of the
project is expected to occur in 2009/2010.

Falconbridge has, subject to certain terms and conditions, agreed to arrange for or provide up
to 100% of the financing required for the project. Given these financing arrangements, the
project's free cash flow would first be used to service and repay debt incurred to finance the
construction of the project before any distributions would be available to the equity owners in
the project.

Koniambo is one of the world's largest and highest grade nickel laterite deposits. At a 2.0%
nickel cut-off grade, the deposit contains measured plus indicated resources of 75.6 million
tonnes at 2.47% nickel. These resources were converted to proven and probable mineral reserves
of 62.5 million tonnes grading 2.4% nickel. In addition, the project has an inferred limonite
resource estimated at 100 million tonnes at 1.6% nickel and 0.2% cobalt that could be developed
at a later date.

tn 1998, Falconbridge entered into a joint-venture agreement with Société Miniére du Sud
Pacifique S.A. {SMSP) and its controlling shareholder, Société de Financement et d’Investissement
de la Province Nord, for the evaluation and development of the 60,000-tonne-per-year nickel in
ferronicke! mining and smelting complex.

When developed, Koniambo will be one of the largest nickel producers in the world with initial
production of 60,000 tonnes per year. In addition, future expansion could take advantage of the
large resource base, which has an estimated life in excess of 50 years.

NICKEL RIM SOUTH, SUDBURY, CANADA

In 2001, Falconbridge discovered Nickel Rim South — a high grade 13.4-million tonne resource
grading 1.8% nickel, 3.3% copper and significant platinum, palladium and gold. A five-year
underground definition and development program was initiated in 2004 at this deposit, located nine
kilometres from Falconbridge's Sudbury smelter, and progressed in 2005. Ventilation shaft sinking
began in February, 2005 and was 1,092 metres at the end of 2005. Main shaft sinking began in
April 2005 and was at 467 metres at the end of 2005. The mine plan was optimized in 2005 to
include additional information from the ongoing drilling program. The capital cost of this project is
$524 million, reflecting an increase of $100 miltion in foreign exchange and escalation variations.
This project is expected to be completed in 2009, with production expected to begin in 2009.

KABANGA, TANZANIA

In April 2005, Falconbridge announced a joint-venture agreement with Barrick Gold Corporation on
the Kabanga nickel deposit, located in northwestern Tanzania. Barrick's current estimated inferred
resource is 26.4 million tonnes grading 2.6% nickel. Under the terms of the agreement,
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ralconbriage acquired a oU% Inairect joint-venture (nterest in respect ot ine Kabanga Project tor
$15 million and will be the operator of the joint venture. Over the next several years, Falconbridge
will fund and conduct a further $50-million work plan. Current work, including exploration and
infill diamond drilling, metallurgical testing and engineering study work will iead to the completion
of a scoping study in the first quarter of 2006.

CAPACITY ENHANCEMENTS - 2005
COLLAHUASI, CHILE

Construction of a $36-million molybdenum recovery circuit was completed in the fourth quarter of
2005, ahead of schedule and under budget. In 2006, production of molybdenum in concentrate is
expected to be approximately 3,800 tonnes. Production will increase over time as a result of the
increase in molybdenum grades at depth in the Rosario orebody.

LOMAS BAYAS, CHILE

The Fortuna de Cobre deposit, adjacent to the Lomas Bayas mine, could expand production or
extend the mine life at Lomas Bayas by five years to 2020. A pre-feasibility study was initiated
during the year and development of an exploration tunnel began in March 2005. Construction of
the pilot plant was completed in August 2005. The metallurgical test program was initiated in the
last quarter of 2005. Fortuna de Cobre is an attractive growth opportunity because of its low
stripping ratio, proximity to existing infrastructure and favourable mineralogy and leaching kinetics.
Falconbridge has the option to purchase Fortuna de Cobre by mid-2006.

RAGLAN, NUNAVIK TERRITORY, CANADA

The conversion of the mill from autogenous to semi-autogenous grinding was completed in October
2005. This conversion will increase the level of annual throughput to approximately one million
tonnes of ore per year and increase the mill’s ability to process harder ore. This project was
completed on schedule and on budget with total project investment of Cdn$33 million. The next
phase will focus on utilizing increased miil capacity by expanding site infrastructure and ore
production to altow for the mining, milling and processing of 1.3 million tonnes of ore annually,
resulting in approximately 30,500 tonnes of annual contained nickel production. Phase I is
expected to be completed in early 2008.

PLANNED CAPITAL INVESTMENTS - 2006

Capital investments for 2006 are expected to total $750 million as the development of the
Nickel Rim South and Koniambo projects advance towards operating status. Sustaining capital
expenditures average approximately $250 million annually. All of the currently projected capital
investments can be funded from the current capital structure. Falconbridge’s capital investment
projections and its major components are shown in the following table.

($ millions) Capital investments
Metal Growth project 2005 2006F
Copper Copper development projects
(Ei Morro, Ef Pachén, Lomas Bayas) $ 4 $ 50
Kidd Creek Mine Extension 114 90
Nickel Koniambo 96 180
Nicke! Rim South 74 85
Nicke! development projects
(Kabanga, Raglan) 61 30
Sustaining capital and other 388 315
Total Capital Investments $ 737 $ 750
F: Forecast

Statements regarding planned capital investments are subject to various risks and assumptions.
See “Forward-looking Information” on page 63.
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BROWNFIELD OPPORTUNITIES

Brownfield development sites represent expansions to existing operations which have a reduced
risk profile due to their proximity to existing infrastructure and known geological composition.
These developments also usually require less capital than new operating environments and remain
a key focus for near-term investment, including:

Copper
Collahuasi mine, Debottlenecking project to increase nominal design capacity of the sulphide circuit
Chile is currently underway.

Studying Phase 3 production capacity expansion. Expect to complete study
on approach to be followed by end of 2006.

Lomas Bayas mine,  Studying adjacent Fortuna de Cobre deposit to expand production or extend mine
Chile life by five years to 2020.

Antamina mine, Peru Reviewing installation of pebble crusher circuit and other means of increasing overal!
throughput.

CCR refinery, Refinery expansion to increase capacity to refine anodes that are higher in nickel.
Quebec, Canada  The expansion will allow the refinery to achieve full capacity of 370,000 tonnes of
refined copper per year.

Kidd Creek mine, Transiticning to newly developed Mine D, improving operationa!l stability and
Timmins, Canada  predictability; provides access to additional 11.9 million tonnes of inferred reserves

with 2.7% copper and 4.8% zinc.

Nickel
Nickel Rim South A five-year underground definition and development program was initiated in 2004

mine, Sudbury, and is ongoing. It is a high-grade 13.4-million tonne resource grading 1.8% nickel,

Canada 3.3% copper and significant platinum, palladium and gold.

Raglan mine, Focused on utilizing increased mill capacity by expanding site infrastructure and ore
Nunavik Territory,  production to allow for the mining, milling and processing of 1.3 million tonnes of
Canada ore annually, resulting in approximately 30,500 tonnes of annual contained nickel

production. Expected completion is early 2008.

Fraser Morgan mine,  Exploration development has been extended and another phase of underground
Sudbury, Canada  exploration drilling has been initiated in 2006. Fraser Morgan contains 4.9 million
tonnes of measured and indicated resources plus 2.4 million tonnes of inferred

resources.
Onaping Depth Contains 14.6 million tonnes of high-grade indicated resources and inferred
deposit, Sudbury,  resources of 1.2 million tonnes, which is located below the Craig Mine, and could
Canada be accessible using Craig Mine infrastructure by deepening the existing shaft.
Continuing research on enabling technologies to mine safely at greater depths.
Montcalm mine, Evaluating the possibility of increasing the annual mining rate from 875,000 tonnes
Timmins, Canada  to one million tonnes per year.
Zinc
Lennard Shelf mine, The mining operations are presently under care and maintenance and the partners
Australia are conducting a long-term exploration program. The partners are continuing to apply

a disciplined approach to bringing this operation back on line. Measured and
indicated resources of 2.8 million tonnes grading 8.47% zinc and 1.96% lead.

Perseverance deposit, Evaluating options and timing to develop this Matagami camp deposit. Measured
Matagami, Canada and indicated resources of 5.12 million tonnes grading 15.82% zinc and 1.24%
copper; could utilize existing mill and concentrator infrastructure.
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GREENFIELD OPPORTUNITIES

Greenfield opportunities, or those potential projects which are located in regions where
Falconbridge does not currently operate, represent significant growth potential to Falconbridge.
Projects currently being reviewed for development are as follows:

Copper

El Pachén, Argentina A very large and promising deposit with measured and indicated resources of 724
million tonnes grading 0.65% copper; capable of producing over 200,000 tonnes per
year for more than 20 years.

E! Morro, Chile A porphyry copper deposit with inferred resources of 466 million tonnes grading
0.61% copper and 0.50 grams per tonne gold. Feasibility work beginning in 2006.

Nickel

Koniambo, Potential for a 60,000-tonnes per year operation; detailed engineering plans being

New Caledonia advanced in 2006 with the start of construction expected in 2007. Proven and
probable mineral reserves are 62.5 million tonnes grading 2.40% nickel.

Kabanga, Tanzania ~ This is a joint-venture agreement project with Barrick Gold Corporation on the
Kabanga nicke! deposit, located in northwestern Tanzania. The current estimated
inferred resource is 26.4 million tonnes grading 2.6% nickel. Current work,
including exploration and infill diamond drilling, metallurgical testing and
engineering study work will lead to the completion of a scoping study in the first
quarter of 2006.

Zinc
Lady Loretta, Falconbridge owns a 75% joint-venture interest in the Lady Loretta deposit, located
Australia close to the Mt. Isa, Queensiand camp. The orebody has measured and indicated

resources of 11.6 million tonnes grading 16.1% zinc and 5.7% lead. Work undertaken
to date indicates possible estimated production of more than 125,000 tonnes of zinc
in concentrate and 40,000 tonnes of lead in concentrate over more than ten years.

Expectations with respect to development projects are subject to various risks and assumptions.
See “Forward-looking Information” on page 63.

RISK ASSESSMENT AND REDUCTION IN THE EVALUATION, SELECTION AND
IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECTS

Falconbridge’s preference for lower-risk brownfield expansion projects provides inherent risk

reduction due to the Company’s knowledge of the environment in which the expansion project is to

be undertaken and its ability to tap into existing human and physical resources. When Falconbridge
chooses to invest and grow via the development of greenfield projects, away from existing
infrastructure, risk assessment and reduction is the Company's top priority.

Falconbridge has taken several steps to ensure the success of all its current and future capital
projects including the following:

= Formation of highly experienced projects group with world-class project leaders dedicated to
securing the investment performance of major capital projects;

2 Implementation of Six Sigma-based Stage Gate process for project evaluation. This process is
a disciplined system which addresses and quantifies key sources of project impact and risk in
support of management decision making;

= Addition of parameters in the Stage Gate process that measure social, business and
strategic elements;

= Recognition of investment returns as the primary measure of project success; and

= Assignment of accountability.

SiX SIGMA

Since significant deployment in 1999 and company-wide adoption in 2002, application of Six Sigma
has contributed to improving performance at Falconbridge. Six Sigma is a process-centered, step-by-
step analytical approach to reviewing operational performance and driving continuous improvement.
During 2005, 154 Six Sigma projects were completed for total annualized benefit of $60 million at
an average savings value of $390,000 per project.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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The objectives of the exploration team are aligned with those of the copper, nickel and zinc
business units and with the corporate strategy of focusing primarily on copper and nickel growth
opportunities, worldwide. The company's goal is to be the most valued and sought after partner in
the mining and metals business. The Company’s approach is one of consistently being a fair and
honest partner, complemented by strong technical skills and a solid track record with a “win-win”
philosophy. Joint-venture arrangements are pursued with both junior and senior mining companies
to increase the level of focused exploration activity thereby sharing cost and risk, and improving
the likelihood of success. The exploration team is supported by an experienced mergers and
acquisitions team and a strong project engineering team with a track record of building mines
around the world.

As a Founding Patron of the Association of Professional Geoscientists of Ontario and a Founding
Partner of the Prospector and Developers Association of Canada’s Environmental Excellence in
Exploration initiative, the team of geoscientists is committed to being fully compliant with National ;
Instrument 43-101 requirements and in consistently conducting safe and environmentally
responsible global exploration. ]

The exploration team consists of 119 employees, including 92 geologists and geophysicists. For !
2006, Falconbridge forecasts exploration expenditures of $49 million, compared to expenditures of
$47 million in 2005. Exploration activity is primarily focused on Canada, Chile, Brazil, Mexico,
Norway, Australia, Africa, Papua New Guinea, China and Mongolia.

EXPLORATION HIGHLIGHTS - 2005

COPPER

+ In October 2005, Falconbridge announced a preliminary resource estimate for the Rosario \
Oeste zone at Collahuasi. The zone, located only 300 metres from the Rosario open pit, is i
estimated to contain an inferred resource of 248 million tonnes grading 1.54% copper at a \
0.4% cut-off grade. The resource remains open to the north, south, and at depth, and these ;
early stage results suggest that Rosario Oeste has the potential to expand the existing reserve
base and extend the life of the current operation. ‘;

- The Frieda River project in Papua New Guinea contains a primary porphyry copper inferred j
mineral resource plus higher grade copper-gold mineralization in the Nena deposit. Recent |
drilling at the Nena deposit firmed up a measured and indicated mineral resource of 42.7 (
million tonnes of 3.09% copper and 0.59 grams of gald. Exploration of other high-grade targets
are expected to be pursued in 2006. ‘J

|

NICKEL ‘

- A new nickel laterite deposit has been discovered in Para State, Brazil. A mineral resource
estimate will be completed in 2006. The thickness of mineralization intersected to date i
ranges from 2.0 to 93 metres and averages 15.3 metres with a nickel content ranging from f
1.0 t0 3.2%.

- The 2005 Raglan, Quebec program returned the best exploration results since the mine
commenced production, with 2.5 million tonnes of new resources (mostly inferred resources)
discovered, exceeding 2005 production of 934,000 tonnes.

= In Norway, a nickel joint-venture exploration program with Blackstone Ventures Inc. continues
to produce promising results in four separate areas (as an example, 7.2 metres of 1.05%
nickel, 0.46% copper at Vesle). The joint venture has been expanded to include five new
prospective areas in South Norway. Geological/geophysical surveys and diamond drilling will
continue in 2006.

ZINC

= New zinc mineralization has been discovered at the Pallas Green project in Ireland where the
best intersection to date has been 9.2% zinc over 10.5 metres. Additional diamond drilling will
be required to determine the significance of this mineralization.
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EXPLORATION OBJECTIVES - 2006

Expectations with respect to exploration objectives are subject to various risks and assumptions.
See “Forward-looking Information” on page 63.

COPPER

= Chile — establish an indicated/measured mineral resource at the EI Morro project in support of a
feasibility study.

- Chile - establish an indicated mineral resource at the recently discovered Rosario Oeste zone at
Collahuasi in support of a feasibility study.

- Papua New Guinea - explore the remaining targets for high-grade mineralization and implement
metatlurgical test work on the higher grade Nena mineral resource in support of a scoping study.

NICKEL

- Canada - establish an indicated mineral resource at Zone 5-8 in support of a feasibility study
at Raglan, Quebec.

- Brazil — establish an indicated/inferred mineral resource at the Araguaia laterite discovery by
the second quarter 2006 in support of a scoping study.

= Africa - define and expand the North Zone massive sulphides at Kabanga in Tanzania and test
additional priority targets within a radius of five kilometres in support of a pre-feasibility study.

= Norway - continue geophysical surveys and diamond driiling to investigate encouraging
mineralization at two joint-venture projects.

ZINC

< Ireland - assess the significance of recently discovered zinc mineralization at the Pallas Green
project.

METALS MARKETS

Current global economic growth conditions and prospects remain above trend levels despite
hurricanes and high oil prices. Global GDP is expected to grow by over 4% for both 2005 and
2006. Global growth for 2004 to 2006 inclusive, is shaping up to high average levels not
experienced since the 1976 to 1978 period.

The resilience of the U.S. economy, a sustained recovery in Japan and a strong Chinese
economy, showing no signs of waning, are all reasons to be positive on both global economic
prospects and the expected increase in base metals demand.

On the supply side, capacity constraints, low inventory levels, higher energy costs, the
likelihood of production disruptions and a shortage of mining materials and labour will continue to
be market supportive. Despite the notion that high prices should spur investment activity, the
supply response has been muted and there is little sign of an output surge or even large amounts
of new capacity coming on stream.

Another positive factor, which cannot be underestimated, is that investment funds are viewing
base metals favourably, and expect the market to be stronger for longer. For 2006, strong
fundamentals underlying support for above-average base metals prices are forecast.

Expectations and outlooks with respect to metal market projections are subject to various risks
and assumptions. See “Forward-looking [nformation™ on page 63.

COPPER MARKET

The expected increase in global mine production in 2005 was hampered by a combination of plant
equipment failures, labour disputes and natural disasters. Copper mine production continued to
grow as high prices have encouraged all producers to maximize output. [n 2005, global mine
production is expected to be just over 15.3 million tonnes of contained copper. Mine output
growth continues to be driven by restarts and ongoing brownfield expansions triggered in late 2004
and early 2005.

The recovery in mine-concentrate output has allowed smelters to rebuild their depleted
concentrate stocks and increase operating rates. Despite a number of maintenance shutdowns and
production disruptions, smelter production increased 6.8% in 2005. The area of most rapid growth
in smelter capacity and output has been China and as its copper smelting and refining capacity
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domestic mine producticn growth.

On the metal side, 2005 marks the third consecutive year of a global refined copper market
deficit. LME stocks increased by only 43,675 tonnes to 92,225 tonnes at the end of 2005 from
48,550 tonnes at year end 2004. Historically high copper prices and sustained low copper
exchange inventories likely resuited in a significant de-stocking of refined metal inventories held by
producers and consumers. A first-time auctioning of copper by the Chinese SRB in November and
December (20,000 tonnes each), combined with deliveries made to exchange warehouses, failed
to put significant downward pressure on the copper price. The copper price averaged $1.67/b. in
2005, $0.37/1b. greater than the 2004 average of $1.30/Ib. Robust fundamentals and favourable
fund buying in 2005, propelied the copper price o a high of $2.11/ib. in December.

Looking at mine supply, despite the less-than-expected mine output growth in 2005, the
concentrate market recovered from critically low levels as mine production expanded. For 2006,
the concentrate market is forecast to be in surplus, as higher mine production is expected and
smelter capacity should remain scmewhat constrained. It is therefore expected that treatment and
refining charges should remain above long-term benchmark averages. Declining ore grades, high-
energy costs and equipment shortages should continue to act as constraints and put upward
pressure on the cash costs.

in 2006, giobat refined copper production is forecast to be in surplus for the first time in three
years. Global copper consumption growth is forecast to decline to 3.6% from 4.7% in 2005,
mainly reflecting moderating growth in both China and the U.S. The forecast surplus of 419,000
tonnes of refined metal pales in comparison to the cumulative deficit of 1.4 million tonnes
experienced over the past three years. This cumulative deficit contributed to the dramatic
reduction in exchange inventories witnessed over those years. Until exchange inventories begin
rebuilding and maintaining more normal levels, higher copper prices should continue to prevail.

NICKEL MARKET

The strong demand conditions experienced in the first half of 2005 quickly turned around in the
third quarter as stainless steel mills initiated a period of heavy de-stocking for the balance of the
year. Nickel prices averaged $7.20/lb. in the first haif of the year, but with prolonged shutdowns
and cutbacks at the stainless steel mills, nickel prices entered a temporary period of decline
averaging $6.17/Ib. during the second half. For the year, nickel prices averaged $6.69/Ib., a 7%
increase over the 2004 average. With nickel producers operating at close to capacity in the first
half of the year, surging demand had to be met from LME inventories, which declined from
20,898 tonnes at the start of the year to a low of 4,926 tonnes by mid-May. The fall-off in
demand from the stainless steel sector in the latter part of 2005, resulted in LME stocks creeping
back up to end the year at 36,042 tonnes.

While demand for nickel was strong overall in the first half of the year, an imbalance developed
in stainless steel supply/demand fundamentals by mid-year leading to rising stock levels, declining
prices and reduced margins for the mills, precipitating numerous stainless steel production cuts.
With the ramp-up of significant new Chinese stainless steel capacity, this curtailed the need for
stainless steel imports from Western producers. The net effect was reduced primary nicket
consumption and increased stainiess steel scrap availability. Consequently, global stainless steel
production estimates for 2005 were at the same level as 2004. In addition, the trend towards
substitution out of nickel bearing stainless steel grades continued during 2005, as sustained high
nickel prices have driven stainless steel mills to switch to greater production of non- or lower
nicke! bearing grades of stainless steel.

Other nickel consuming sectors are estimated to have grown by 6%, supported by strong high
nickel alloy and battery demand. Robust demand is being seen from all end-use sectors across all
geographical regions.

As a result of nickel producers pushing their utilization rates, increased production glitches and
maintenance outages were experienced in 2005, World nickel production is forecast to have
increased by only 1.2% over 2004 given that producers were running near full capacity leaving
little room to raise output. Overall, a 15,000 tonne supply/demand surplus was forecast for 2005.

Based on technical analysis, the stainless steel market is anticipated to rebound sometime
during the first half of 2006, in line with the accelerating momentum of the industrial production
cycle. With a rebound in stainiess steel production and continued healthy non-stainless demand,
total nickel consumption is expected to grow by over 7% and total global nickel supply is forecast
to increase by 6% with a projected balanced market for the year.
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For the remainder of this decade, it is expected that the nickel market will continue to benefit
from constrained supply, strong demand driven by Chinese stainless steel plant expansions, and
limited major greenfield nickel projects coming on stream.

ZINC MARKET

LME zinc prices started 2005 at $0.55/1b., then fluctuated between $0.53/Ib. and $0.65/1b. for
most of the year before rising strongly in the fourth quarter to a high of $0.87/b. on the final day
of the year. The LME cash-settlement zinc price averaged $0.63/Ib. in 2005, 31% higher than
the average of $0.48/Ib. in 2004. Prices gained strength on expectations that the ongoing
supply/demand deficit may not be alleviated by new mine supply and available metal stocks.

Oversupply and historically low zinc prices at the start of the decade led to the depletion and
closure of many mines, and even the demise of some companies. Meanwhile, demand for zinc
metal increased, driven by growth in China and the developing world. The result has been not
enough zinc mine concentrates to feed zinc smelters, and insufficient new metal to satisfy zinc
consumption, in turn driving zinc prices higher. Since 2002, the recovery in global economic
activity and industrial output has led to a resurgence in zinc demand, especially from the steel
galvanizing sector. Leading all regions has been China, where zinc demand rose approximately
11% in 2005. Demand for zinc metal in the United States declined temporarily as high steel
inventories were worked down.

While zinc smelting capacity has continued to expand, mainly in China, actual zinc metal
production has only increased by approximately 2% worldwide in 2005, due to the extremely short
supply of concentrates from mines. In China, the tight global zinc concentrates market, combined
with accelerating domestic demand, resulted in China remaining a net importer of zinc metal for
the second year in a row, a significant change from historically being a large zinc metal exporter.
With global metal demand outweighing supply, metal steadily flowed out of LME warehouses for
most of the year except for the delivery in June of just over 100,000 tonnes of previously
unreported stocks. Overall, LME stocks dropped at an average of roughly 20,000 tonnes per
month. For 2005, LME stocks plummeted a net 235,575 tonnes to close at 393,550 tonnes by
the end of the year. The global refined zinc supply/demand balance is estimated to have been in
deficit by 293,000 tonnes in 2005.

ALUMINUM MARKET

The LME cash-settlement aluminum price averaged $0.85/Ib. in 2005, a 9% increase over the
average of $0.78/lb. in 2004. However, the price was somewhat volatile throughout the year. The
LME aluminum cash price opened the year 2005 at $0.83/Ib. The low point of $0.76/1b. was
reached in June. By the end of the year the price was at a sixteen-year high of $1.03/Ib.

Aluminum’s supply-demand fundamentals were essentially balanced in 2005. LME warehouse
inventories were 695,000 tonnes at the beginning of 2005. By year's end this stockpile had
decreased to 645,000 tonnes. This decline in LME stocks was offset by combined increases of
122,000 tonnes in NYMEX warehouse stocks and [Al inventories.

Both the Chinese and North American economies are expected to support strong demand again
during 2006. Effective January 1, 2005, China began applying an export tax on aluminum,
copper, and nickel exports. China is expected to double the tax on primary aluminum exports to
10% in early 2006, in a further move to cool domestic investment in the energy-intensive
aluminum sector. Given that the country continues to be a significant exporter of aluminum, the
export tax should help to slow the growth of Chinese aluminum production and exports — causing
inefficient Chinese producers to close or consolidate. Additionally, Chinese smelters are in
discussions to curtail aluminum production by 10% (600,000 to 700,000 tonnes) in 2006, in an
effort to combat the escalating price of alumina. If they carry through with this plan, it should add
upward pressure to the aluminum price.

There has been a dramatic shift in the cost base associated with the production of primary
aluminum. While virtually all raw material and energy costs have risen significantly, the cost
component increases impacting aluminum smelters the most are electrical power and alumina.
Together, they account for over two-thirds of total production costs. Global spot-alumina prices
increased almost 50% during 2005, from $400/tonne to almost $600/tonne. Power is much more
of a focalized issue, Smelters faced with renegotiating power contracts, most notably in the U.S.
and Europe, have faced substantial cost increases or even lack of available supply. In some cases,
the result is permanent closure of the smelters in question.
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number, for the past two years and will likely continue above this rate through to 2010. The HVAC
Fin Stock market in the U.S., Falconbridge’s largest flat-rolled aluminum product, is expected to
grow by 5 to 10% in 2006, mainly due to increased U.S. government mandated improvements in
efficiency ratings of residential air-conditioners.

OUTSTANDING SHARES

As at December 31, 2005, Falconbridge’s issued and outstanding shares and securities were
as follows:

Name of new Falconbridge Security Trading Symbol Shares Outstanding
Common Shares! FAL.LV, FAL 370,688,138
Preferred Shares, Series 1 N/A 89,835
Preferred Shares, Series 2 FAL.PR.A 4,787,283
Preferred Shares, Series 3 FAL.PR.B 3,122,882
Preferred Shares, Series F FAL.PR.F 3,246,057
Preferred Shares, Series G FAL.PR.G 8,753,943
Preferred Shares, Series H FAL.PR.H 6,000,000
Junior Preference Shares, Series 12 FAL.PR.X 11,999,899
Junior Preference Shares, Series 22 FAL.PR.Y 11,999,899
Junior Preference Shares, Series 32 FAL.PR.Z 5,999,903

1. Falconbridge common shares trade on the Toronto and New York Stock Exchanges under the symbols FAL.LY and FAL, respectively.
Fatconbridge common shares also trade in U.S. dollars on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol FAL.LV.U.

2. 8,000,000 juniar preference shares, series (X), 8,300,000 junior preference shares, series (Y) and 4,000,000 junior preference shares,
series (Z) were redeemed on August 11, 2005, as previously announced,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Falconbridge uses financial and other instruments in the following instances:

Forefgn Currency Exposure

Falconbridge may use forward foreign exchange and option contracts to hedge the effect of
exchange rate changes on identifiable foreign currency exposures. Falconbridge may hedge up to
50% of its current-year Canadian dollar operating cost for the next two years and 25% of the
subsequent three years. No significant foreign exchange hedge contracts were in place at
December 31, 2005.

Falconbridge may enter into futures and forward contracts for the purchase or sale of currencies
not designated as hedges. These contracts would be carried at estimated fair values and gains or
losses arising from the changes in the market values of these contracts would be recognized in the
earnings of the period in which the changes occur.

Commodity Price Exposure

Generally, Falconbridge does not hedge the price it realizes on the sale of its own production and
accepts realizations based on market prices prevailing around the time of delivery of metals to
customers. Under certain circumstances, Falconbridge enters into futures and option contracts to
hedge the effect of price changes on a portion of the raw materials it purchases on a custom
processing or resale hasis. Gains and losses on these contracts are reported as a component of the
related transactions. Designated contracts, meeting the definition for hedge accounting under
GAAP, are not recorded. Falconbridge may also enter into futures and forward contracts for the
purchase or sale of commodities not designated as hedges. These contracts are carried at
estimated fair values. Gains or losses arising from the changes in the market values of these
contracts are recognized in the earnings of the period in which the changes occur.

Interest-rate Management

Falconbridge also enters into interest rate swap agreements, including foreign exchange cross-
currency swaps, to modify the interest characteristics of its outstanding debt. The differential to be
paid or received, for interest rate swaps for which Falconbridge receives hedge accounting, is
accrued and recognized as an adjustment to interest expense related to the debt. A summary of
these positions is tabled opposite:
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Interest rate swaps (notional principal amount in $ millions) Total

Maturity (2006) $ 325
Maturity (2008) 136
Maturity (2011) 300
Maturity (2012) ' 350
Maturity (2015) 550
Fair valug? 54

1. Includes a cross-currency interest rate swap (with a notional amount of $111 million) designated as a hedge of a Canadian dollar
debenture. The total fair value of this instrument at December 31, 2005 was $47 miliion of which $39 million related to the currency
component of the swap and $8 million related to the interest companent.

2. Includes the fair value of $39 million related to the currency component of the cross currency interest rate swap discussed in Note 1 above.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Falconbridge does not have any unconsolidated affiliates. The Company does not enter into off-
balance-sheet arrangements with special purpose entities in the normal course of business. Its only
significant off-balance-sheet arrangements are the Canadian dollar expenditure hedges discussed
under the “Financial Instruments and Other Instruments” section of this document.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related-party transactions for the year ended of 2005 and the fourth quarter of 2005 are
summarized as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2005

($ millions) Product Service
Related Party Description Revenue Revenue  Purchases Receivables Payables

Noranda Income Fund  Processing &
administration

agreement $ 210 $65 $ — $ 44 $—
Noranda Income Fund  Trading activity — 3 35 — 11
Antamina Trading activity — — 260 — 65
Gramercy Trading activity — — 136 — 6
Coltahuasi Trading activity — — 109 — 25

Quarter ended December 31, 2005

($ millions) Product Service
Related Party Description Revenue Revenue  Purchases Receivables Payables

Noranda Income Fund  Processing &
administration

agreement $79 $15 $— $44 $—
Noranda income Fund  Trading activity — 1 11 — 11
Antamina Trading activity — — 82 — 65
Gramercy Trading activity — — 90 —_ 6
Collahuasi Trading activity — — 40 — 25

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Management is required to make estimates in preparing its financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. These estimates affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and fiabilities at the date of the financial state-
ments and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Changes to
these estimates would result in material changes to these line items, The critical accounting
estimates made by Falconbridge relate to the Company’s accounting for the following items:
- Property, plant and equipment

* The determination of mineral reserves

¢ Impairment assessments of long-lived assets

e Amortization of property, plant and equipment
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- Asset retirement obligations
=+ The determination of taxes

Property, Plant and Equipment

Included in operating capital assets of $6.8 billion at December 31, 2005, was primarily property,
plant and equipment. As such, the estimates used in accounting for property, plant and equipment
and the related depreciation and amortization charges are critical and have a material impact on
the Company’s financial condition and earnings. Property, plant and equipment and related
capitalized interest and development and pre-production expenditures are recorded at cost and are
subject to impairment testing as discussed below.

Determination of Mineral Reserves

One of the most significant estimates which impacts the accounting for property, plant and
equipment and the related depreciation and amortization, is the estimate of proven and probable
mineral reserves. The process of estimating reserves is complex, requiring significant assumptions,
estimates and decisions regarding economic (i.e. metal prices, production costs, and exchange
rates), engineering, geophysical and geological data. A material revision to existing reserve estimates
could occur because of changes to any of these inputs. Changes in reserves could result in
impairment of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and a change in amortization
expense.

Impairment Assessments of Long-lived Assets
We review and evaluate the Company’s long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Asset impairment is
considered to exist if the total estimated future cash flows on an undiscounted basis are less than
the carrying amount of the asset. An impairment loss is measured and recorded based on
recoverable minerals, expected commodity prices (considering current and historical prices, price
trends and related factors), production levels, capital and reclamation costs, and are all based on
detailed life-of-mine plans. The term “recoverable minerals” refers to the estimated amount of
metal that will be obtained from proven and probable ore/mineral reserves, after taking into account
losses during ore processing and treatment. Significant management judgement is invoived in
estimating these factors, which include inherent risks and uncertainties. The assumptions
Falconbridge uses are consistent with its internal planning. Management pericdically evaluates and
updates the estimates based on the conditions that influence these factors. The variability of these
factors depends on a number of conditions, including uncertainty about future events, and thus
accounting estimates may change from period to period. |f other assumptions and estimates had
been used in the current period, the asset balances could have been materially impacted. If
management uses different assumptions or if different conditions occur in future periods, future
operating results could be materially impacted.

in estimating future cash flows, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of future cash flows from other asset groups,
taking into consideration movements of intermediate products to ensure the utilization of available
capacity across the Company’s operations. All assets at a particular operation are considered
together for purposes of estimating future cash flows.

Amortization of Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is based on the estimated service lives of the assets
(4-40 years), calculated primarily on a straight-line basis for metallurgical operations and on a
units-of-production method for mining operations. Resource properties are depleted and pre-
production and mine development expenditures are amaortized on a units-of-production method.
Units-of-production method is defined as tonnes milled during the period over proven and probable
are reserves at the start of the period. Construction in progress will be depreciated once the project
is substantially completed.

The most critical estimates which impact the above accounting policy are the estimated
quantities of proven and probable mineral reserves which are the underlying bases for the
calculation for the units-of-production method. Changes in the quantity of reserves would result in
changes in amortization expense in the periods subsequent to the revision.
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Employee Future Benefits

Assets are valued at current market value. The expected return on plan assets, currently 7%, is
based on current bond yields and expected long-term rate of return on equities. The long-term rate
of return on assets assumption is reviewed on an annual basis.

Liabilities are determined as a present value of future anticipated cash flows using a discount
rate based on corporate AA bond yields at the valuation date and an inflation expectation
consistent with the corporate AA bond yield curve. Differences between the estimated future
results and actual future results are amortized (to the extent that the cumulative experience gain or
loss is in excess of the permitted 10% corridor under Canadian GAAP) over the expected average
remaining service life of the active members (EARSL). This 10% corridor represents 10% of the
greater of the post-retirement benefits obligations and the fair value of plan assets. The return on
assets assumption and the discount rate, salary and inflation assumptions used to value the
liabilities are reviewed annually and are determined based on a consistent framework from year to
year. The most significant risk is that the assumption wifl prove to be either too high or too low in
the long term. 1t is reasonable to assume that there will be a significant variation between the
assumptions (which are set within the framework of a fong-term commitment) and actual
experience in any one year, but are expected to produce an appropriate reflection of costs over the
fong term.

For post-employment benefits other than pensions, the discount rate is the same as for
pensions. The inflation rate assumed for medical costs is based on the Company's history of
healthcare spending. The assumption for the ultimate health care trend rates relates to the overall
economic trends.

We currently estimate that a 0.5% increase or decrease in the return on assets assumption
would result in a corresponding $10-million increase or decrease in annual pension expense.
Changes to the return on asset assumption would have no significant effect on funding
requirements, as the Company's contributions are primarily determined based on the applicable
Canadian regulatory solvency funding requirements. Under this valuation methodology, liabilities
for solvency valuation are based on market bond yields, and the excess of liabilities over assets
must be amortized over a five-year period. We estimate that a 0.5% increase or decrease in the
discount rate assumption would result in a corresponding $1C-million increase or decrease in the
pension expense.

Asset Retirement Obligations

As a result of the Company's mining activities, we incur legal obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets, from the acquisition, construction, development or normal
operations of those assets, which an entity is required to settle as a result of an existing or enacted
law or contract. CICA 3110, which was adopted January 1, 2004, requires that, when a legal
obligation is incurred, we record the fair value of estimated asset retirement obligations and a
corresponding deferred charge presented as an asset grouped with property plant and equipment.
The liabilities are accreted to full value over time through a charge to earnings. The asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the associated long-lived asset on a straight-line basis. The fair
value of the obligation as of December 31, 2005 was $424 million.

The fair value of these obligations are determined by discounting the projected cash flows
required to settle the legal obligations at the Company's credit adjusted risk-free interest rate over
the time periods over which the obligations were incurred. The future cash flows required to settle
the obligations were determined by detailed engineering and environmental reviews assuming the
most probable outcome based on present facts, circumstances and legislation.

Critical estimates and judgement were made by management in the determination of the fair
value of the Company’s obligation. Cash outflows to settle these obligations will be incurred for
periods exceeding 50 years. Due to the combined effect of the uncertainty associated with such
extended time periods, the estimated discount and inflation factors, and potential changes to
applicable legislation, the fair value of the Company's asset retirement obligations could materially
change from period to period.

Income and Mining Taxes

The provision or relief for income taxes is calculated based on the expected tax treatment of
transactions recorded in the consolidated financial statements. The objectives of accounting for
income and mining taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the
current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that
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nave Deen recognized in tne consolidated rinancial statléments or tax returns. In determining both
the current and future components of income and mining taxes, we interpret tax legislation in a
variety of jurisdictions as well as make assumptions about the expected timing of the reversal of
future tax assets and liabilities. If the Company’s interpretation differs from those of tax authorities
or if the timing of reversals is not as anticipated, the provision or relief for income and mining
taxes could increase or decrease in future periods. In estimating deferred income and mining tax
assets, a valuation allowance is determined to reduce the future income tax assets to the amount
that is more likely than not to be realized.

RISK FACTORS

Take-over Bid

The Company is currently the subject of a take-aver bid by Inco Limited. Upon successful
completion of this transaction, there could be significant changes to the business, operations and
management of the Company. Should the take-over not be completed, the Company expects to
continue operating as it has in the past and the anticipated benefits from the combination of
Inco and the Company, as previously discussed, would not occur,

Fluctuating Metal Prices

Falconbridge's earnings are affected by fluctuations in the prices of the metals the Company
produces. The prices are subject to volatile price movements over short periods of time.
Falconbridge generally does not hedge prices of the metals the Company produces. Market prices
can be affected by numerous factors beyond the Company’s control, including expectations for
inflation, speculative activities, relative exchange rates to the U.S. dollar, production activities of
competitors, global and regional demand and supply, political and economic conditions including
availability of subsidies and tax incentives to competitors and production costs in major producing
regions. The prices for copper, nickel, zinc, aluminum or other metals produced by Falconbridge,
may decline significantly from current levels. A reduction in the prices of one or more of these
metals could materially adversely affect the value and amount of the Company's reserves and
business, financial condition, liquidity and operating results.

Mining and Processing Risks

The business of mining and processing of metals is generally subject to a number of risks and
hazards, including unusual or unexpected geological conditions, ground conditions, phenomena
such as inclement weather conditions, floods and earthquakes and the handling of hazardous
substances, emissions of contaminants and other liability exposures. Such risks and hazards could
result in personal injury or death, damage to, or destruction of, mineral properties, processing or
production facilities or the environment, monetary losses and possible legal liability. Falconbridge’s
business, financial condition, liquidity and operating results could be materially adversely affected
if any of these developments were to occur.

Although Falconbridge maintains insurance which Falconbridge believes is consistent with
mining industry practice to the extent available to cover some of these risks and hazards, no
assurance can be given that such insurance will continue to be available, or that it will be
available at economically feasible premiums. Falconbridge’s property, business interruption and
liability and other insurance may not provide sufficient coverage for losses related to these or other
risks or hazards. In such event, Falconbridge’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

Environmental Risks

Environmental legislation affects nearly all aspects of the Company’s operations worldwide. This
type of legislation requires Falconbridge to obtain operating licenses and imposes standards and
controls on activities relating to mining, exploration, development, production, closure and the
refining, distribution and marketing of copper, nickel, zinc and other metals products. Environ-
mental assessments are required before initiating most new products or undertaking significant
changes to existing operations. Compliance with environmental legisiation can require significant
expenditures, including expenditures for clean-up costs and damages arising out of contaminated
properties. In addition to current requirements, Falconbridge expects that additional environmental
regulations will likely be implemented to protect the environment and quality of life, given issues
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of sustainable development and other similar requirements which governmental and supra-
governmental organizations and other bodies have been pursuing. Some of the issues currently
under review by environmental regulatory agencies include reducing or stabilizing various
emissions, including sulphur dioxide and greenhouse gas emissions, mine reclamation and
restoration, and water, air and soil quality and absolute liability for spills and exceedences.

Canada ratified the Kyoto Protocol to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate
Change in late 2002. The protocol entered into force in February 2005. Various levels of
government in Canada are developing a number of policy measures in order to meet Canada’s
emission reduction obligations under the protocol. While the impact of the protocel and measures
cannot be quantified at this time, the likely effect will be to increase costs for fossil fuels,
electricity and transportation, restrict industrial emission levels, impose added costs for emissions
in excess of permitted levels and increase costs for monitoring, reporting and financial accounting.
Compliance with these initiatives could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition, liquidity and operating results.

Further changes in environmental laws, new information on existing environmental conditions or
other events, including legal proceedings brought based upon such conditions or an inability to
obtain necessary permits, could have a material adverse effect on product demand, product quality
and methods of production and distribution or could require increased financial reserves or
compliance expenditures or otherwise have a material adverse effect on Falconbridge's business,
financial condition, liquidity and operating results.

Failure to comply with environmental legisiation may result in the imposition of fines and
penalties, liability for clean-up costs, damages and the loss of important permits. There can be no
assurance that Falconbridge will at all times be in compliance with all environmental regulations or
that steps required to bring the Company into compliance would not materially adversely affect
Falconbridge's business, financial condition, liquidity or operating results.

In view of the uncertainties concerning future removal and site restoration costs on
Falconbridge's properties, the ultimate costs for future removal and site restoration to Falconbridge
could differ from the amounts estimated. The estimate for this future liability is subject to change
based on amendments to applicable laws and legislation, the nature of ongoing operations and
technological innovations. Future changes, if any, due to their nature and unpredictability, could
have a significant impact and would be reflected prospectively as a change in an accounting
estimate. In addition, regulatory authorities in various jurisdictions around the world may require
Falconbridge to post financial security to secure in whole or in part future reclamation and
restoration obligations in such jurisdictions. In some instances, Falconbridge has already provided
this security. In other instances, such security may be required to be posted upon the occurrence
of certain events including if Falconbridge ceases to maintain a minimum investment grade credit
rating, if the regulatory authority ceases to accept alternative forms of comfort to secure the
obligation or as a property nears the end of its operation. Although the posting of this security does
not increase the future reclamation and restoration costs (other than costs associated with posting
such security), a portion of Falconbridge’s credit may be required to back up these commitments,
which could adversely affect Falconbridge’s liquidity.

Labour Relations

Collective agreements covering unionized employees at Norandal-Newport, St. Ann (production and

maintenance employees), and Gramercy were all renewed in 2005. At the Kidd Metallurgical site,

a collective agreement was signed with the CAW after a one-month strike in October 2005.
Eleven collective agreements will expire in 2006:
- General Smelting (Montreal) - January 31

Brunswick mine (Bathurst) — February 28

Brunswick smelter (Bathurst) - February 28

Horne smelter (Rouyn) — March 1

Bulk Handling Operation (Bathurst) - March 31

Raglan mine (Rouyn) - Aprit 30

Lomas Bayas mine (Chile) - April 30

Nikkelverk refinery (Norway) — May 31

Antamina mine (Peru) - July 24

Norandal — Salisbury rolling mill (Salisbury) - November 20

Altonorte smelter (Chile) — December 12
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Operators), CCR, CCR (Security), Noranda Recycling — Roseville {two agreements), Noranda
Recycling - San Jose, Sudbury Operations {Production & Maintenance), Sudbury Operations
(Office, Clerical & Technical), Collahuasi, New Madrid, Norandal - Newport, Gramercy, St. Ann
(Production & Maintenance) and Kidd Metallurgical division are currently in place and will expire
between 2007 and 2008.

Uncertainty of Reserve Estimates and Production Estimates

Falconbridge’s reported mineral reserves as of December 31, 2005 are estimated quantities of
proven and probable ore that under present and anticipated conditions can be legatly and
economically mined and processed by the extraction of their mineral content. Falconbridge
determines the amount of mineral reserves in accordance with the requirements of the applicable
Canadian securities regulatory authorities and established mining standards. Falconbridge does not
use outside sources to verify its reserves. The volume and grade of reserves actually recovered and
rates of production from Falconbridge’s present mineral reserves may be less than geological
measurements of the reserves. Market price fluctuations in nickel, copper, other metals and
exchange rates, and changes in operating and capital costs, may in the future render certain
mineral reserves uneconomic to mine. In addition, short-term operating factors refating to the
mineral reserves, such as the need for orderly development of ore bodies or the processing of new
or different ore grades, may cause mineral reserves to be modified or Falconbridge’s operations to
be unprofitable in any particular fiscal period.

No assurance can be given that the estimated amount of ore will be recovered or that it will be
recovered at the prices assumed by Falconbridge in determining reserves. Mineral reserve
estimates are based on limited sampling and, consequently, are uncertain because the samples
may not be representative of the entire orebody. As more knowledge and understanding of the
orebody are obtained, the reserve estimates may change significantly, either positively or negatively.

Falconbridge prepares estimates of future production for particular operations. These production
estimates are based on, among other things, reserve estimates; assumptions regarding ground
conditions and physical characteristics of ores, such as hardness and presence or absence of
particular metallurgical characteristics; and estimated rates and costs of mining and processing.
Falconbridge's actual production may vary from estimates for a variety of reasons, including actual
ore mined varying from estimates of grade, tonnage, dilution and metallurgical and other
characteristics; short-term operating factors relating to the mineral reserves, such as the need for
sequential development of ore bodies and the processing of new or different ore grades; risks and
hazards associated with mining; natural phenomena, such as inclement weather conditions, floods,
and earthquakes; and unexpected labour shortages or strikes. No assurance can be given that
production estimates will be achieved. Failure to achieve production estimates could have a
material adverse impact on Falconbridge’s future cash flows, earnings, results of operations and
financial condition.

Exchange Rate Fluctuations

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates, principally the Canadian/U.S. dollar exchange rate and, to
a lesser extent, Chilean peso, Peruvian sole, Norwegian kroner and euro exchange rates against the
U.S. dollar, can significantly impact Falconbridge's earnings and cash flows. These exchange rates
have fluctuated substantially over time, including over the last five years. Most of Falconbridge’s
revenues and debt are denominated in U.S. dollars, whereas a significant portion of operating costs
at Falconbridge's Canadian sites are incurred in Canadian dollars. Furthermore, a portion of
Chitean operating costs are peso-denominated and Nikkelverk's costs are incurred in Norwegian
kroner. Falconbridge has been reporting its financial results in U.S. dollars since July 1, 2003.
Fluctuations in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Canadian dollar and between the
U.S. dollar and other currencies may give rise to foreign currency exposure and gains and losses,
either favourable or unfavourable, which may in the future materially impact Falconbridge's
financial results. Falconbridge, from time to time, may hedge a portion of its currency exposures
and requirements to try fo limit any adverse effect of exchange rate fluctuations with respect to
Falconbridge's Canadian dollar and other costs, but there can be no assurance that such hedges
will eliminate the potential material adverse effect of such fluctuations.

Interest Rate and Counterparty Risk
Faiconbridge's exposure to changes in interest rates resuits from investing and borrowing activities
undertaken to manage Falconbridge’s liquidity and capital requirements. Falconbridge has entered
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into interest rate swap agreements to manage the interest rate risk associated with a portion of its
fixed-rate debt. The interest rate swap changes exposure to interest risk by effectively converting a
portion of fixed-rate debt to a floating rate. Falconbridge may elect in the future to enter inta
interest rate swaps to effectively convert floating-rate debt to fixed-rate debt or to enter into
additional fixed-rate to floating-rate swaps. There can be no assurance that Falconbridge will not
be materially adversely affected by interest rate changes in the future, notwithstanding its use of
interest rate swaps.

In addition, Falconbridge’s interest rate swaps, metals hedging and foreign currency and energy
risk management activities expose us to the risk of default by the counter-parties to such
arrangements. Any such default could have a material adverse effect on Falconbridge’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Energy Supply and Prices

Falconbridge's operations and facilities are intensive users of natural gas, electricity and oil. The
procurement dynamics of these energy types are becoming more connected as supply and demand
conditions become more interdependent on a global basis. Uncontrollable factors such as strong
demand from the Asia-Pacific region, political, regulatory and economic uncertainties, and the cost
of emissions from fossil fuels, as well as problems related to local production and delivery
conditions, continue to put upward pressure on prices. Falconbridge’s supply contracts are
governed by standard energy risk management principles, which ensure that supply, price and
credit risks are managed effectively.

The security of energy supply is of primary importance. Falconbridge’s business operations
could be adversely affected, including loss of production and damage to its plants and equipmeht,
if, even temporarily, the supply of energy to one or more of its facilities was interrupted.
Additionally, prolonged loss of supply could materially adversely affect the Company's business,
financial condition, liguidity and results of operations. As a significant portion of Falconbridge’s
costs relate to energy consumption, Falconbridge's earnings are directly related to fluctuations in
the cost of natural gas, electricity and oil. The current trend of increasing energy prices is expected
to continue and as a result there is an increased focus within the operations on the management of
energy use and the impact of rising energy costs on financial performance.

Foreign Operations
Some of Falconbridge's activities and related assets are located in countries outside North America,
some of which may be considered to be, or may become, politically or economically unstable.
Exploration or development activities in such countries may require protracted negotiations with
host governments, international organizations and other third parties, including non-governmental
organizations, and are frequently subject to economic and political considerations, such as taxation,
nationalization, inflation, currency fluctuations and governmental regulation and approval
requirements, which could adversely affect the economics of projects. These projects and
investments could be adversely affected by war, civil disturbances and activities of foreign
governments which limit or disrupt markets, restrict the movement of funds or supplies or result in
the restriction of contractual rights or the taking of property without fair compensation.
Falconbridge performs a thorough risk assessment on a country-by-country basis when consider-
ing foreign activities and attempts to conduct business and financial affairs so as to protect against
potitical, legal, regulatory and economic risks applicable to operations in the varicus countries
where the Company operates, but there can be no assurance that Falconbridge will be successful in
so protecting the Company. These projects and investments could also be adversely affected by
changes in Canadian laws and regulations relating to foreign trade, investment and taxation.

Market Access

Global and regional demand for metals is influenced by regulatory and voluntary initiatives to
restrict or eliminate the use of certain metals in particular products or applications. Impacts of
such measures can be global, creating non-tariff barriers to international trade and affecting
product design and specifications on a global basis. Such measures could affect the balance
between supply and demand and depress metal prices and treatment/refining charges. Metals with
a limited number of major applications are most susceptible to changes in demand and price in
response 1o such measures.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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Production Technology

Falconbridge believes that the technology used to produce and process metals is significantly
advanced and, in part due to high investment costs, subject only to slow technological change.
However, there can be no assurance that more economical production or processing technology will
be developed, nor that the ecanomic conditions in which current technology is applied will remain
the same.

Legal Proceedings

The nature of Falconbridge’s business subjects the Company to numerous regulatory investigations,
claims, lawsuits and other proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company’s business. The
results of these legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty. There can be no assurance
that these matters will not have a material adverse effect on results of operations in any future
period, and a substantial judgment could have a material adverse impact on Falconbridge's
business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Sulphuric Acid

Sulphur dioxide is a by-product from the smelting of copper, zinc, nickel and lead sulphide
concentrates. Falconbridge captures sulphur dioxide to minimize acid rain emissions, and converts
it into sulphuric acid. Due to increasingly strict environmental standards worldwide for sulphur
dioxide emissions, involuntary production of sulphuric acid by smelters is growing. The balance of
world acid production is largely based on elemental sulphur, whose supply is now a by-product of
oil and gas production, and growing more rapidly than demand. Long term, these factors may make
it more difficult to obtain satisfactory prices for sulphuric acid. However, Falconbridge's production
of sulphuric acid cannot be reduced in response to low prices, or dropping sales volumes, without
a corresponding reduction in production of metals.

Raw Material Procurement Risks

Procurement of raw materials involves the risks typically connected with commercial transactions,
which can include trade barriers, political instability and problems due to focal production
conditions. In addition, Falconbridge’s supply contracts provide that suppliers of concentrate may
be released from their delivery obligations if certain “force majeure” events occur. Falconbridge's
business operations could be adversely affected, at least temporarily, if supplies of raw materials
are interrupted as a result of the imposition of trade barriers or other events and if Falconbridge
is unable, on short notice, to shift to alternative sources of supply. Falconbridge also processes
copper scrap, the availability of which in past years has been subject to significant fluctuations.
The availabitity of scrap, blister copper and other material the Company processes can be
significantly affected by competing demand from industrializing nations along with unforeseen
production and logistical disruptions.

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of December 31, 2005, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls
and procedures (as such term is defined under the rules adopted by the Canadian securities
regulatory authorities and by the U.S. Securities Exchange Commission) was carried out by our
management, under the supervision of, and with the participation of, our Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ") and Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ"). Based upon that evaluation, the CEQ and CFO
concluded that as of such date our disclosure controls and procedures were effective such that
information relating to us, including our consoclidated subsidiaries, required to be disclosed by us
in the reports we file or submit to such regulatory authorities (a) is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified under applicable securities laws and
{b} is accumulated and communicated to our management, incfuding our principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding disclosure.
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this Management's Discussion and Analysis are forward-looking
statements (as defined in applicable securities legislation). Examples of such statements include,
but are not limited to, statements concerning (i) our assessment of the outiook for metal markets in
2006, (ii) Inco's offer to acquire all of the common shares of Falconbridge Limited and the benefits
of such combination, (iii) our future financial requirements and funding of those requirements,

(iv) our expectations with respect to our development projects, (v) our production forecast for 2006,
(vi) our capital expenditure forecasts, and (vii) our dividend schedule. Inherent in forward-looking
statements are risks and uncertainties well beyond our ability to predict or control. Actual results
and developments are likely to differ, and may differ materially, from those expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements contained in this Management's Discussion and Analysis. Such
statements are based on a number of assumptions which may prove to be incorrect, including, but
not limited to, assumptions about the timing, steps to be taken and completion of Inco's offer to
acquire ail of our common shares, the ability to successfully compete against global metals and
mining and exploration companies by creating through such a combination an enterprise of
increased scale; strong demand for nickel, copper and other metals in emerging markets such as
China; approximately $350 million per annum in pre-tax operating and other synergies and cost
savings, and other benefits being realized based on the achievement of operational efficiencies from
restructuring, integration and other initiatives relating to the combination of Falconbridge and Inco;
the approvals or clearances required to be obtained by Inco and Falconbridge from regulatory and
other agencies and bodies being obtained in a timely manner; divestitures required by regulatory
agencies being acceptable and completed in a timely manner; there being limited costs, difficulties
or delays related to the integration of the Falconbridge’s operations with those of Inco; the timely
completion of the steps required to be taken for the eventual combination of the two companies;
business and economic conditions generally; exchange rates, energy and other anticipated and
unanticipated costs and pension contributions and expenses; the supply and demand for, deliveries
of, and the level and volatility of prices of, nickel, copper, aluminum, zinc and other primary metals
products and other metal products Inco and Falconbridge produce; the timing of the receipt of
remaining regulatory and governmental approvals for the development projects and other operations;
the continued availability of financing on appropriate terms for development projects; Falconbridge’s
costs of production and production and productivity levels, as well as those of its competitors;
market competition; mining, processing, expioration and research and development activities; the
accuracy of ore/mineral reserve estimates; premiums realized over LME cash and other benchmark
prices; tax benefits/charges; the resolution of environmental and other proceedings and the impact
on the combined company of various environmental regulations and initiatives; assumptions
concerning political and economic stability in countries or locations in which Falconbridge operates
or otherwise and the ability to continue to pay quarterly cash dividends in such amounts as
Falconbridge’s Board of Directors may determine in light of other uses for such funds and

other factors.

Inherent in those statements are known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors well
beyond the Company’s ability to control or predict. Some of these known risks and uncertainties
are outlined in filings by Falconbridge with applicable securities regulatory authorities, including in
Falconbridge’s annual information form. Readers are encouraged to consuit such filings. While
Falconbridge anticipates that subsequent events and developments may cause Falconbridge's views
to change, the Company specifically disclaims any obligation to update these forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements should not be relied upon as representing the
Company’s views as of any date subsequent to the date of this Management's Discussion and
Analysis. Although the Company has attempted to identify important factors that could cause
actual actions, events or results to differ materially from those described in forward-looking
statements, there may be other factors that cause actions, events or results not to be as
anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that forward-iooking statements will
prove to be accurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those
anticipated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-
looking statements. These factors are not intended to represent a complete list of the factors that
could affect Falconbridge and the combination of Inco and Falconbridge.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted principles. Financial statements are not precise
since they include certain amounts based on estimates and judgments. When alternative methods
exist, management has chosen those it deems most appropriate in the circumstances in order to
ensure that the consolidated financia! statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The financial information presented
elsewhere in the annual report is consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Falconbridge maintains adequate systems of internal accounting and administrative controls,
consistent with reasonable cost. Such systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial information is relevant and reliable, and that Falconbridge’s assets are appropriately
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its
responsibilities for financial reporting, and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying management’s discussion and analysis.
The Board carries out this responsibility principally through its Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board, and all of its members are non-management
directors. The Audit Committee meets periodically with management and the external auditors to
discuss internal controls, auditing matters and financial reporting issues, and to satisfy itself that
each party is properly discharging its responsibilities. The Audit Committee also reviews the
consolidated financial statements, management’s discussion and analysis, the external auditors’
report, and examines the fees and expenses for audit services, and considers the engagement or
reappointment of the external auditors. The Audit Committee reports its findings to the Board for its
consideration when approving the consolidated financial statements for issuance to the share-

holders. Ernst & Young, the external auditors, have full and free access to the Audit Committee.

7@ A ==z

Derek Pannell Steven Déuglas
President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer

February 22, 2006
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Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Faiconbridge Limited

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Falconbridge Limited (formerly Noranda Inc.)
as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the consolidated statements of income and retained
earnings (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

Shnat ;mﬂ?/ AP
Chartered Accountants

Toronto, Canada
February 7, 2006
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(US$ millions) 2005 2004
As at December 31 Notes Restated — Note 2
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 886 $ 884
Accounts receivable 19 1,007 948
Metals and other inventories 1,708 1,436
3,601 3,268
Operating capital assets 7 6,803 4,870
Development projects 1,707 1,166
Investments and other assets 9 307 324
$12,418 $ 9,628
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts and taxes payable 16 .and 19 $ 1,691 $ 1,265
Debt due within one year 10 353 570
2,044 1,835
Long-term debt 10, 11 and 12 3,474 2,858
Future income taxes 16 1,156 304
Asset retirement obligation, pension and
other provisions 13 659 595
Stockholders’ interests
Interests of other shareholders 14 54 1,197
Shareholders’ equity 11 and 15 5,031 2,839
$12,418 $ 9,628
Commitments and contingencies (notes 17 and 18)
(See accompanying notes)
On behalf of the Board:
e
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Derek Pannell, Director
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Consolidated Statements of Income and
Retained Earnings (Deficit)

Falconbridge Limited (Incorporated under the laws of Ontario) (formerly Noranda Inc.)

(US$ millions, except per share amounts) 2005 2004
Years ended December 31 Notes Restated ~ Note 2
Revenues $ 8,148 $ 6,764
Operating expenses
Mining, processing and refining costs 2,538 1,976
Purchased raw materials 3,235 2,904
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 555 493
6,328 5,373
Income generated by operating assets 1,820 1,391
Interest expense, net 10 152 . 120
Corporate and general administration 80 66
Research, development and exploration 59 47
Minority interest in earnings of subsidiaries 155 297
Income before underncted 1,374 861
Gain, net of restructuring costs and other 4 (17) (84)
Tax expense 16 511 351
Net income from continuing operations $ 880 $ 594
Loss on discontinued operations, net of tax 5 8 73
Net income $ 872 $ 521
Dividends on preferred shares 17 13
Net income attributable to common shares - basic 855 508

Net income per common share — basic

Continuing operations $ 2.54 $ 1.96

Discontinued operations {0.02) (0.25)
Net income per common share - basic $ 2.52 $ 1.71
Net income per common share - diluted

Continuing operations $ 2.52 $ 1.94

Discontinued operations (0.02) (0.24)
Net income per common share - diluted $ 2.50 $ 1.70
Basic weighted average number of shares 339,756,276 296,245,753
Diluted weighted average number of shares 346,173,501 303,458,182

Retained earnings {deficit)

Balance, as previously reported $ 288 $ (130}
Change in accounting poficy 2 (57) (38)
Balance, after accounting policy change 231 (168)
fncome 872 521
Dividends
Common (133) (110)
Preferred (17) (12}
Cost of shares repurchased in excess of their
stated value 12 (799} —
Batance, end of year 15 $ 154 $ 231

(See accompanying notes)
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(US$ miltions) 2005 2004
Years ended December 31 Notes Restated - Note 2
Cash realized from (used for}):
Operations
Net income $ 872 $ 521
Charges (credits) not affecting cash:
Depreciation and amortization 548 484
Future taxes 141 212
Minority interest 155 297
Foreign exchange, restructuring and other (66) (53)
1,650 1,461
Net change in accounts receivable, inventories
and payables (15) (277)
Cash from operations 1,635 1,184
‘ Investment activities
Capital investments (737) (666)
Investments and advances (27) 105
Proceeds on dispositions 4 and 5 93 6
Cash used in investment activities (671) (555)
Financing activities
Long-term debt, including current portion
fssued 551 344
Repaid (1,394) 470)
Issue of shares - common 15 49 23
Loan repayment under share purchase plan 15 3 —
Dividends paid (150) (122)
Issue of shares — minority shareholders, net 18 15
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (39) {36)
(962) (246)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2 383
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 884 501
$ 886 $ 884

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

(See accompanying notes)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements |

December 31, 2005 (US$ millions except as otherwise indicated)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATICN OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP") which are in conformity, in
all material respects, with United States generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP"),
except as described in Note 22. The consclidated financial statements include the accounts of
Falconbridge Limited (formerly Noranda Inc.) and all of its subsidiaries and joint ventures
(together, “Falconbridge” or “the Company”). Long-term investments in companies in which
Falconbridge has significant influence are accounted for on the basis of cost plus equity in
undistributed earnings since the dates of investment. The interests of the Company and Novicourt
Inc. (“Novicourt”) in their joint ventures are proportionately consolidated.

REPORTING CURRENCY AND TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The United States dollar (“U.S. dollar”) is adopted as the functional currency of Falconbridge’s
non-U.S. wholly-owned operations which reflects significant operational exposure to the U.S. dollar
and predominantly the U.S. dollar-based asset and investment base of the Company.

The assets and liabilities of Falconbridge’s self-sustaining operations having a functional
currency other than the U.S. dollar are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in
effect at the period end and revenues and expenses are translated at the average rate during the
period. Cumulative exchange gains and losses on translation of the Company’s net equity
investment in these operations are deferred as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Gains
or losses on foreign currency loans and transactions that are designated as hedges of a net
investment in self-sustaining foreign operations are reported in shareholders’ equity in the same
manner as translation adjustments.

Foreign currency balances and the financial statements of integrated foreign operations are
translated into U.S. dollars using the temporal method. Under the temporal method, foreign-
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
year end, and revenue and expenses (other than depreciation and amortization) at average rates of
exchange during the year. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange
rates and depreciation and amortization are translated at the same exchange rates as the assets to
which they relate. Exchange gains and losses arising on the translation of the accounts are
included in the consolidated statement of income.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on account, demand deposits and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less and are stated at cost, which approximates market
value. Cash and cash equivalents of $886 (2004 ~ $884) include $34 of restricted cash (2004 -
$35) as reserves related to the senior debt of Compafiia Minera Antamina S.A. (“Antamina").

VALUATION OF INVENTORIES

Mining and metalfurgical product inventories are valued at the lower of net realizable value and
average cost where costs are comprised of direct costs and an allocation of production overheads
and depreciation of production-related assets. Nickel, aluminum and fabricated product inventories
are valued at the lower of cost (determined on a first-in, first-out basis, comprised of direct costs
and an allocation of production overheads and depreciation of production-retated assets) and net
realizable value. inventories of operating supplies and raw materials are valued at the lower of
average direct acquisition cost and replacement value.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenues from the sale of base metals, aluminum and fabricated products and from by-product
materials are recorded at the time of sale, when the rights and obligations of ownership pass to
the buyer.

Under the terms of concentrate sales contracts with third parties, final prices for metals in the
concentrate are set based on the prevailing spot metal prices on a specified future date based on
the date that the concentrate is delivered. The Company records revenues under these contracts
based on the forward prices at the time of the sale and the revenues are adjusted at each
subsequent balance sheet date to the then current forward prices. Price changes for shipments
which at year end are awaiting final pricing could have a material effect on future revenues. As at
December 31, 2005, there was $403 in revenues that was awaiting final pricing.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Falconbridge enters into interest rate swap agreements to alter the interest characteristics of a
portion of its outstanding debt from a fixed to a floating-rate basis. These agreements involve the
receipt of fixed-rate amounts in exchange for floating-rate interest payments over the life of the
agreement without an exchange of the underlying principal amount. Falconbridge also enters into
interest rate swap agreements that invoive the payment of fixed-rate amounts in exchange for the
receipt of floating-rate interest over the life of the agreement. The differential paid or received on
the interest rate swap agreements that qualify for hedge accounting is reflected as an addition to
a reduction from interest on the statements of earnings. For those contracts that do not qualify
for hedge accounting, or for those which Falconbridge does not seek hedge accounting, the net
interest received/paid on those positions is shown as a component of gain, net of restructuring
costs and other, together with the change in fair value of those contracts during the period.

Falconbridge uses forward foreign exchange and option contracts to hedge the effect of
exchange rate changes on identifiable foreign currency exposures and futures, and forward and
option contracts to hedge the effect of price changes on a portion of the commodities it sells.
Gains and losses on these contracts are reported as a component of the related transactions. Gains
and losses on early termination of hedging contracts are deferred until the hedged items are
recognized in earnings. From time to time, Falconbridge enters into futures and forward contracts
for the purchase or sale of commodities and currencies not related to production, or not designated
as hedges. These contracts are carried at estimated fair values and gains or losses arising from the
changes in the market values of these contracts are recognized in the earnings of the period in
which the changes occur.

Falconbridge also uses cross-currency swap agreements which are used to hedge the interest
rate risk and foreign currency exposures related to its non-U.S. dollar-denominated debt. Gains or
losses on these contracts are accounted for in the same manner as the interest rate swap
agreements and forward exchange contracts discussed above.

Financial instruments designated as hedges are tested for effectiveness on a quarterly basis.
Gains and losses on those contracts that are proven to be effective are reported as a component of
the retated transaction. Falconbridge uses the critical terms method and regression analysis to
assess the hedge effectiveness of interest rate swaps, and uses match-terms and the dollar-offset
approach to assess the hedge effectiveness of its foreign exchange contracts.

Falconbridge formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management abjective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives to specific firm commitments or
forecasted transactions.

Falconbridge does not consider the credit risk associated with its financial instruments to be
significant. Interest rate swaps, foreign currency contracts and commodity hedge contracts are
maintained with high-quality counterparties, and Falconbridge does not anticipate that any
counterparty will fail to meet its obligations.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is based on the estimated service lives of the assets
(4 to 40 years), calculated primarily on a straight-line basis for metallurgical operations and on a
unit-of-production basis for mining operations. Resources properties are depleted and pre-
production and mine development expenditures are amortized over a unit-of-production method.
Depreciation and amortization under the unit-of-production method is measured as the net book
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value of the related asset multiplied by the ratio of tonnes milled during the period over proven
and probable reserves at start of the period. Construction in progress will be depreciated once the
project is substantially completed.

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Asset retirement obligations are recognized when incurred and recorded as liabilities at fair value.
The amount of the liability is subject to re-measurement at each reporting period. The liability is
accreted over time through periodic charges to earnings. In addition, the asset retirement cost is
capitalized as part of the asset’s carrying value and amortized over the estimated life of the mine.
The key assumptions on which the fair value of the asset retirement obligations is based includes
the estimated future cash flows, the timing of those cash flows and the credit-adjusted risk-free
rate or rates on which the estimated cash flows have been discounted.

The asset retirement obligation and closure costs may change materially based on future
changes in operations, costs of reclamation and closure activities, regulatory requirements and the
outcome of legal proceedings.

PRE-PRCDUCTION COSTS

Pre-production costs related to major projects are deferred until the facilities achieve commercial
production or are deemed to be uneconomic. These deferred costs are amortized on a unit-of-
production method over the estimated useful life of the project or are written off when the project
is determined to be uneconomic.

ASSET VALUATION

The Company assesses long-lived assets, such as operating capital assets, for recoverability
whenever indicators of impairment exist. When the carrying value of a long-lived asset is greater
than its net recoverable value as determined on an undiscounted basis, an impairment 10ss is
recognized to the extent that its fair value, measured as the discounted cash flows over the life of
the asset when quoted market prices are not readily available, is below the asset’s carrying value.

EXPLORATION

Mining exploration expenditures are charged against current earnings unless they relate to
properties that have been subjected to sufficient pre-feasibility work that indicates future mine
production is reasonably certain. Gains on the sale of mining exploration properties or recoveries of
costs previously written off are credited against exploration expense.

INCOME AND PRODUCTION TAXES

Current taxes are recognized for the estimated income and mining taxes payable for the current year.
Future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and
accounting bases of assets and liabilities as well as for the benefit of losses available to be carried

forward to future years for tax purposes that are more likely than not to be realized. Future taxes
are measured using the tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected
to reverse or the losses to be realized.

INTEREST

Interest incurred is charged to earnings, except for interest that can be identified with a major
capital expenditure program. Under the policy, interest is capitalized as it arises from indebtedness
incurred to finance major projects, either directly or indirectly, until the project achieves
commercial production,

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFIT PLANS

The cost of retirement benefits and certain post-employment benefits are recognized as the
benefits are earned by the employees. Falconbridge uses the accrued benefit method pro-rated on
fength of service and management’s best estimate assumptions to value its pensions and other
retirement benefits. Assets are valued at fair value for the purpose of calculating the expected
return on plan assets. Past service costs from plan amendments are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the collective agreements being ratified. The excess of the net actuarial gain
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amortized over the expected average remaining service life of active employees.

Under its defined contribution retirement savings program, Falconbridge makes payments based
on employee earnings and partially matches employee contributions, to a defined maximum.
Employees may receive profit sharing credits based on earnings.

When a defined benefit plan gives rise to an accrued benefit asset, Falconbridge recognizes a
valuation aliowance for the excess of the adjusted benefit asset over the expected future benefit to
be realized from the plan asset. Changes in the allowance are included in the determination of
pension expense.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company has stock-based compensation plans. The Company accounts for stock options using
the fair value method. Under this method, compensation expense for stock options granted since
January 1, 2002 is measured at fair value at the grant date using the Black-Scholes valuation
model and recognized over the vesting period of the options granted.

The Company also has an employee share savings plan through which employees can purchase
shares of the Company at market prices. For each dollar employees contribute to the plan, the
Company contributes a prescribed percentage, which is expensed as employee compensation. For
the Company’s deferred unit plans, a liability is recorded to the extent that the Company's common
share price exceeds the notional purchase price of the units. Notional dividends on the units are
recorded as a direct charge to retained earnings.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is determined by dividing net earnings, after deducting preferred share
dividends by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year,
excluding shares securing employee share purchase loans.

Diluted earnings per share assumes that outstanding dilutive stock options are exercised at the
beginning of the period (or at the time of issuance, if later) and the proceeds are used to purchase
common stock at the average market price during the period, and that dilutive convertible
debentures are converted into common shares at the beginning of the period.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

COMPARATIVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The comparative consolidated financial statements have been reclassified from statements
previously presented o conform to the presentation of the 2005 consolidated financial statements.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Convertible Debentures

The principal amount of Falconbridge’s outstanding convertible debentures of Cdn$131 million
(Note 11) due on April 30, 2007 was previously classified as an equity instrument due to the
Company’s ability to settle principal payment by issuance of its shares. In accordance with the
amended standard under CICA 3860 - Financial Instruments — Presentation and Disclosure, the
convertible debenture is a compound financial instrument that contains both a liability element
and an equity element and therefore should be bifurcated into separate liability and equity
elements. Falconbridge's obligation to make scheduled interest payments in cash and
Falconbridge’s option to redeem the debentures in a variable number of common shares of the
Company constitutes a financial liability. The holder's option to convert the liability into equity of
the Company is an equity instrument.
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The carrying value of the liability element which represenfs the present value of the Company’s
obligations to make future interest payments in cash and to settle the redemption value of the
debentures in a variable number of shares is presented as a long-term debt on the consolidated
balance sheet. The stated interest payments and accretion expense from adjusting the time value
of the principal of the debentures over time using the effective interest method of amortization are
recorded as interest expense on the consolidated statement of earnings. The equity component
represents the fair value of the holder’s conversion option established at the issuance of the
debentures and is presented as a component of shareholders’ equity. Upon conversion, when the
Company settles the obligations in the common shares of the Company, the carrying amount of the
equity element and the carrying amount of the liability are transferred to share capital.

The cumulative impact of the adoption of the standard on January 1, 2004 was to decrease
retained earnings by $33, increase the liability component of convertible debentures by $82,
decrease equity by $41 and decrease the cumulative translation adjustment by $8. The adoption
of this standard resulted in a decrease by $14 to the previously reported earnings for the year
ended December 31, 2004 and a decrease by $44 to the previously reported retained earning as
at December 31, 2004. Further disclosure regarding the convertible debentures is presented
in Note 11.

(b) Preferred Shares Series H

The Company has Cdn$150 million (Note 12) of Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series H, which
provide the holders with an entitiement to convert the shares to the Company's common shares after
a specified date and were previously reported as equity instruments in accordance with their legal
form. The new accounting recommendations under CICA 3860, on presentation of financial
instruments, provide that the preferred shares are reclassified as liabilities because their conversion
feature represents a fixed obligation to the Company. The dividends paid are reported as interest
expense in the consolidated statement of earnings.

The cumulative impact of the adoption of the standard on January 1, 2004 was to decrease
retained earnings by $5, increase liabilities by $113, decrease equity by $99 and decrease
cumulative translation adjustment by $9. Adoption of the new standard reduced previously
reported earnings by $16 for the year ended December 31, 2004 and resulted in a decrease by
$13 to the previously reported retained earnings as at December 31, 2004, Further disclosure
regarding the liabilities for the Preferred Shares, Serieg.H, is presented in Note 12.

(c) Variable Interest Entities (“VIES”)
As of January 1, 2005, the Company adopted the recommendations of AcG-15 requiring
Falconbridge to identify variable interest entities, in which it has significant variable interest, to
determine whether Faiconbridge is the primary beneficiary of such entities and, if so, consolidate
them. VIEs include entities where the equity invested is considered insufficient to finance the
entity’s activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. The
~ recommendations require the Company to consolidate VIEs if the investment it holds in these
entities and/or the relationship it has with them result in it being exposed to a majority of their
expected losses, being able to benefit from a majority of their expected residual returns, or both.
The adoption of the recommendations resulted in the Company consolidating a customer
securitization vehicle, which was operated as a trust and purchased trade accounts receivable from
the Company. The application of the recommendations had no impact on the Company’s financial
statements on January 1, 2004. The cumulative impact of the consolidation of the vehicle on
January 1, 2005 was to increase current assets by $17 and increase current liabilities by $17 with
no impact on opening retained earnings. In 2005, the receivable purchase agreement between the
Company and the trust was terminated and the trust is no longer a VIE of the Company.

3. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On June 30, 2005, the Company completed the two-step acquisition of 41.5% of all the issued
and outstanding common shares of the former Falconbridge that it did not previously own,
pursuant to the offer to purchase dated March 9, 2005. The acquisition was completed by way of
an amalgamation (the “Amalgamation”) of Noranda inc. and the former Falconbridge Limited (the
“former Falconbridge”) and the newly amaigamated company continued under the name
Falconbridge Limited. The acquisition was done on a share-exchange basis with one common share
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Falconbridge was a producer of nickel, copper, cobalt and platinum with mining and metallurgical
operations mainly in Canada and South America.

The first step of the acquisition was compieted on May 5, 2005 when the Company
successfully acquired 32.3% of all the issued and outstanding common shares of the former
Falconbridge, increasing its ownership to 90.8% of the outstanding former Falconbridge common
shares. On June 30, 2005, the Company completed the second step of the acquisition of the
remaining 9.2% of the former Falconbridge common shares and assumed 100% of the preferred
share and stock option obligations of the former Falconbridge. The results of operations of the
former Falconbridge from January 1, 2005 to May 4, 2005 have been included in the Company’s
consolidated statement of earnings at 58.5% and from May 5, 2005 to June 30, 2005 at
90.8%. Beginning July 1, 2005, 100% of the results from operations have been included in the
Company’s consolidated statement of earnings.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method, whereby the purchase
consideration was allocated to the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed on the date of acquisition. The Company has not yet finalized the allocation of the
purchase price related to this acquisition and it will be refined as information relating to the
valuation of operating capital assets and development projects is finalized. The preliminary fair
values of the assets and liabilities of the former Falconbridge and the preliminary allocation of the
purchase consideration are as follows:

(US$ millions, except share price and number of shares) 2005

Calculation of preliminary allocation of purchase price
Common shares of the Company issued to the former Falconbridge sharehoiders 132,840,681
The average closing market price of the Company's shares over the six

trading days from March 4 through March 11, 2005 (the purchase offer

announcement was March 9, 2005) $19.07
Fair value of the Company’s common stock issued $ 2,534
Fair value of vested options assumed by the Company 6 !
Direct acquisition costs incurred by the Company 22 J
Total purchase price $ 2,562 \
Preliminary fair value of assets acquired by the Company ‘
Cash and cash equivalents $ 353
Accounts receivable 178 i
Metals and other inventories 308 ,‘
Operating capital assets 3,154 j'
Development projects 565

Investments and other assets 45 j‘
Preliminary fair value of liabilities assumed by the Company |
|
|
|

Accounts and taxes payable (177)
Debt due within one year (106)
Long-term debt (480}
Future income taxes (876) |
Asset retirement obligation, pension and other provisions (257) :
Interests of other shareholders (15)

Preferred shares assumed by the Company (130)

Net assets purchased $ 2,562
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4. GAIN NET OF RESTRUCTURING COSTS AND OTHER

2005 2004

Gain on sale of investment and other $ (19 $ 7
Restructuring costs 2 3
Gain on settlement of alumina contract {Note 6) — (80)
$ a”n $ (84)

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In June 2005, Falconbridge disposed of a subsidiary that manufactures and distributes aluminum
wheels. The subsidiary was sold for proceeds of $40.5, amounting to a net gain on sale of $1.
Included in discontinued operations, net of tax is a loss of $9 (2004 — $40) from operations prior
to the sale. In 2004, Falconbridge recorded an impairment loss of $50 related to the subsidiary
determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. The impact from discontinued operations on the
consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of cash flows has not been separately
disclosed, as it is not considered material.

6. JOINT VENTURES

Falconbridge's share of the assets, liabilities and equity, revenues and expenses and cash flows of

its major joint ventures for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as foliows:

2005
Antamina Collahuasi Gramercy Magnesium Louvicourt Total
Balance Sheets
Current assets $ 341 $ 413 $ 53 $ 13 $ 3 $ 823
Capital assets and other 608 981 139 280 — 2,008
$ 949 $ 1,394 $ 192 $ 293 $ 3 $ 2,831
Current liabilities $ 165 $ 146 $ 35 $ 1 $ 1 $ 348
Long-term debt and other 267 636 52 24 3 982
Falconbridge's investment 517 612 105 268 (1) 1,501
$ 949 $1,394 $ 192 $ 293 $ 3 $ 2,831
Statements of Earnings (Loss)
Sales and other revenues $ 623 $ 682 $ 225 $ - $ 29 $ 1,559
Operating expenses 188 256 211 — 11 666
income generated by operating assets $ 435 $ 426 $ 14 $ - $ 18 $ 893
Expenses $ 138 $ 126 $ 6 $ 5 $ — $ 275
Minority interest — 38 — — 7 45
Falconbridge's share of earnings (loss) $ 297 $ 262 $ 8 $ (5 $ 11 $ 573
Statements of Cash Flows
Cash realized from (used for):
Operations $ 417 $ 387 $ 7 $ 9 $ 34 $ 836
Investment activities (22) (30) (12) — 2 (62)
Financing activities (153) (94) - (N — (248)
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Antamina Collahuasi Gramercy Magnesium Louvicourt Total
Balance Sheets
Current assets $ 223 $ 392 $ 38 $ 12 $ 18 $ 683
Capital assets and other 630 955 133 272 4 1,994
$ 853 $ 1,347 $ 171 $ 284 $ 22 $2,677
Current liabilities $ 73 $ 179 $ 18 $  — $ 2 $ 272
Long-term debt and other 346 628 56 27 5 1,062
Minority interest in subsidiaries — 222 — — 6 228
Falconbridge's investment 434 318 97 257 9 1,115
$ 853 $ 1,347 $ 171 $ 284 $ 22 $ 2,677
Statements of Earnings (Loss)
Sales and other revenues $ 351 $ 575 $ 39 35 — $ 47 $1,012
Qperating expenses 137 205 38 — 23 403
Income generated by operating assets $ 214 $ 370 $ 1 $ — $ 24 $ 609
Expenses $ 84 $ 114 3 — $ 5 $ — $ 203
Minority interest — 105 — — 9 114
Falconbridge's share of earnings (loss) $ 130 $ 151 $ 1 $ B $ 15 $ 292
Statements of Cash Flows
Cash realized from (used for):
Operations $ 196 $ 272 $ 13 $ (3 $ 27 $ 505
investment activities (15) (20) (5) — — (40)
Financing activities (69) (66) — (1) — (136)

Falconbridge holds a 33.75% interest in Antamina, a copper/zinc mine in Peru.
Falconbridge holds a 44% interest in Compafiia Minera Dofia Inés de Collahuasi S.C.M.
(“Collahuasi™), a corporation which owns the mining and water rights and other assets relating to
the Collahuasi mine, and which secured financing, conducts the operations and markets the
products of the property.
In October 2004, the Company assumed a 50% interest in Kaiser Aluminum’s Gramercy
alumina plant in Gramercy, Louisiana and Kaiser Aluminum’s related bauxite assets in Jamaica, in
exchange for the settlement of an alumina supply contract and $11.5. The Company recorded a
gain of $80 on the settlement of the contract (Note 4). The total consideration of $91.5, com-
prised of cash and the gain on the settlement of the contract, was allocated as $11.5 to working
capital, $129 to capital assets and $49 to future income taxes.
Falconbridge owns an 80% joint-venture interest in the Magnesium project, a facility for the
extraction of magnesium from mining residues in Danville, Quebec. As a result of depressed global
magnesium prices, the Company temporarily shut down its Magnesium operation in April 2003.
Through its 62.1%-owned subsidiary, Novicourt, the Company holds a 45% joint-venture
interest in the Louvicourt copper/zinc mine in northwestern Quebec which closed in 2005.

7. OPERATING CAPITAL ASSETS

Mines, mining plants and
anciltary mining assets

Smellers

Refineries

Dther

Accumulated
depreciation

Accumulated
depreciation

Accumulated
depreciation

Accumulated

Deferred

and and and i’ and de;;lv;:mem and Net
As at December 31, 2005 Cost  amortization Cost amortization Cost amartization Cost  amortization exploration, net book value
Copper $2,021 $ 810 $ 999 % 651 $ 686 $ 395 $1,852 §$ 344 $ 448 $ 3,806
Nickel 1,210 737 265 166 400 249 1,165 107 333 2,114
Zinc 433 357 198 145 - - 3 1 8 139
Aluminum 10 — 745 490 6 — 623 184 1 711
Other 246 223 — - - — 49 45 6 33
Total $3,920 $2,127 $ 2,207 $1,452 $1092 $ 644 $3692 $ 681 $ 796 $6,803
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Mines, mining plants and

ancillary mining assets Smeiters Refineries Other

Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated Deferred

depreciation depreciation depreciation depreciation preproduction
and and and and development and Net
As at December 31, 2004 Cost  amortization Cost  amortization Cost  amortization Cost  amortization exploration, net book value
Copper $2224 § 849 $ 984 §$ 477 $ 670 ¢ 380 $ 612 ¢ 282 $ 388 $2,.890
Nickel 1,233 745 256 157 385 234 153 92 279 1,078
Zinc 434 349 195 138 — - 3 1 14 158
Aluminum 4 — 738 478 2 — 600 164 — 702
Other 347 319 — — — — 129 119 4 42
Total $4,242 $2,262 $2173 $1,250 $1057 $ 614 $1,497 $ 658 $ 685 34,870

In 2005, approximately $1,966 was allocated to the operating assets as preliminary fair
market value increments from the purchase accounting pertaining to the acquisition of 41.5% of
all the issued and outstanding common shares of the former Falconbridge that it did not
previously own (Note 3). The preliminary fair market value increments are allocated to different
business units as other operating capital assets, based on the preliminary allocation of the
purchase cost for the acquisition.

8. DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

Development projects consist of brownfield and greenfield projects that are in the pre-production
stage. Major projects in the category are as follows:

As at December 31 2005 2004
Kidd Creek — deep expansion $ 518 $ 404
Koniambo — New Caledonia 276 180
Nicke! Rim South 173 101
Magnesium 280 272
Other development projects 205 209
Preliminary allocation of fair market value increments (Note 3) 255 —

$1,707 $1,166

The increase in carrying value attributed to the magnesium operations in 2005 is a result of the
appreciation of the Canadian dollar compared to the U.S. dollar during 2005.

9. INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

As at December 31 2005 2004
Equity accounted investment - Noranda {ncome Fund $ 40 $ 43
Cost accounted investments 39 33
Derivative financial instruments (Note 17) 102 120
Antamina net proceeds interest 21 23
Debenture discount and issue expenses, net 20 18
Supplies inventory 19 25
Deposits and other assets 66 62

$ 307 $ 324

As at December 31, 2005, the fair market value of the cost accounted investments was $53
(2004 - $46).
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Principal repayment schedule as at December 31, 2005

Interest Total 2011 After Total
ratest 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 to 2014 2014 2004
Debt of the Company
and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries:
Senior debentures (a) 622% $2342 $ 250 $ — $ 150 $ — $ — $ 850 $1,092 $2.245
Other loans and capital
leases (b) 4.93% 74 16 20 24 1 6 7 — 361
Convertible debentures
(Note 11) 5.00% 105 — 105 — — — — — 112
Preferred share liabilities
(Note 12) 6.25% 876 — — 126 — 300 300 150 122
6.14% 3,397 266 125 300 1 306 1,157 1,242 2,840
Debt of joint ventures (c) 6.30% 430 87 87 87 87 40 42 — 588
Total 6.17% $3827 $ 353 $ 212 $ 387 $ 88 $ 346 $1,199 $1,242 $3,428
Debt due within one year $ 353 $ 570
Long-term debt $ 3,474 $ 2,858

1. Weighted average interest rates after swap contracts, as at December 31, 2005

(a) Senior debentures of $2,342 (2004 - $2,245) are direct unsecured obligations of the
Company.

On June 8, 2005, Falconbridge issued $250 of 12-year notes and $250 of 30-year notes
under the Company's base shelf prospectus. The 12-year notes, which are unsecured, bear interest
at the rate of 5.5% per annum and mature on June 15, 2017. The 30-year notes, which are also
unsecured, bear interest at the rate of 6.2% per annum and mature on June 15, 2035. Both
series of notes are redeemable in whole or in part at any time at a redemption price equal to
100% of their principal amount plus a make-whole premium.

(b) Other loans and capital leases include borrowings under demand lines and unsecured committed
bank lines of credit that are structured to provide the Company with the right to borrow at floating
rates and repay these amounts over the next five years. At December 31, 2005, Falconbridge had
utilized $nil (2004 - $246) from its total committed lines of $780 (2004 - $1,112).

The Company has an uncommitted letter of credit facility of $20 and Cdn$85 million
(2004 - $21). Letters of credit of $46 (2004 - $17) were outstanding under this facility at
December 31, 2005.

(c) Debt of joint ventures includes $188, Falconbridge's 33.75% share of the $557 of borrowings
under Antamina’s original $1,320 senior credit facilities. These facilities, provided by a consortium
of international banks and national import/export credit agencies, have maturity dates ranging from
less than one year to five years. With the exception of $228, ali of these facilities are insured for
political risks or are otherwise guaranteed for political risks by multilateral, national or private
sector institutions. Falconbridge’s guarantee of Antamina’s debt was removed during 2003 as the
completion tests were met.

(d) After taking into account current interest rates and credit spreads, the fair value of the
Company’s debt, excluding the debt of joint ventures, at December 31, 2005 was greater than
book value by $129 (2004 - $206).

(e) Interest rate swap agreements of $1,250 (2004 - $1,050) have been entered into by the
Company, whereby fixed rates of interest are received and floating rates are paid for terms up to
9.5 years. In addition, interest rate swap agreements of $250 (2004 - $550) have been entered
into by the Company, whereby fixed rates of interest are paid and floating rates are received for a
period up to 6.5 years. As at December 31, 2005, the estimated aggregate fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements of the Company had a mark-to-market gain of $7 (2004 - $41).

The Company has entered into several cross-currency interest rate swap transactions whereby rates
of interest on debentures in the amount of $111 (2004 - $111) are swapped to floating rates of
interest and $25 (2004 - $25) are swapped to fixed rates of interest for terms of three years. At
December 31, 2005, the mark-to-market value of these positions was a gain of $47 (2004 ~ $45).
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{nterest, net 2005 2004

Interest on long-term debt $ 234 $ 164
Interest on short-term debt 17 16
Interest income (46) (24)
205 156

Capitalized interest (53) (36)
$ 152 $ 120

11. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

The Cdn$131 million (2004 — Cdn$150 million) adjustable rate convertible subordinated
debentures Series 1, due April 30, 2007, bear interest at a rate which is the greater of 5%, and of
1% plus the percentage that two times the common share dividend paid in the previous six months
is of the conversion price. The debentures are convertible at the holder's option into common
shares of the Company at a conversion price of Cdn$27.55 per common share, on or before the
last business day prior to the maturity date of the debentures, or the last business day prior to
redemption. The Company has the option of redeeming the debentures, and upon maturity they are
redeemable, at the Company's option, for common shares of the Company.

The Company's convertible debentures contain both debt and equity components (Note 2).

At December 31, 2005, the liability component amounted to $105 (2004 - $112) (Note 10).
The equity component representing the fair value of the holders’ option to convert the debentures
into the common shares of the Company was classified as a component of shareholders' equity and
amounted to $37 at December 31, 2005 (2004 — $42) (Note 15).

During 2005, debentures with face value of Cdn$19 million were converted to the common
shares of Falconbridge by the holders (Note 15). Upon conversion, the carrying value of the related
liability and the fair value of the holders’ option for the converted debentures were reciassified
from liability and shareholders’ equity respectively to share capital.

12. PREFERRED SHARES LIABILITIES

2005 2004

Junior Preference Shares, Series 1 $ 300 $ —
Junior Preference Shares, Series 2 300 —
Junior Preference Shares, Series 3 150 —
Preference Shares, Series H 126 122
$ 876 $122

JUNIOR PREFERENCE SHARES

On May 4, 2005, 63.4 mitlion common shares of the Company were repurchased in exchange for
50 million of three series of junior preference shares with a fair value of $1,250. These preference
shares are accounted for as liabilities since Falconbridge has to redeem these shares by a specific
date in the future and this mandatory redeemable feature represents a fixed obligation to
Falconbridge. These preference shares were measured at their fair value, being the closing quoted
market price on their first trading day of May 5, 2005. These preference shares rank junior to all
other preferred shares of Falconbridge with respect to priority in the payment of dividends and the
distribution of assets of Falconbridge in the event of any fiquidation, dissolution or winding-up

of Falconbridge.

On August 11, 2005, the Company redeemed a total of $500 of 20 million outstanding junior
preference shares. The Company redeemed 8 million Junior Preference Shares, Series 1, 8 million
Junior Preference Shares, Series 2, and 4 million Junior Preference Shares, Series 3. Each junior
preference share was redeemed at a price of $25.25 plus accrued and unpaid dividends for the
period from July 1, 2005 to August 10, 2005. included in interest expense on the consolidated
statement of income and retained earnings was $5 million paid as premium on early redemption of
the preference shares. The details of each series of the junior preference shares are as follows:
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As at December 31, 2005, the Company had 11,999,899 of Junior Preference Shares Series 1
outstanding. The holders of Junior Preference Shares Series 1 are entitied to receive dividends in
the amount of $1.50 per share, per annum, payable quarterly.

The Junior Preference Shares Series 1 are redeemable by the Company at any time, on or
before June 28, 2008 at $25.25 per share, and thereafter at $25.00 per share, and must be
redeemed by the Company on May 6, 2010 at $25.00 per share. On its Final Redemption Date,
the Junior Preference Shares Series 1 are convertible, in whole or in part, at the option of the
Company, into that number of freely tradable common shares determined by dividing the
aggregate of $25.00, by the greater of $2.00 and 90% of the U.S. dollar equivalents of the
volume weighted average trading price of the common shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange
(“TSX") for a period of 20 consecutive trading days ending on the fourth trading day pricr to the
date specified for conversion.

(b) Junior Preference Shares Series 2

As at December 31, 2005, the Company had 11,999,899 of Sunior Preference Shares Series 2
outstanding. The holders of Junior Preference Shares Series 2 are entitied to receive dividends in
the amount of $1.5625 per share, per annum, payable quarterly. From June 30, 2010 until June
30, 2012, holders of Junior Preference Shares Series 2 will be entitled to receive fixed preferential
cumulative dividends at a rate per annum equal to the greater of (i) 6.25%; and (ii) a rate equal fo
the seven-year U.S. treasury bond yield at the commencement of such subsequent fixed-rate period
plus 2.05%.

The Junior Preference Shares Series 2 are redeemable by the Company at any time, on or
before June 30, 2010 at $25.25 per share, and thereafter until June 29, 2012 at $25.00 per
share, and must be redeemed by the Company on June 30, 2012 at $25.00 per share. On its
Final Redemption Date, the Junior Preference Shares Series 2 are convertible, in whole or in part,
at the option of the Company, into that number of freely tradable common shares determined by
dividing the aggregate of $25.00, by the greater of $2.00 and 90% of the U.S. dollar equivaients
of the volume weighted average trading price of the common shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange
(“TSX") for a period of 20 consecutive trading days ending on the fourth trading day prior to the
date specified for conversion.

(c) Junior Preference Shares Series 3

As at December 31, 2005, the Company had 5,999,903 of Junior Preference Shares Series 3
outstanding. The holders of Junior Preference Shares Series 3 are entitled to receive dividends in
the amount of $1.625 per share, per annum, payable quarterly. From June 30, 2010 until June
30, 2012 and for each succeeding two-year subsequent fixed-rate period until June 30, 2015,
hofders of Junior Preference Shares Series 3 will be entitied to receive fixed preferential cumulative
dividends at a rate per annum equat to the greater of (i) 6.5%; and (ii) a rate equal to the ten-year
U.S. treasury bond yield at the commencement of such subsequent fixed-rate period plus 2.35%.
Dividends may be paid in cash or in a number of commen shares determined by dividing the
declared dividend amount by 95% of the U.S. dollar equivalent of the volume weighted average
trading price of the common shares on the TSX for a period of 20 consecutive trading days ending
on the fourth trading day prior to the date specified for payment of the dividend.

The Junior Preference Shares Series 3 are redeemable by the Company at any time, on or
before June 30, 2013 at $25.25 per share, and thereafter until June 29, 2015 at $25.00 per
share, and must be redeemed by the Company on June 30, 2015 at $25.00 per share. On its
Final Redemption Date, the Junior Preference Shares Serigs 3 are convertible, in whole or in part,
at the option of the Company, into that number of freely tradable common shares determined by
dividing the aggregate of $25.00, by the greater of $2.00 and 90% of the U.S. dollar equivalents
of the volume weighted average trading price of the common shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange
(“TSX") for a period of 20 consecutive trading days ending on the fourth trading day prior to the
date specified for conversion.

PREFERRED SHARES SERIES H

At December 31, 2005, there were 6,000,000 (2004 - 6,000,000) Series H Preferred Shares
outstanding. These preferred shares are presented as liabilities since their conversion feature
represents a fixed obligation to Falconbridge (Note 2). Holders of the Series H Preferred Shares are
entitled to fixed cumulative preferential cash dividends, if, as and when declared by the Company’s
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Board of Directors, at a rate of Cdn$1.625 per share per annum, payable quarterly, in equal
instatlments of Cdn$0.40625 per share, on the last day of March, June, September and December
of each year.

On and after March 31, 2008, the Company may, at its option (i} redeem the outstanding
Series H Preferred Shares in whole at any time or in part from time to time, by the payment of
Cdn$25.00 per share, together with all accrued and unpaid dividends up to but excluding the date
fixed for redemption; or (ii) subject, if required, to stock exchange approvals, convert the
outstanding Series H Preferred Shares into Falconbridge common shares. The number of common
shares into which each Series H Preferred Share may be so converted will be determined by
dividing the redemption price per Series H Preferred Share, together with all accrued and unpaid
dividends up to but excluding the date fixed for conversion, by the greater of Cdn$2.00 and 95%
of the current market price of Falconbridge common shares at such time.

On or after June 30, 2008, each Series H Preferred Share will be convertible at the option of
the holder on the last day of March, June, September and December in each year into that number
of Falconbridge common shares determined by dividing Cdn$25.00, together with all accrued and
unpaid dividends up to but exciuding the date fixed for conversion, by the greater of Cdn$2.00
and 95% of the current market price of Falconbridge common shares at such time. If a holder of
Series H Preferred Shares elects to convert any of those shares into Falconbridge common shares,
the Company may, on not less than 20 days natice prior to the conversion date, elect to redeem
those Series H Preferred Shares for Cdn$25.00 per share, together with all accrued and unpaid
dividends up to but excluding the date fixed for conversion or arrange for the sale of those shares
to substitute purchasers at such price.

13. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION, PENSION AND OTHER PROVISIONS

As at December 31 2005 2004
Asset retirement obligation (a) $ 424 $ 436
Employee future benefits costs (assets) liability (Note 20) 102 (12)
Other provisions 133 171

$ 659 $ 595

(a) The business conducted by Falconbridge has been, and may in the future be, affected by
changes in environmental legislation and other requirements including those related to asset
retirement obligations and progressive site restoration costs. As Falconbridge operates in many
countries, both the likelihood of changes in legislation and its impact upon Falconbridge are not
predictable. Falconbridge’s policy is to meet and, if possible, surpass standards set by relevant
legislation, through the application of innovative and technically proven economical measures in
advance of prescribed deadlines. Falconbridge incurs substantial removal and site restoration
costs on an ongoing basis, which, it believes, will mitigate future removal and site restoration
costs. A long-term obligation, equal to the fair value of the legal obligation for asset retirement is
recorded based on an annual assessment of projected asset retirement and progressive
reclamation costs. The key assumptions on which the fair value of the asset retirement obligations
are based include the estimated future cash flows, the timing of those cash flows, and the credit-
adjusted risk-free rate or rates at which the estimated cash flows have been discounted.

Falconbridge uses discount rates ranging from 5.0% to 8.0%. As of December 31, 2005,
undiscounted cash outflows approximating $1,542 million are expected to occur over a period
exceeding 50 years. In view of the uncertainties concerning future asset retirement and progressive
reclamation costs, the ultimate costs to Falconbridge could differ materially from the amounts
estimated. The estimate for the future liability is subject to change based on amendments to
applicable laws and legislation, the nature of ongoing operations and technological innovations.
Future changes, if any, due to their nature and unpredictability, could have a significant impact
and would be reflected prospectively, as a change in an accounting estimate.
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Year ended December 31 2005 2004
Asset retirement obligation, beginning of period $ (436) $ 412
Liabilities incurred — (5
Liabilities settled 62 36
Gain on settlement of liabilities 2 5
Accretion expense (37) (24)
Revision in estimated cash flows (4) 9
Foreign exchange (11) (27)
Asset retirement obligation, end of period $ (424) $ (436)
14. INTERESTS OF OTHER SHAREHOLDERS
As at December 31 2005 2004
Preferred shares of subsidiaries $ — $ 130
Common equity interests 54 1,067
$ 54 $1,197

On June 30, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition of 41.5% of all the issued and
outstanding common shares of the former Falconbridge that it did not previously own (Note 3). The
preferred shares of the former Falconbridge were assumed by the Company upon acquisition.

15. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CAPITAL STOCK

Authorized:

Preferred shares, an unlimited number
Common shares, an unlimited number
Participating shares, an unlimited number

2005 2004
{ssued:

Preferred Shares, Series F $ 59 $ 59
Preferred Shares, Series G 137 137
Preferred Shares, Series 1 (Note 3) 1 —
Preferred Shares, Series 2 (Note 3) 78 —
Preferred Shares, Series 3 (Note 3) 51 —
Equity element of convertible debentures (Notes 2 and 11) 37 42
Common shares 4,264 2,107
Stock option valuation 10 3
4,637 2,348

Retained earnings 154 231
Currency translation adjustment 240 263
5,031 2,842
Share purchase plan — (3)
$ 5,031 $ 2,839
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PREFERRED SHARES SERIES F

The Company had 3,246,057 (2004 - 3,246,057) Cumulative, Redeemable Preferred Shares,
Series F (the “Series F Preferred Shares”) outstanding at December 31, 2005.

Prior to November 1, 2001, holders of Series F Preferred Shares received a quarterly fixed
dividend at a rate of 5.8% per annum. On November 1, 2001, the Series F Preferred Shares
commenced paying a monthly floating dividend based on a dividend rate that fluctuates over time
between 50% and 100% of Prime for each month. The dividend rate is adjusted upwards or
downwards on a monthly basis by an Adjustment Factor whenever the Calculated Trading Price,
being the market price of the Series F Preferred Shares, is Cdn$24.875 or less or Cdn$25.125 or
more, respectively. The Adjustment Factor for a month is based on the Calculated Trading Price of
the Series F Preferred Shares for the preceding month. The maximum Adjustment Factor for any
month is =4.00%. The annual floating dividend rate for any month is Prime multiplied by the
Designated Percentage for such month (the Adjustment Factor for such month plus the Designated
Percentage for the preceding month).

Holders of Series F Preferred Shares had the right to convert their shares, effective on
November 1, 2001, on a one-for-one basis info Cumulative, Redeemable Preferred Shares,

Series G (the “Series G Preferred Shares”). Of the 12,000,000 outstanding Series F Preferred
Shares, 8,753,943 were converted into Series G Preferred Shares. Holders will again have the
right to convert their shares, on a one-far-one basis into Series G Preferred Shares on November 1,
2006, and every five years thereafter. On November 1, 2001, the Series F Preferred Shares
became redeemable, at the option of the Company, at Cdn$25.50 per share plus unpaid and
accrued dividends.

PREFERRED SHARES SERIES G

The Company had 8,753,943 (2004 - 8,753,943) Series G Preferred Shares outstanding at
December 31, 2005. These Series G Preferred Shares were issued as a result of the conversion of
the same number of Series F Preferred Shares into Series G Preferred Shares on November 1, 2001,

For each of the five years commencing November 1, 2001, holders of Series G Preferred Shares
will receive, as and when declared by the Board of Directors, a quarterly fixed dividend at a rate of
6.10% per annum. On November 1, 2006, the Series G Preferred Shares will be redeemable, at
the option of the Company, at Cdn$25.00 per share plus unpaid and accrued dividends. Subject to
certain conditions, holders of Series G Preferred Shares will have the right to convert their shares
into Series F Preferred Shares on a one-for-one basis on November 1, 2006 and on November 1 of
every fifth year thereafter.

PREFERRED SHARES SERIES 1

On March 7, 1997, the Company issued 8,000,000 Units, at a price of Cdn$10.00 per Unit, with
each Unit consisting of one Cumulative Preferred Share Series 1 (the “Preferred Share Series 1)
and one Cumulative Preferred Share Series 2 Purchase Warrant (the "Warrant”). Since

September 1, 1998, the quarterly cash dividend on Preferred Share Series 1 has been Cdn$0.02
per share. The holders of the Units had the right to acquire on certain dates, for each Unit held,
one Cumulative Preferred Share Series 2 (the “Preferred Share Series 2”) of the Company by the
combined effect of tendering for conversion one Preferred Share Series 1 and the exercise of one
Warrant together with the cash payment of Cdn$15.00 per Warrant. A total of 7,910,165 warrants
have been converted into Preferred Share Series 2. The remaining unexercised warrants cannot

be exercised.

PREFERRED SHARES SERIES 2

Until March 1, 2004, holders of the Preferred Share Series 2 were entitied to fixed cumulative
preferential cash dividends, as and when declared by the Board of Directors, which accrued from the
date of issue and were payable quarterly in the amount of Cdn$0.3672 per share or Cdn$1.4688
per share per annum. From March 1, 2004, the Preferred Share Series 2 are entitled to floating
adjustable cumulative preferential cash dividends as and when declared by the Board of Directors.
Holders of Preferred Share Series 2 had the right to convert their shares into Cumulative
Preferred Share Series 3 (the “Preferred Share Series 3”) of the Company, subject to certain
conditions, on March 1, 2004, and will continue to have the right every five years thereafter. On
March 1, 2004, the Company had the right to redeem for cash the Preferred Share Series 2, in
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whole but not in part, at the Company’s option, at Cdn$25.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid
dividends. Subsequent to March 1, 2004, the Company has the right to redeem at any time for
cash the Preferred Share Series 2, in whole but not in part, at the Company’s option, at Cdn$25.50
per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends. Effective March 1, 2004, the Preferred Share

Series 2 shares pay a monthly adjustable floating dividend based on a percentage of the Canadian
prime rate. A total of 3,122,882 units have been converted into Preferred Share Series 3.

PREFERRED SHARES SERIES 3

Holders of Preferred Share Series 3 are entitled to fixed cumulative preferential cash dividends, as
and when declared by the Board of Directors, which accrue from March 1, 2004. The dividends
are payable quarterly on the first day of March, June, September, and December in the amount of
Cdn$0.2863 per share or Cdn$1.1452 per share per annum until March 1, 2009. The Preferred
Share Series 3 are not redeemable prior to March 1, 2009. The Preferred Share Series 3 will be
redeemable on March 1, 2009 and on March 1 every fifth year thereafter, in whole but not in part,
at the Company's option, at Cdn$25.00 per share, together with accrued and unpaid dividends up
to but excluding the date of redemption. Holders of Preferred Share Series 3, upon giving notice,
will have the right to convert on March 1, 2009, and on March 1 in every fifth year thereafter,
their shares into an equal number of Preferred Share Series 2, subject to the automatic conversion
provisions.

NON-VOTING PARTICIPATING SHARES

The authorized and unissued non-voting participating shares participate ratably with the holders of
common shares in dividends and distributions of the assets of the Company.

SUMMARY OF COMMON SHARE TRANSACTIONS

Shares (000) Amount
Common shares, December 31, 2003 295,228 $ 2,084
Issued under dividend re-investment 38 1
Issued on exercise of stock options 1,704 22
Common shares, December 31, 2004 296,970 $ 2,107
Issued upon Amalgamation 132,841 $ 2,534
Repurchased by issuance of junior preferred shares (Note 12) (63,377) (451)
Issued on exercise of stock aoptions 3,486 52
Issued upon conversion of debentures (Note 11) 703 21
issued under dividend re-investment 65 1
Common shares, December 31, 2005 370,688 $ 4,264

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is determined by dividing net income, after deducting preferred share dividends
of $17 (2004 - $13), by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding of
339,756,276 (2004 - 296,245,753) during the year, excluding shares securing employee share
purchase loans.

Diluted earnings per share assumes that outstanding dilutive stock options are exercised at the
beginning of the period (or at the time of issuance, if later) and the proceeds are used to purchase
common stock at the average market price during the period, and that dilutive convertible
debentures are converted into common shares at the beginning of the period.

Diluted earnings per share is determined by dividing net income attributable to common shares,
after adding the dilutive effect of convertible debentures of $8 (2004 - $7), by the diluted
weighted average number of shares of 346,173,501 (2004 - 303,458,182).

SHARE PURCHASE PLAN

In 1998, 2001 and 2002, loans were issued to executives of the Company for the purchase of
common shares under the share purchase plan. The loans were repayable on demand, mature in
{en years, and were secured by a pledge of 331,950 common shares at December 31, 2004.
Loans receivable at December 31, 2004 of $3 were recorded as a reduction of shareholders’
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equity. The loans were repaid in full in 2005 and the repayment was accounted for as a

corresponding increase in shareholders’ equity.

STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has a stock option plan through which options may
and employees for the purchase of common shares. Options were
five-day average price prior to the grant. Stock options generally h

be granted to directors, officers
granted at prices equal to the
ave a 10-year term and contain

vesting provisions of 20% on the first anniversary following the date of the grant, and a further

20% on each of the four subsequent anniversary dates. Stock opt

ions granted from January 1,

2000 to February 28, 2002 have a 10-year term and the same vesting provisions; however, they

also contain an accelerated vesting feature specifying that on the
the common shares is 20% greater than the exercise price of the
certain unvested options outstanding on that date will immediatel

first day that the market price of
option, the final tranche of
y vest and be exercisable.

During 2005, three stock option series totaling 1,301,197 options at a weighted average price
of Cdn$23.32 were granted. The compensation expense associated with these stock options series

was calculated using the Black-Scholes valuation model assuming

the following weighted average

parameters; 10-year expected life, 25% volatility, expected dividend of 2.41% annually and an
interest rate of 4.00%. The stock option value is charged against net income over its vesting period.
On June 30, 2005, the Company assumed the stock option obligations of the former

Falconbridge upon acquisition of the former Faiconbridge (Note 3

). The stock options retained their

original attributes with the exception that the number of stock options increased by a ratio of 1.77

and the exercise prices decreased by a ratio of 1.77 to reflect the

acquisition price of one common

share of the former Falconbridge exchanged for 1.77 common shares of the Company. The fair
value of the unvested stock options as at June 30, 2005 amounted to $17. The value of the stock
options was calculated using the Black Scholes valuation model, using the following weighted

average assumptions: a seven-year expected life, 26% volatility, a

n expected dividend of 2.34%

and an interest rate of 3.58%. The value is being charged against net income over the vesting

periods of the stock options.

Corporate and general administration expenses in 2005 include compensation costs of $6
(2004 ~ $4) relating to outstanding options granted since January 1, 2002,

A summary of the status of the stock option plan and changes

during the years is presented

below:
2005 2004
Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
Options (000) price ($Cdn) Options (000) price ($Cdn)
Qutstanding, beginning of year 7,416 $ 16.75 9,584 $16.35
Options assumed upon Amalgamation (Note 3) 3,049 1291 — —
Granted 1,301 23.32 882 20.42
Exercised (3,486) 16.23 (1,704) 16.24
Cancelled (738) 15.77 (1,346) 16.64
Qutstanding, end of year 7,542 $17.37 7,416 $ 16.75
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005:
Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Number (000) Weighted average average Number (000) average
outstanding at remaining exercise price exercisable at exercise price
Range of exercise prices ($Cdn) December 31, 2005 contractual life (years) ($Cdn)  December 31, 2005 ($Cdn)
$ 885t0 $12.85 1,227 6.7 $ 9.46 253 $ 9.56
$13.82 to $15.00 723 7.0 13.87 158 14.05
$15.05 t0 $19.16 2,860 5.7 16.38 1,981 12.46
$19.29 to $26.91 2,732 8.7 22.87 161 21.42
7,542 7.1 $17.37 2,553 $12.84
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Under the Deferred Stock Unit (DSU) Plan for the Company's non-employee directors, each eligible
director may elect to be paid annual retainer fees and/or meeting attendance fees in DSUs rather
than in cash. A DSU is a notional unit, equivalent in value to a common share.

Deferred stock units are credited with “dividend equivalents” when dividends are paid on the
common shares of the Company, and such dividend equivalents are converted into additional units
based on the fair market value of common shares on the date credited.

Payment of DSUs is not made until such time as the director leaves the Board, and may be in
cash or in common shares of the Company purchased on the open market.

As of December 31, 2005 the total DSUs held by participating directors was 105,336 (2004 -
61,351), the accrual in respect of which is nominal at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

MANAGEMENT DEFERRED SHARE UNIT PLAN (MDSUP)

Management deferred share units (“Units”) may be granted each year at the discretion of the
Board to senior executives in lieu of all or part of their annual cash bonus awards. The annual
bonus awards would be converted to Units based on a rate set on the award date. The portion of
the annual bonus award elected to be received in Units by the executive may, at the discretion of
the Human Resources Committee, be increased by a factor of up to two times for purposes of
calculating the number of Units to be allocated under the MDSUP.

An executive who holds Units will receive additional Units as dividends are paid on the
common shares of the Company, on the same basis as if the dividends were reinvested pursuant to |
the Company's dividend reinvestment plan. The Units will vest over a five-year period and |
participants will only be allowed to redeem the Units upon cessation of employment.

The cash value of the Units when redeemed will be equivalent to the market value of an ‘
equivalent number of Falconbridge common shares at the time of cessation of employment with i
the Company. f

As of December 31, 2005, a total of 93,866 Units were held by executives of the Company w“
(2004 - 44,274), the accrual in respect of which is nominal at December 31, 2005 and 2004,

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

Canadian resident shareholders may elect to reinvest their cash dividends from common shares to
purchase additional shares. During 2005, 64,642 (2004 - 37,910) common shares were issued

under the dividend reinvestment plan. The dividend reinvestment plan was indefinitely suspended )
on October 20, 2005 according to the terms of the Inco Limited and Falconbridge support
agreement related to the Inco offer to purchase Falconbridge common shares.

16. INCOME AND PRODUCTION TAXES ‘

The provision for income and production taxes differs from the amount that would have resulted by
applying statutory income tax rates to earnings as described below:

\
}
2005 2004 J[
|
\

Income before the following:
Income and producticn taxes and minority interest $ 1,546 $1,242
Provision based on combined federal and composite
provincial tax rate of 33.2% (2004 - 37.6%) $ 513 $ 467
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
Resource and depletion allowances (32) (26)
Royalties and mineral taxes 22 22
Rate differences from foreign and manufacturing activities (76) (116)
Non-taxable items n (o7
Capital taxes 25 7
Foreign exchange adjustments 46 51
Non-recurring and other 20 3
Income and production taxes $ 511 $ 351
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Consolidated income and production taxes are as follows:

2005 2004

Current:
Federal and provincial income taxes $ 13 $ 25
Provincial mining taxes 12 5
Foreign taxes 269 75
$ 294 $ 105

Future:
Federal and provincial income taxes $ 24 $ 32
Provincial mining taxes 12 18
Foreign taxes 181 196
$ 217 $ 246

The components of the future tax asset and future tax liability at December 31, 2005 and
2004 are as follows:

2005 2004
Legal entities Legal entities Legal entities Legal entities
where assets where liabilities where assets where iiabilities
exceed liabilities exceed assets exceed liabilities exceed assets
Future tax assets:
Property plant and equipment $ — $ — $ 15 $ —
Pensions 14 — — —
Post-retirement benefits 98 — — 69
Asset retirement obligation 18 13 50 51
Exploration 66 — 30 15
Inventory valuations 3 — — 10
Non-capital losses 67 87 74 95
Research and development 119 — 86 21
Other 68 29 167 39
$ 453 $ 129 $ 422 $ 300
Future tax liabilities:
Property plant and equipment $ (26) $ (1,068) $ — $ (473)
Development and pre-production (187) (269) (5) (210)
Foreign exchange (78) (2) 27) (33)
Pensions — (22) (6) (28)
Asset retirement obligation — — — —
Exploration —_ —_— — —
Other (36) (50) (92) (152)
$ (327) $ (1,411) $ (130 $ (896)
Net future tax asset (liability) $ 126 $ (1,282) $ 292 $ (596)

As of December 31, 2005, the company had the following net operating loss carry-forwards
which are scheduled to expire in the following years:

Year of Expiry Net Operating Losses
2006-2015 $ 82
2016-2025 243
Indefinitely 299
$ 624
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Falconbridge uses various strategies to manage its market risk, including the use of derivative
contracts to limit, offset or reduce the Company’s market exposure. Derivative instruments are used
to manage well-defined commodity price, foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from
Falconbridge's primary business activities. The fair values of Falconbridge's derivative instruments,
as summarized later in this note, are based on quoted market prices for similar instruments and on
market closing prices at year end.

(a) Fixed Forward Price Hedges
Scme customers request a fixed-sales price instead of the COMEX or London Metal Exchange
(“LME") average price in the month of shipment. Falconbridge enters into futures contracts that
will aliow it to receive the COMEX or LME average price in the month of shipment while customers
pay the agreed upon fixed price. Falconbridge accomplishes this by settling the futures contracts
during the month of shipment, which generally results in the realization of the COMEX or LME
average price.

At December 31, 2005, the mark-to-market value of these positions was a gain of $6 (2004 -
gain of $8).

(b) Commodity Hedges
Falconbridge purchases metal in concentrate or scrap to be processed eventually into refined metal
for sale to customers. The raw material feed is purchased from third parties at prices that are often
different from the eventual sale price to metal customers, largely due to price changes that may
occur while processing. To mitigate the price risk resulting frcm the difference between the timing
of purchases and sales, Falconbridge hedges such transactions. The hedge transactions involve the
purchase or sale of over-the-counter or LME or COMEX exchange-traded contracts. In the month
that the refined metal is sold, the corresponding commodity hedge position is liquidated at the
COMEX or LME average price for the month of sale.

As at December 31, 2005 the mark-to-market value of these positions was a loss of $7
(2004 - loss of $1).

(c) Hedges of Foreign-denominated Expenditures
Since Falconbridge’s functional and reporting currency is the U.S. dollar, Falconbridge hedges its
Canadian dollar costs using foreign currency exchange contracts. When the Canadian dollar
strengthens significantly against the U.S. dollar, the increase in value of future Canadian dollar
costs is partially offset by gains in the value of the forward currency contracts designated as
hedges. Conversely, when the Canadian dollar weakens, the decrease in the value of future
Canadian dollar costs is partially offset by losses in the value of the forward currency contracts.
At December 31, 2005, Falconbridge had forward currency exchange contracts to purchase
Cdn$12 million maturing over the next one and half years at an average exchange rate of
Cdn$1.52. The mark-to-market value of these positions at December 31, 2005 was a gain of $1.
In addition, Falconbridge maintains a program to hedge its Norwegian kroner and Chilean peso
expenditures. At December 31, 2005, Falconbridge entered into short-term forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge its Norwegian and Chilean commitments, whereby it would purchase
notional amounts with a U.S. dollar equivalent of $19 (2004 - $9). At December 31, 2005, the
mark-to-market value of these contracts was nominal (2004 — mark-to-market gain of $4).
Falconbridge's operating costs to December 31, 2005 include realized exchange gains from the
settlement of various cost hedge contracts of $63 (2004 - exchange gain of $77).

(d) Hedge of Net Investment in Foreign Operations
The Company uses forward fareign exchange contracts and foreign-denominated obligations to
protect the value of its investments in its foreign subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had outstanding foreign exchange contracts to sell
Cdn$77 million, maturing over the next seven years, designated as hedges against Canadian dollar
net assets. [n addition, a series of foreign exchange contracts to buy Cdn$40 million and sell
Cdn$23 million are designated as hedges against foreign-denominated monetary assets of the
Company. The Company had a series of short-term foreign exchange contracts to purchase a
notional amount of Cdn$520 million as a hedge against foreign-denominated monetary assets and
fiabilities. As at December 31, 2004, the unrealized loss on these contracts was $75.
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At December 31, 2005, the Company had outstanding foreign exchange contracts to sell
Cdn$77 million, maturing over the next six years, designated as hedges against Canadian dollar
net assets. In addition, a series of foreign exchange contracts to buy Cdn$516 million are
designated as hedges against foreign-denominated monetary liabilities of the Company. As at
December 31, 2005, the unrealized foss on these contracts was $88.

The Company has also entered into short-term forward foreign exchange contracts to sell
£1 million (2004 - £3 million) and purchase U.S. dollars as a hedge against pounds sterling net
assets. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the fair value of these contracts approximated their
carrying value.

Derivative financial instruments involve credit and market risk. Credit risk arises from the
potential for a counterparty to default on its contractual obligations and is limited to those
contracts where the Company would incur a loss in replacing the defaulted transaction. The
Company minimizes credit risk through the selection, monitoring and diversification of counter-
parties, use of the [nternational Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) documentation and
master netting agreements, collateral and other credit mitigation techniques.

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) As a result of the sale of the CEZ processing facility to the Noranda Income Fund in 2002, the
Company entered into a 15-year supply and processing agreement with the Fund. The Company
has committed to sell up to 550,000 tonnes of zinc concentrate annually to the refinery (its
annual concentrate requirement to operate to its full current capacity) at market rates for the
payable metal, less a fixed-treatment charge initially set at $0.352 per pound of “payable zinc
metal”. Commencing January 1, 2004, the Processing Fee is the Processing Fee in the previous
year adjusted annually (i) upward by 1% and (ii) upward or downward by 10% of the year-over-year
percentage change in the average cost of electricity per megawatt hour for the Processing Facility.
“Payable zinc metal” in respect of a quantity of concentrate will be equal to 96% of the assayed
zinc metal content in the concentrate under the Supply and Processing Agreement.

The Company has also committed to manage the processing facility through operating and
marketing agreements and will act as an agent for the sale of the facility's zinc production for the
duration of the supply agreement.

{b) On October 11, 2005, Inco Limited (“Inco”) announced a take-over bid for all outstanding
common shares of the Company. The offer was comprised of part cash and part inco shares. The
completion of the take-over bid requires acceptance by 66.66% of all common shareholders of the
Company on a fully-diluted basis and is subject to regulatory approvals. The Company would be
required to provide for the payment of a fee of up to $320 to Inco in the event that the acquisition
is not completed for certain reasons.

(c) On April 19, 2005, Falconbridge and Barrick Gold entered into a joint-venture agreement
regarding the Kabanga nickel deposit and related concessions in Tanzania. Under the agreement,
Falconbridge acquired a 50% indirect interest in the Kabanga Project for $15 and became the
operator of the joint venture.

Over the next several years, Falconbridge will fund and conduct 2 $50 work plan that will
include additional exploration, infill drilling, and technical work to update the resource model
for Kabanga.
(d) On December 28, 2005, Faiconbridge and its joint-venture partner, Société Miniére du Sud
Pacifiqgue S.A. (“SMSP") acquired a 49% and 51% interest, respectively, in the Koniambo Nickel
project. Under the Bercy Accord, Falconbridge assumed responsibility for arranging financing of up
to 100% of the project. During 2005, Falconbridge committed to providing at feast $100 for
equipment and services relating to the project.
(e) From time to time, Falconbridge is involved in litigation, investigations or proceedings relating
to claims arising out of its operations in the ordinary course of business. in the opinion of
Falconbridge's management, these claims and lawsuits in the aggregate will not have a materia!
adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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19. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Falconbridge's ownership interest in the Noranda Income Fund was 25% during the year,
Included in revenues are $9 (2004 - $7) representing the Company's share of income from the
Fund accounted for under the equity method.

Falconbridge has entered into a Supply and Processing Agreement and a Management Service
Agreement with the Fund which have contracted Falconbridge to provide concentrate and services to
the Fund on a regular basis (see Note 18). Falconbridge has sold $210 (2004 - $127) of
concentrate to the Fund at terms in accordance with the Supply & Processing Agreement. As of
December 31, 2005, Falconbridge has trade receivables of $36 (2004 - $16) from the Fund due to
the concentrate sold. Falconbridge has also provided $65 (2004 - $61) of administration, manage-
ment and operating services to the Fund at their negotiated value. As of December 31, 2005,
Falconbridge has a receivable of $8 (2004 ~ $11) from the Fund due to the services provided. In
addition, Falconbridge has made purchases of $35 (2004 — $29) of zinc metals and by-products
from the Fund at terms that reflect exchange amounts. Falconbridge has sold metals and operating
supplies of $3 (2004 - $5) to the Fund at terms that reflect market rates. Included in accounts
payable as at December 31, 2005 is $11 (2004 - $8) of amounts due to the Fund. Included in
accounts receivable as at December 2005 is $nil (2004 - $1) of amounts due from the Fund.

(b) Falconbridge has undertaken a number of transactions with Antamina in which Falconbridge

has a 33.75% ownership interest. Included in raw material costs are purchases of concentrate of
$260 (2004 - $159) from Antamina that are recorded at agreed upon exchange amounts. As of
December 31, 2005, Falconbridge has a payable of $65 (2004 - $42) to Antamina.

(c) Falconbridge has undertaken a number of transactions with Gramercy in which Falconbridge
has a 50% interest. Included in raw material costs are purchases of alumina of $136 (2004 -

$14) from Gramercy that are recorded at agreed upon exchange amounts. As of December 31,

2005, Falconbridge has a payable of $6 (2004 - $2) to Gramercy.

{d) Falconbridge has undertaken a number of transactions with Collahuasi in which Falconbridge
has a 44% interest. Included in raw material costs are purchases of copper cathode of $109
(2004 - $79) from Collahuasi that are recorded at agreed upon exchange amounts. As of
December 31, 2005, Falconbridge has a payable of $25 (2004 - $19) to Collahuasi.

(e) Included in accounts receivable are loans receivable from officers of the Company in the amount
of $2 (2004 - $3), secured by collateral that has market values in excess of cost for both years.

(f) Brookfield Asset Management Inc. (formerly Brascan Corporation “Brascan”), which was a major
shareholder of the Company prior to the acquisition of the former Falconbridge, sold its ownership in
the Company in August, 2005. The transactions of the Company with Brascan and its subsidiaries
prior to the sale of its ownership were as follows:

Noranda Aluminum Inc. (*Aluminum”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Falconbridge, entered into
a power supply contract with Brascan Energy Marketing Inc. (“BEMI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Brascan, on June 1, 2003. Under the arrangement, BEMI is obliged to provide Aluminum’'s New
Madrid primary aluminum smelter up to 490 MW/h of electricity annually for a two-year period
commencing June 1, 2003 at rates with a variable component based on market prices. Aluminum
has purchased $52 (2004 — $127) of electricity under this contract. Upon completion of the
contract on June 1, 2005, the contract was not renewed.

The Company has sold certain trade receivables to a securitization trust which is owned by
Brascan Financial Corporation for a total of $4 (2004 — $315) in cash, under an agreement that
came into effect in November 2003. The arrangement was terminated in October 2005.

Brascan Financial Corporation, a subsidiary of Brascan, provided the Company with a committed
credit facility in the principal amount of Cdn$25 million with an expiry date of January 31, 2006.
The facility was cancelled after Brascan sold its ownership in the Company in August, 2005,

The above transactions have been recorded at their exchange amounts.

20. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFIT PLANS

Falconbridge has a number of defined benefit plans providing pension, health, dental and life
insurance benefits to substantially all employees after one or two years of continuous service.
Pension benefits are calculated based upon length of service and either final average earnings or a
specific amount per year of service. Hourly employees are generally members of negotiated plans.

FALCONBRIDGE » 2005 ANNUAL REPORT




Pension Benefits

Defined benefit plan assets consist primarily of cash, equity securities and fixed-income
securities. The defined benefit plan holds less than 1% of its assets in common shares of
Falconbridge and its related parties.

Falconbridge's funding policy is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet minimum funding
requirements as set forth by the regulations of the appropriate jurisdictions plus such additional
amounts as Falconbridge may determine to be appropriate.

The obligation for benefits and the benefits expenses under these plans is determined through
periodic actuarial reports that are based on the foflowing weighted average assumptions:

Pension Benefit Plans Other Benefit Plans
2005 2004 2005 2004

Assumptions used to calculate

benefit obligations:
Discount rate 5.00% 5.75% 5.01% 5.75%
Rate of compensation increase 3.75% 3.61% 3.50% 3.67%
Assumptions used to calculate

benefit expense:
Discount rate 5.75% 6.25% 5.75% 6.25%
Expected long-term rate of return

on plan assets 7.00% 7.19% n/a n/a
Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 3.72% 3.50% 3.67%

The cost of pension and other post-retirement benefits earned by employees is actuarially
determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and management’s best
estimate of expected ptan investment performance, salary escalation, retirement ages of employees
and health care costs. Plan obligations are discounted using rates that reflect the market vields, as
of the measurement date on high-quality debt instruments with cash flows that match expected
benefit payments.

The health care cost trend rate is assumed to be the following:

2005 2004
Initial medical trend rate 7.94% 8.44%
Ultimate medical trend rate 4.51% 4.50%
Number of years to reach trend rate 8 9
fnitial and ultimate dental trend rate 4.00% 4.00%

In 2005, Faiconbridge ratified new collective agreements at four of its operations. The impact
of these agreements on the employee future benefit costs is nominal.

The funded status of Falconbridge's post-employment benefit plans and net accrued benefit -
asset (obligation) are as follows:

As at December 31 2005 2004
Plans Plans Plans Plans
where assets where benefit where assets where benefit
exceed benefit obligations exceed benefit obligations
obligations exceed assets Net obligations exceed assets Net
Plan assets $ 966 $1,145 $ 2,111 $ 947 $ 921 $ 1,868
Benefit obligations 877 1,415 2,292 833 1,202 2,035
Excess (deficit) of plan assets
over benefit obligations 89 (270) (181) 114 (281) (167)
Net accrued asset $ 228 $ 289
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As at December 31 2005 2004
Plans Plans Plans Plans
where assets where benefit where assets where benefit
exceed benefit obligations . exceed benefit obligations
obligations exceed assets Net obligations exceed assets Net
Plan assets $ 31 $ - $ 31 $ 30 $ - $ 30
Benefit obligations 27 412 439 24 349 373
Excess (deficit) of plan assets
over benefit obligations 4 (412) (408) 6 (349) (343)
Net accrued liability $ (330) $(277)

The measurement date used for financial reporting purposes of the plan assets and benefit
obligations is December 31, 2005. For material plans, the most recent actuarial valuations fited
for funding purposes were prepared as of December 31, 2004, Although actuarial valuations are
generally required every three years, some international and U.S. Plans have valuations every year.

The change in the funded status of Falconbridge's post-employment benefit plans was

as follows:

Pension Benefit Plans

Other Benefit Plans

2005 2004 2005 2004

Change in benefit obligation
Obligation at beginning of year $ 2,035 $ 1,764 $ 373 $ 325
Current service 29 26 10 8
Benefits paid (141) (123) (21) (19)
Interest cost on benefit obligation 117 108 21 20
Plan amendments/Transitional

obligations — 4 10 —
Actuarial losses 195 127 33 14
Transfer to other plans 4 — — —
Effect of exchange rate change 54 128 14 25
Increase {(decrease) due to

curtailment/settlement (1) 1 (1) —
Obligation at end of year $ 2,292 $ 2,035 $ 439 $ 373
Change in plan assets
Fair value of assets at beginning of year $ 1,868 $ 1,603 $ 30 $ 25
Employer and participant contributions 101 107 19 20
Benefits paid (141) (123) (21) (19)
Surplus paid out to employer (3) (2) - —
Return on plan assets 224 167 2 1
Transfer from other plans 9 — — —
Effect of exchange rate change 53 116 1 3
Fair value assets at end of year $2,111 $ 1,868 $ 31 $ 30
Deficit status of plan at end of year $ (181) $ (167) $ (408) $ (343)
Unamortized:

Past service costs 10 22 (2) (3)

Transitional asset/obligation — — 10 —

Net actuarial losses 399 434 70 69
Accrued benefit asset (liability), net

of valuation allowance . $ 228 $ 289 $ (330) $ (277)
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Past service costs resulting from plan amendments are amortized over the remaining average
service life of active employees. Past service costs from negotiated plan improvements are
amortized over the term of the collective agreement.

For most plans, the net actuarial gain (loss) that exceeds 10% of the greater of the
benefit obligation and the value of plan assets is amortized over the remaining service period
of active employees.

Accrued post-retirement benefits asset (liability) is recorded in pension and other provisions.

Falconbridge's post-employment benefit expense included the following components:

Pension Benefit Plans Other Benefit Plans
2005 2004 2005 2004
Current year expense
Current service $ 29 $ 26 $ 10 $ 8
Interest cost on on benefit obligation 117 108 21 20
Expected return on plan assets (133) (114) (2) (1)
Amortization of:
Past service costs 9 9 — —
Net actuarial losses 19 17 2 3
Valuation allowance — (5) — —
Defined benefit expense $ 41 $ 41 $ 31 $ 30
Defined contribution expense 15 12 — —
Total expense $ 56 $ 53 $ 31 $ 30
Pension Benefit Plans Other Benefit Plans
2005 2004 2005 2004
Reconciliation of defined benefit expense recognized with defined benefits
expense incurred:
Total defined benefit expense recognized $ 41 $ 41 $ 31 $ 30
Difference between:
Expected and actuarial return on plan assets (91) (53) — —
Actuarial losses {gains) amortized and arising 176 111 31 12
Past service costs amortized and arising (9) (5) — —
Transitional obligation amortized and arising — — 10 —
Change in valuation aliowance - 5 — —
Total defined benefit expense incurred $117 $ 99 $ 72 $ 42

In 2002 and 2003, Falconbridge offered certain groups of employees the opportunity to switch
from the current defined benefit plan to a defined contribution plan. Pension assets of $22 were
allocated from the defined benefit plan to the defined contribution plan. Regulatory approval was

received and the asset transfer was completed in 2005.

2005 2004
Effect of 1% increase in assumed health care cost trend rates
Total of service and interest cost components $ 3 $ 3
Post-retirement benefit obligation 39 40
Effect of 1% decrease in assumed health care cost trend rates
Total of service and interest cost components (2) (2)
Post-retirement benefit obligation (31 (33)
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The assumption is based on expected returns for the various asset classes, weighted by the portfolio
allocation. Anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset categories is considered,

reflecting expected future inflation and real yields on fixed income securities and equities.

Pension Benefit Plans

QOther Benefit Plans

2005 2004 2005 2004
Actual asset allocation:
Equity securities 51% 53% — —
Debt securities 48% 47% 100% 100%
Other 1% — — —
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%
Target asset allocation:
Equity securities 54% 56% — —
Debt securities 46% 44% 100% 100%
Other — — — —
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%
CASH FLOWS

Falconbridge made cash contributions during the year of $116 to pension benefit plans and $19

to other benefit plans.

Our best estimate of the amounts we expect to contribute for the year ending December 31,

2006 is $104 for pension benefit plans and $23 for other benefit plans.

The projected benefit payments from the pension benefit plans and other benefit plans in the

next 10 years are estimated as follows:

Pension Benefit Plans

Other Benefit Plans

Benefit payment projections:

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011t0 2015

$ 140
$139
$ 139
$ 140
$ 141
$715

$ 24
$ 26
$ 28
$ 29
$ 31
$176
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21. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Falconbridge has four operating segments: Copper, Nickel, Zinc and Aluminum. Inter-segment
sales and purchases are made at market prices and trade terms. Operations and identifiable assets
by operating and geographic segment are presented below:

(a) Operating Segments

Year ended December 31, 2005 Copper Nickel Zinc Aluminum Other Total
Revenues $4,421 $ 2146 $ 504 $ 1,077 $ — $ 8,148
Operating expenses
Mining, processing and refining costs 993 810 168 583 (16) 2,538
Purchased raw materials 2,082 574 243 335 1 3,235
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 260 165 33 53 44 555
3,335 1,549 444 971 29 6,328
Income (loss) generated by operating assets $ 1,086 $ 597 $ 60 $ 106 $ (299 $ 1,820
Interest expense, net (152)
Corporate and general administration (80)
Research, development and exploration (59)
Minority interest in earnings of subsidiaries (155)
Income before undernoted $ 1,374
Other income 17
Tax expense (511)
Net income from continuing operations $ 880
Loss on discontinued operations, net of tax (8)
Net income $ 872
Total assets, excluding cash and cash equivalents $ 6,087 $ 3,316 $ 385 $ 1,044 $ 700 $11,532
Capital investments $ 258 $ 367 $ 21 $ 56 $ 35 §$ 737
Year ended December 31, 2004 Copper Nickel Zinc Aluminum Other ‘ Total
Revenues $ 3,592 $ 1,824 $ 415 $ 93 & (20 $ 6764
Operating expenses
Mining, processing and refining costs 803 604 158 420 {9) 1,976
Purchased raw materials 1,882 447 187 388 — 2,904
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 234 136 56 38 29 493
2,919 1,187 401 846 20 5,373
Income (loss) generated by operating assets $ 673 $ 637 $ 14 $ 89 $ 220 $ 1,391
Interest expense, net (120}
Corporate and general administration (66)
Research, development and exploration (47)
Minority interest in earnings of subsidiaries (297)
Income before undernoted $ 861
Other income 84
Tax expense (351)
Net income from continuing operations $ 594
Loss on discontinued operations, net of tax (73)
Net income $ b2l
Total assets, excluding cash and cash equivalents $ 4,544 $ 2,015 $ 400 $ 1,003 $ 782 $ 8,744
Capital investments $ 285 $ 316 $ 5 $ 32 $ 28 $ 666
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Revenues Capital assets

2005 2004 2005 2004

Canada - Domestic $ 1,282 $ 1,107 $8 - $ —
- Export 2,267 1,997 — —
Canada $ 3,549 $ 3,104 $ 3,521 $2619
United States 1,519 1,345 706 706
Chile 1,576 1,308 2,814 1,529
Peru 490 270 643 669
Other 1,014 737 826 513
Total $ 8,148 $ 6,764 $ 8,510 $ 6,036

22. SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES FROM UNITED STATES ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP"), Canadian GAAP varies in certain significant

respects from the principles and practices generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP").
The effect of these principal differences on the Company's financial statements is quantified below

and described in the accompanying notes.

2005 2004
Years ended December 31 (US$ millions, except per share amounts) Restated (b)
Net income - Canadian GAAP $ 872 $ 521
Adjustment of certain financial instruments to market (c) 6 (11)
Start-up costs and exploration (d) (91) (94)
Amortization of start-up costs and exploration (d) 6 7
Pensions and post-employment benefits (f) 2 (2)
Stock options (e) (2 (1)
Interest expense (b) (1) 13 11
Purchase accounting {m) 9 —
Foreign exchange difference (n) (10) 11
Tax effecting of adjustments 28 26
Net income — U.S. GAAP $ 833 $ 468
Net income per share reported under U.S. GAAP ($ per share):
Basic earnings per share $ 234 $ 1.50
Diluted earnings per share $ 232 $ 1.48
Retained earnings (deficit) under U.S. GAAP:
Balance, beginning of year $ 80 $ (258)
Income 833 468
Dividends:
Common (133) (110}
Preferred (25) (20}
Other (Note 12) (809) —
Balance, end of year $ (54) $ 80
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2005 2004
Years ended December 31 Restated (b)
Net income under U.S. GAAP $ 833 $ 468
Other comprehensive income (loss): (a)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (g) (n) (2) 19
Unrealized gains (loss) on long-term investments (h) 7 1
Derivative financial instruments: (c}
Net amount reclassified into earnings (60) {52)
Net changes associated with current period hedging — 27
Minimum additional pension liability adjustment (i} 95 (19)
Tax effect of adjustments on comprehensive loss (11) 10
Other comprehensive income (loss} — U.S. GAAP (a) $ 29 % (14)
Comprehensive income under U.S. GAAP (a) $ 862 $ 454

(a) Comprehensive income is measured in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“FAS") No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income. This standard defines
comprehensive income as all changes in equity other than those resulting from investments by
owners and distributions to owners. Comprehensive income is comprised of net earnings and other
comprehensive income where other comprehensive income (“OCI”} is the change in equity during
the period that arises from transactions and other events that are related to non-owner sources.
The concept of comprehensive income does not exist under Canadian GAAP.

(b) Effective January 1, 2005, Falconbridge retroactively adopted the amended standard CICA
3860 Financial Instruments — Presentation and Disclosure. Further disclosure regarding the
convertible debentures is presented in Notes 2 (a) and 11.

Under U.S. GAAP, the entire amount of interest payments on the convertible debentures is
accounted for as interest expense. Comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2004
have been adjusted to reflect this change in accounting policy under Canadian GAAP.

{c) Under Canadian GAAP, certain financial instruments qualify as a hedge for accounting purposes
and therefore gains and losses on these contracts are recognized in revenue at the time the
anticipated cash flows are realized. U.S. GAAP, specifically under FAS No. 133 Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and No. 138 Accounting for Certain Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities (together, “FAS 133"), requires a company to recognize all of
its derivative instruments, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, on the balance sheet
at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value (i.e. gains or losses) of a derivative
instrument depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relation-
ship. For derivatives designated as fair value hedges, the effective portion of the change in the fair
value of the derivative is offset by changes in the fair value of its hedged item. For cash flow
hedges and hedges of the net investment in self-sustaining operations, the effective portion of the
changes in the fair value of the derivative is accumulated in OCI and then is released from OCI
and included in income when the hedged item affects earnings. All other derivatives are carried at
fair value. FAS 133 establishes certain criteria to be met in order to designate a derivative
instrument as a hedge and to deem a hedge as effective.

(i) Fair Value Hedges: Falconbridge has chosen to designate its fixed forward price hedges and
certain interest rate swaps as fair value hedges. These hedging instruments were effective during
2005 and 2004.

(ii} Cash Flow Hedges: Falconbridge has chosen to designate its foreign currency-denominated
expenditure hedges as cash flow hedges. No ineffectiveness to these hedging instruments was
incurred during 2005 and 2004. At December 31, 2005, the Company does not expect to reclassify
any amount of net losses (2004 — $55) on derivative instruments from accumulated OCl to
earnings during the next 12 months according to contract settlement dates.
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recognized a net loss of $5 (2004 — $6), included in other comprehensive income, related to the
forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign-denominated fixed-rate debt.

(iv) Other Hedges: For all other derivative instruments, Falconbridge has chosen not to
designate them as hedging instruments,

{d) Under Canadian GAAP, Faiconbridge capitalizes exploration costs when sufficient pre-feasibility
work indicates that future mine production is reasonably certain and capitalizes costs incurred
during the start-up phase of a project until commercial production commences. Under U.S. GAAP,
exploration costs cannot be capitalized until the Company has objective reasonable assurance as to
their recovery, generally upon receipt of a bankable feasibility study. Statement of Position 98-5
requires start-up costs to be expensed as incurred. As a result of the differences in the carrying
amount of capital assets under Canadian and U.S. GAAP, there are differences in depreciation
expense in subsequent periods. Further, a difference in depreciation expense arises due to the
earlier commencement of depreciation under U.S. GAAP.

(e) Effective January 1, 2002, Falconbridge prospectively adopted FAS No. 123 Accounting for
Stock-based Compensation whereby compensation expense for options granted or modified after
January 1, 2002 is measured at fair value at the grant date or modification date using the Black-
Scholes valuation model and recognized over the remaining vesting period of the options granted
or modified.

Prior to June 30, 2002, Falconbridge's stock option plan allowed for, at the option of the
holder, the exercise of the employee's vested option whereby the difference between the grant
price and the market price is paid on exercise by the Company, with no increase in the capital
stock issued. Under U.S. GAAP, such a feature requires the mark-to-market obligation 1o be
recognized through the income statement of the Company.

On June 30, 2002, Falconbridge’s stock option plan was modified to remove the cash
settlement feature. As a result, under U.S. GAAP additional compensation expense is being
recognized over the remaining vesting period of these modified options to the extent that the fair
value of the options outstanding on the modification date exceeded the previously recorded
compensation expense of these options.

Under Canadian GAAP, there is no requirement to account for options that contain a cash
settiement feature when the cash settlement feature is removed by June 30, 2002.

(f) Under Canadian GAAP, when a defined benefit plan gives rise to an accrued benefit asset, a
company must recognize a valuation allowance for the excess of the adjusted benefit asset over the
expected future benefit to be realized from the plan asset. U.S. GAAP does not provide for a
valuation allowance against pension assets. As a result, a difference between U.S. and Canadian
GAAP has been recorded for the effects of recognizing a pension valuation allowance and changes
therein under Canadian GAAP. Further differences result from the different transition rules and
timing of the adoption of the current U.S. and Canadian standards for post-employment costs.

(8) Under U.S. GAAP, foreign exchange gains and losses on translation of self-sustaining foreign
operations are recorded in OCI. Under Canadian GAAP, such gains and losses are included as a
separate component of shareholders' equity referred to as cumulative translation adjustment.

(h} U.S. GAAP requires that certain long-term investments not held for trading be recorded at fair
value, with unrealized holding gains and losses excluded from the determination of earnings and
reported as a separate component of OCI.

{i) U.S. GAAP requires the recognition of an additional minimum pension liability in the amount of
the excess of the Company's unfunded accumulated benefits obligation over the recorded pension
benefits liability. An offsetting intangible pension asset is recorded no greater than the unrecognized
prior service costs, with any difference recorded as a reduction in accumulated OCI.

() U.S. GAAP requires investments in joint ventures to be accounted for under the equity method,
while under Canadian GAAP, the accounts of joint ventures are propertionately consolidated.
However, under rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, a foreign registrant
may, subject to the provision of additional information, continue to follow proportionate
consolidation for the purposes of registration and other filings notwithstanding the departure from
U.S. GAAP. A joint venture is qualified for the accommodation if it is an operating entity, the
significant financial operating policies of which are, by contractual arrangement, jointly controlied
by all parties having an equity interest in the entity. The joint ventures that the Company has
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proportionately consolidated for the reporting periods are Antamina, Collahuasi, Magnesium,
Louvicourt, and Gramercy. All of the Company's joint ventures qualify for the accommodation as
their significant financial operating policies are, by contractual arrangement, jointly controlied by
all parties having an equity interest in the entity. Consequently, the consolidated balance sheets,
statements of income, and cash flow statements have not been adjusted to restate the accounting
for these joint ventures under U.S. GAAP.

If the Company was not granted the accommodation, the equity accounting method would be
used to account for the investment in Antamina, Coifahuasi, Louvicourt, Magnesium and Gramercy.
Compared to proportionate consolidation, equity accounting would result in no impact to the net
income reported in the U.S. GAAP income statement reconciliation. In terms of the U.S. GAAP
balance sheet, each item on the balance sheet would be adjusted to exclude the Company'’s share
of these joint-ventures’ assets and liabilities. Included in investments and other assets would be
the Company’s share of the joint-ventures' net assets. The U.S. GAAP cash flow statement would
need to be adjusted to correspond with the adjustments on the balance sheet.

Additional information concerning the Company’s interests in these five joint ventures is
presented in Note 6, including the Company’s share of the assets, liabilities and equities,
revenues, expenses and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, and 2004,

{k) U.S. GAAP does not permit the subtotal of cash from operations before net changes in non-
cash working capital.

(I) Under Canadian GAAP, capital stock redeemable at the option of the holder must be recognized
as debt and the related dividend payments are recognized as interest expense. Under U.S. GAAP,
only capital stock that is mandatorily redeemable for assets of the Company must be recognized as
a debt. Since the Company does not have an unconditional obligation to redeem Preferred Shares
Series H for assets of the Company (note 12), the Preferred Shares Series H have been classified
as equity under U.S. GAAP and dividend payments on the Preferred Shares Series H have been
recognized as a reduction in retained earnings.

Since Preferred Shares Series H is denominated in Canadian dollars, its redeemable value is
determined by the foreign exchange rate at the end of the reporting period and is subject to
changes at different reporting periods. Under U.S. GAAP, the change in its redeemable value from
foreign exchange translation is amortized directly to the retained earnings over the period to the
earliest redemption date. As the Preferred Shares Series H is considered a liability under Canadian
GAAP, changes in value resuiting from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates are recognized
immediately into income.

{m) Under U.S. GAAP, the bock values of the net assets acquired from the business combination as
mentioned in Note 3 are different from their book values under Canadian GAAP. The difference in
book values arose from the historical accounting differences between U.S. GAAF and Canadian
GAAP for the acquired company prior to the business combination. While the preliminary fair values
of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed from the business combination are the same under
both U.S. GAAP and Canadian GAAP, the difference in their book values results in a difference in
preliminary fair value increments allocated to the assets and liabilities under U.S. GAAP and
Canadian GAAP. The difference in fair value increments under U.S. and Canadian GAAP creates a
reduction of $4 in mining, processing and refining costs and a reduction of $5 in interest expense
under U.S. GAAP after the business combination.

(n) Under Canadian GAAP, a gain or loss equivalent to a proportionate amount of the exchange
gains and losses accumuiated in the foreign cumulative translation adjustment is recognized into
income when there has been a reduction in the net investment which results from a reduction in
the equity of a foreign operation as a result of certain capital transactions, such as dividend
distributions, Under U.S. GAAP, no gain or loss would be recognized unless substantially all of
the investment was liquidated.
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The following summarizes the adjustments to the Company’s balance sheets and cash flow
statements in order to conform to U.S. GAAP.

BALANCE SHEET

2005 2004
Years ended December 31 Restated (b)
Canadian United States Canadian United States
GAAP GAAP GAAP GAAP
Assets
Accounts receivable {(c) {m) $ 1,007 $1,023 $ 948 $ 979
Investments and other assets {(c) (h) 307 315 324 381
Capital assets {d) (m) 8,510 8,170 6,036 5,614
Liabilities
Accounts and taxes payable (c) (m) 1,691 1,724 1,265 1,338
Long-term debt (b) {c) (1) (m) 3,474 3,359 2,858 2,743
Deferred credits {c) (f) (m) 659 753 595 791
Future income tax liability (m) 1,156 969 304 138
Minority interest in subsidiaries 54 51 1,197 1,028
Shareholders’ equity
Retained earnings (deficit) 154 (54) 231 80
Capital stock (e) () 4,600 4,747 2,306 2,440
Equity element of convertible
debentures (b) 37 — 42 —
Currency transiation adjustment (g) 240 — 263 —
Accumulated other comprehensive
income — 198 — 169
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Years ended December 31 2005 2004
Canadian United States Canadian United States
GAAP GAAP GAAP GAAP
Operating activities $ 1,635 $1,552 $1,184 $1,089
Investment activities (671) (580) (555) (460)
Financing activities {962) (970) (246) (246)
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year 884 884 501 501
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 886 886 884 884

IMPENDING ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Canadian GAAP

In January 2005, the CICA approved Handbook Sections 1530, Comprehensive Income, 3855,
Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement 3865, Hedges, and 3251, Equity which
will become effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2007. These standards will increase
harmonization with U.S. and International accounting standards.
The standards require that all financial assets be classified as trading, available for sale, held to
maturity, or loans and receivables. In addition, the standards require that all financial assets,
including all derivatives, be measured at fair value with the exception of loans, receivables and
investments intended to be held to maturity, which should be measured at amortized cost.
Changes in the fair value of trading securities will continue to be reported in earnings, while

changes in the fair vatue of available-for-sale securities will be reported within other comprehensive
income, until the financial asset is disposed of, or becomes impaired.
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Similarly, the standards require that all financial liabilities be measured at fair value when they
are held for trading or are derivatives. Other financial liabilities should be measured at cost.

The standards permit an entity to designate any financial instrument, on initial recognition, as
one that it will measure at fair value with gains and losses recognized in net income in the period
in which they arise,

Derivatives will be classified as trading, unless they are specifically designated within an
effective hedge relationship. The standards permit three types of hedge relationships: fair value
hedges, cash flow hedges, and hedges of net investments in self-sustaining foreign operations. For
fair value hedges, the effective portion of changes in the fair value derivative instruments is offset
in earnings against the changes in fair value of derivative instruments is offset in earnings against
the changes in fair value, attributed to the risk being hedged in the underlying asset, liability or
firm commitment. For cash flow hedges, and hedges of net investments in self-sustaining foreign
operations, the effective portion of changes in fair value of derivative instruments is offset through
other comprehensive income, until the variability in cash flows being hedged is recognized in
earnings in future accounting periods or upon de-recognition of the net investment. Where a
derivative instrument is designated as a hedge and meets the criteria for hedge effectiveness,
earnings offset is available, but only to the extent that the hedge is effective. Any ineffectiveness
in a hedge relationship will be recognized in current earnings.

Other comprehensive income will be included on the consolidated balance sheets as a separate
compenent of shareholders’ equity (net of tax), and will include net unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities, net unrealized gains on derivative instruments designated within an effective
cash flow hedge, and unrealized foreign currency translation gains and losses and offsetting hedges
on self-sustaining foreign operations. The Company is presently evaluating the impact of these
new standards.

U.S. GAAP

In 2002, the Company adopted FAS 123 on a prospective basis. In December 2004, the FASB
issued SFAS 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123-R), which replaces the existing
SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation and supersedes Accounting Principles Board
(APB) 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123-R requires companies to measure
and record compensation expense for stock options and other share-based payments based on the
instrument’s fair value on the grant date. The cost of the award must be recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations over the vesting period of the award.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 151, /nventory Costs —~ an Amendment of ARB
No. 43, Chapter 4. This standard provides clarification that abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight handling costs, and spoilage should be recognized as current-period charges.

In March 2005, the FASB ratified the consensus in EITF 04-06 which concludes that a mining
company’s costs incurred during production for the removal of overburden and waste material from
a mine, in order that the underlying mineral deposit may be extracted (production-related stripping
costs), should be considered variable production costs inciuded in the costs of the inventory
produced during the period that the stripping costs are incurred. EITF 04-06 does not address the
accounting for stripping costs incurred during the pre-production phase of a mine. As is current
general practice, those costs may continue to be accounted for as mine development expenditures
subject to capitalization and amortization over the life of the mineral deposit benefited from
the expenditure.

The above U.S. GAAP standards are effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2006.

The Company is presently evaluating the impact of these new standards.
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(Unaudited)

EARNINGS (% millions) 2005! 2004! 2003! 2002! 2001
Earnings
Revenues $ 8,148 6,764 4,456 3,618 3,697
Operating expenses 6,328 5373 4,047 3,448 3,592
Income generated by operating assets $ 1,820 1,391 409 170 105
Interest, net 152 120 129 91 77
Corporate and general administration 80 66 58 58 56
Research, development and exploration 59 47 51 49 73
Minority interest in earnings of subsidiaries 155 297 88 26 11
Income (loss) before undernoted $ 1,374 861 83 (54) (112)
Other expense (income) (17) (84) 14 481 11
Taxes expense (recovery) 511 351 36 (141) (99)
Net income (lass) from continuing operations $ 880 594 33 (394) (24)
Loss on discontinued operations, net of tax $ 8 73 31 25 49
Net income (loss) $ 872 521 2 {419) (73
FINANCIAL POSITION ($ millions) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Capital employed
Working capital $ 1,557 1,433 1,051 610 552
Capital and other assets 8,817 6,360 5,843 5,607 6,070
$10,374 7,793 6,994 6,117 6,622
Financed by
Stockholders' interest $ 5,085 4,036 3,320 2,635 3,082
Long-term debt 3,474 2,858 3,089 3,075 2,818
Deferred credits 1,815 899 585 507 722
$10,374 7,793 6,994 6,117 6,622
CASH FLOWS ($ millions) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Operations $ 1,635 1,184 408 380 243
Investment activities
Capital investments $ (73N {666) {489) (528) (868)
Investments and advances (27) 105 (153) (116) (6)
Dispositions and other 93 6 399 265 169
$ (671) (555) (543) (379) (705)
Financing activities
Debt incurred (repaid) $ (843) (126) (90) 242 364
Dividends paid (189) (158) (118) (137) (165)
Issue of shares, net 67 38 655 8 —
Share purchase plan repayment 3 — — - —
Redemption of preferred shares —_— — (104) — —
$ (962) (246) 343 113 199
Cash generated (used) $ 2 383 208 114 (263)
SHARE DATA (§ per share, except shares outstanding data) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Commeon
Earnings (loss) - basic 2.52 1.71 (0.05) (1.80) (0.36)
Dividends {Cdn$) 0.48 0.48 0.64 0.80 0.80
Book Value 12.69 891 7.48 6.54 8.71
Market price range:*
High 36.06 24.99 21.00 20.62 18.05
Low 19.60 18.61 11.71 13.16 13.50
Close 34.50 21.06 20.55 1421 15.00
Shares outstanding net (000s) 370,688 296,970 295,228 241,289 238,584
Preferred
Shares outstanding, series F, G and H (000s) 18,000 18,000 18,000 12,000 12,000
Shares outstanding, series 1, 2 and 3 (C00s) 8,000 — — —_ —
Junior preference shares outstanding (000s) 30,000 — — — —

1. Revenues include the Company’s share of earnings from the Noranda tncome Fund.
2. Closing prices on Toronto Stock Exchange (Cdn$).
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Production Volumes

MINE PRODUCTION' - METAL IN CONCENTRATE

SMELTER AND REFINERY PRODUCTION!

Falconbridge's beneficial

Falconbridge’s beneficial

(tonnes) interest (%) 20054 20042 (tonnes) interest (%) 2005 200422
Copper Copper smelted
Antamina 33.75 126,417 122,205 Altonorte 100 297,567 266,440
Collahuasi 37.3 182,248 205,116 Horne 100 146,952 149,730
Kidd Creek 84.9 42,738 41,029 Kidd Creek 84.9 118,973 118,240
Lomas Bayas 84.9 63,147 62,041 Sudbury Operations 84.9 20,798 18,402
Louvicourt 28 7,452 14,387 Total 584,290 552,812
Montcalm 84.9 4,996 1,188 Falconbridge share 563,185 496,652
Raglan 84.9 5,842 6,867 Copper refined
Sudbury Operations 84.9 23,367 24,694 CCR 100 304,184 288,395
Other 100 5,894 13,164 collahuasi 373 26,698 25,610
Total 462,101 490,691 Kidd Creek 84.9 111,231 115,578
Falconbridge share 410,606 345,114 Lomas Bayas 84.9 63,147 62,041
Nickel Nikkelverk 84.9 38,681 35,643
Falcondo - ferronickel 72.4 28,668 29,477 Total 543,941 527,267
Montcalm 84.9 9,006 2,152 Falconbridge share 507,738 429,091
Ragfan 84.9 22,224 26,552 Nickel smelted
Sudbury Operations 84.9 19,708 22,602 gudbury Operations 84.9 63,093 52,595
Total 79,606 80,783 Faiconbridge share 53,566 30,978
Faiconbridge share 64,002 45,016 ; .
- Nicke! refined
Zinc Falcondo 72.4 28,668 29,477
Antamina 33.75 62,216 64,157 Nikkelverk 84.9 84,886 71,410
Bell Allard 100 _— 98,901 Total 113,554 100,887
BIfUnSWICk 100 265,648 268,068 Falconbrldge share 92,824 56,857
Kidd Creek 84.9 119,960 87,847 - :
Louvicourt 28 5,827 9,277 Zl'nc refined
Total 253,651 558 550 Kidd Creek 84.9 113,711 121,557
Falconbridge share 433'329 488Y629 Noranda Income Fund* 25 272,418 277,283
! : Total 386,129 398,840
Lead Falconbridge share 164,646 140,918
Brunswick 100 75,417 73,735 Lead refined
Falconbridge sh 73,735 !
greonbricge share 75417 3735 Brunswick 100 76,116 83,829
Cobalt Falconbridge share 76,116 83,829
Raglan 84.9 525 313 Batxit
Sudbury Operati 84.9 4 427 auxite
nCoUTy peraions 35 St. Ann 50 1,872,394 447,000
Totel 879 749 Falconbiidas s 447,000
Falconbridge share 747 436 alconoridge share 1,872,394 !
) Alumina
Silver (000 ounces)
Antamina 33.75 3,307 2,718 S'fmeLCYd - 50 222'312 gggjg
Brunswick 100 5,924 5999  [alconbridge share .3 !
Kidd Creek 84.9 3,677 3,848  Aluminum refined
Other 100 179 623 Primary operations 100 245,581 247,472
Total 13,087 13,188 Falconbridge share 245,581 247 472
Falconbridge share 12,532 11,606 Cobalt smelted
1. Alf production figures are shown on a 100% basis, Sudbury Operations 84.9 2,423 1,838
with the exception of Collahuasi, which represents Falconbridge share 2,057 1,083
Falconbridge's 44% foint-venture interest, Antamina which represents Falconbridge’s
33.75% joint-venture interest, St. Ann, which represents Falconbridge's 50% joint- Cobalt refined
ture interest, G . which ts Falconbridge's 50% joint-venture interest )
s S ™ Nideher B9 soal 4670
2. Falconbridge Limited's average beneficial interest in Navicourt was 62.1% in both 2005 Fa!conbridge share 4,263 2,751
and 2004, . .
3. Noranda inc. amalgamated with Falconbridge Limited (“the former Falconbridge™) on Silver refined (000 ounces)
June 30, 2005, and was renamed Falconbridge Limited {“the amalgamated Company”). CCR Refinery 100 33,215 37,274
After June 30, 2005, th Igamated C d 100% beneficial interest in th -
op;r:atil;:z of the formereF:ESngbarEZeeandoaga%oogginual weig;tzz |;:/aera|;ee;)25nee‘gciaf Falconbrldge share 33,215 37,274
i in the f Falconbridge held by th | ted C 84.9% .
zr;tg{r;st_w%g.ge%(;.rmer alconbridge held by the amalgamated Company was Gold refmed (000 ounces)
4. Falconbridge Limited sold the CEZ refinery to the Noranda Income Fund in May 2002. CCR Refinery 100 908 1,102
The average beneficial interest was 25% in 2005 and in 2004, Falconbridge share 908 1,102
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METAL SALES!'

CONCENTRATE SALES!®

Falconbridge’s beneficfal

Falconbridge's beneficial

(tonnes) interest (%) 2005%° 200422 (tonnes) fnterest (%) 2005% 2004
Copper Copper
CCR 100 298,286 293,174 Antamina 33.75 91,567 80,905
Collahuasi 37.3 26,137 25,330 Collahuasi 37.3 119,212 167,261
Kidd Creek 84.9 84,827 82,188 Horne 100 56,385 27,091
Lomas Bayas 84.9 63,746 60,190 Total 267,164 275,257
Nikkelverk 84.9 59,470 51,057 Falconbridge share 249,163 206,513
Total 532,466 511,939 Zine
Falconbridge share 497,104 422027 Antamina 33.75 40,699 51,951
Nickel Bell Allard 100 — 70,371
Nikkelverk 84.9 85,374 71,374 Brunswick 100 219,417 222,141
Falconbridge share 72,483 42,039 Kidd Creek 84.9 42,020 15,724
Ferronickel Total 302,136 360, 187
Falcondo 704 26,289 28,936 Falconbridge share 295,791 353,724
Falconbridge share 19,033 14,526 Bauxite
Zinc St. Ann 50 928,735 21,320
Kidd Creek 84.9 116,071 119,535 Falconbridge share 928,735 21,320
Noranda Income Fund? 25 271,824 274,793 Alumina
Total 387,895 394,328 Gramercy 50 355,221 80,625
Falconbridge share 166,500 139,104 Falconbridge share 355,221 80,625
Lead Molybdenum
Brunswick 100 73,730 83,194 Antamina 33.75 2,468 613
Falconbridge share 73,730 83,194 Collahuasi 37.3 251 —
Aluminum Total : 2,71¢ 613
Noranda Aluminum Falconbridge share 2,681 613
Primary operations 100 247,771 248,977 Silver (000 ounces)
Falconbridge share 247,771 248,977 Antamina 33.75 1,633 2,334
Fabricated aluminum Falconbridge share 1,633 2,334
Norandal Rolling Mills 100 177,910 173,853
Falconbridge share 177,910 173,853
Cobalt AVERAGE REALIZED PRICES
Nikkelverk 84.9 3,336 3,648 »
Falconbridge share 3,257 2,149 (US$ per pound, except as noted) 2005 20042
Gold (000 ounces)
CCR 100 775 967 Copper 1.71 1.30
Falconbridge share 775 967 Nickel 6.85 6.40
Silver (000 ounces) Ferronickel 6.74 6.37
CCR 100 32,786 36467  Zinc 0.70 0.52
Falconbridge share 32,786 36,467  Aluminum 0.91 0.84
1. Al production fi h 100% basi Lead 0.50 0.43
. [ % 3
B e i Cotl 1497 2248
Falconbridge's 44% joint-venture interest, Antamina which represents Falconbridge’s Molybdenum 31.09 16.21
33.75% Joint-venture interest, St. Ann, which ts Falconbridge’s 50% Joint-
venture iiw‘?tg:e:!e,nGlrJ;;glg,e;hich re;:es:ntlg F:gs;??d;e‘sa ;8;; rjloi%i\s/enture)?:\?erest Gold (us$ per ounce) 444,08 402.17
and Louvicourt, which represents Novicourt's 45% joint-venture interest. Silver (US$ per ounce) 7.32 6.51
2. Noranda inc. amalgamated with Falconbridge Limited (“the former Falconbridge”) on
June 30, 2005, and was renamed Falconbridge Limited (“the amalgamated Company™). Exchange Rate (equivalent of Cdn$1.00) 0.83 0.77

After June 30, 2005, the amalgamated Company owned 100% beneficial interest in the
operations of the former Faiconbridge and the 2005 annual weighted average beneficial
interest in the former Falconbridge held by the amalgamated Company was 84,9%
(2004 - 58.9%).

3. Falconbridge Limited sold the CEZ refinery to the Noranda Income Fund in May 2002.
The average beneficial interest was 25% in 2005 and in 2004,
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. 1234
Mineral Reserves
GRADE
Falconbridge’s Dec. 31, Molyb-
Beneficial Interest 2005 Copper Zinc Nickel Lead Silver denum  Aluminum
(%) (000 tonnes) (%) (%) (%) (%) (g/mt) (%) (%)
Copper Deposits
Antamina®
Proven 33.75 76,000 1.12 1.40 — — 14.9 0.029 —
Probable 33.75 374,000 1.19 0.84 — — 12.4 0.031 —
Total 450,000 1.18 0.93 — — 12.9 0.031 —
Collahuasi®
Proven 44,0 245,275 1.10 — — — — — —
Probable 44.0 1,559,057 .0.86 — — — — — —
Total 1,804,332 0.90 — — — — — —
Kidd Creek Division .
Proven 100.0 17,836 1.82 5.61 — 0.18 54 — —
Probable 100.0 1,178 2.05 441 — 0.09 33 — —
Total 19,014 1.84 5.53 — 0.18 53 — —
Lomas Bayas
Proven 100.0 72,797 0.36 — — — — — —
Probable 100.0 166,423 0.36 — — — — — —
Total 239,220 0.36 — — — — — —
Nickel Deposits
Falcondo
Proven 85.26 45,337 — — 1.22 — — — —
Probable "85.26 9,036 — — 1.05 — — — —
Total 54,373 — — 1.19 — — — —
Koniambo
Proven -49.0 17,182 — — 2.50 — — — —
Probabie 49,0 45,293 — — 2.36 — — — —
Total 62,475 — — 2.40 — — — —
Montcaim
Proven 100.0 4,157 0.69 — 1.45 — — — —
Probable 100.0 350 0.63 — 1.59 — — — —
Total 4,507 0.68 — 1.46 — — — —
Raglan
Proven 100.0 5,942 0.72 — 2.58 — — — —
Probable 100.0 8,908 0.81 — 2.95 — — — —
Total 14,850 0.77 — 2.80 — — — —
Sudbury
Proven 100.0 3,155 1.78 — 1.26 — — — —
Probable 100.0 4,900 1.27 — 1.13 — — — —
Total 8,055 1.47 — 1.18 — — — —
Zinc Deposits
Brunswick Mine’
Proven 100.0 13,230 0.38 8.83 — 3.52 104 — —
Probable 100.0 1,462 0.21 8.26 — 3.63 106 — —
Total 14,692 0.36 8.77 — 3.563 104 — —
Alumina Deposits®
St. Ann Bauxite
Proven 50.0 9,708 — — — — — — 25.37
Probable 50.0 19,593 — — — — — — 24.91
Total 29,301 — — — — — — 25.06

1. The mineral reserve and resource estimates are prepared in accordance with the CIM Definition Standards on Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves, adopted by CIM Council on November 14,
2004, and the CIM Estimation of Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves Best Practice Guidelines, adopted by CIM Council on November 23, 2003, using geostatistical and/or classical methods, plus

economic and mining parameters appropriate to each project.
2. The mineral reserves are shown on 8 100% basis. The mineral reserve estimates are compiled and verified by Chester Moore, Director, Mineral Reserve Estimation and Reporting, a member of the

Professional Geoscientists of Ontario with over 30 years experience as a geologist.

3. There are no known environmental, permitting, legal, taxation, political or other relevant issues that woutd materially affect the estimates of the mineral reserves.

4. For the estimation of reserves in this table, Falconbridge used the following long-term metal prices: nickel US$3.25/lb., copper US$0.90/Ib., zinc US$0.50/Ib. Exchange rate of $1.50 Cdn to $1.00 U.S.

5. Estimates used the following metal prices: copper US$0.95/Ib., zinc US$0.50/Ib., molybdenum US$5.00/b., and silver US$5.00/0z. Due to variable ore types and processing rates/costs, the economic cut-
off applied is a profitability factor of US$3500 per hour. See also Note 4 on page 106, Minerat Resources.

6. The mineral reserves and resources have been estimated and provided by the operator of the joint venture based on a copper price of US$0.95 for reserves and US$1.15 for resources. The mineral reserves
and resources are estimated and classified to industry standards following the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy’s Joint Ore Reserve Committee code which are comparable to CIM definitions,
The estimates are inspected annually by Chester Moore. The reserves include proven plus probable molybdenum reserves at the Rosario deposit totalling 1,055,694 tonnes at 0.025% molybdenum.

7. Estimates used the following metal prices: zinc US$0.65/Ib., copper US$1.50/b., lead US$0.35/Ib., and silver US$6.50/0z.

8. The mineral reserves have been estimated and provided by the operator of the joint venture. The estimates are inspected annually by Chester Moore.

MINERAL RESERVES
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RESVUUILES dlild NESEIVES

MINERAL RESOURCES (IN ADDITION TO MINERAL RESERVES) 2

GRADE
Falconbridge’s Molyb-
Beneficial Interest Dec. 31, 2005 Copper Zinc Nickel Lead Silver denum
(%) Category (000 tonnes) (%) (%) (%) (%) (g/mt) (%)
Copper Deposits Antamina* 33.75 Measured 35,000 0.53 0.39 — — 7.0 0.033
Indicated 25,000 0.44 0.26 — — 6.4 0.026
Total 60,000 0.49 0.33 — — 6.7 0.030
Inferred 41,000 0.8 0.6 — — 16 0.02
Collahuasi® 44.0 Measured 48,674 0.55 — — — — —
Indicated 429,686 0.65 — — — — —
Total 478,360 0.64 — — — — —
Inferred 1,820,000 0.75 — — — — —
Kidd Creek 100.0 Measured 891 2.37 3.75 — 0.18 35 —
Indicated 1,706 2.06 7.59 —_ 0.19 55 —
Total 2,597 2.17 6.28 — 0.18 48 —
Inferred 11,900 2.7 4.8 — 0.3 81 —
Lomas Bayas 100.0  Measured 22,791 0.30 — — — — —
Indicated 257,827 0.28 — —_— — — —
Total 280,618 0.28 — — — — —
Inferred 31,000 0.30 — — — — —
Nickel Deposits Falcondo 85.26 Measured — — — — — — —
Indicated 13,840 — — 1.53 — — —
Total 13,840 — — 1.53 — — —
Inferred 6,300 — — 1.4 — — —
Koniambo® 49.0 inferred 156,000 — — 2.2 — — —
Raglan 100.0 Measured 55 1.12 — 3.92 — — —
Indicated 3,336 0.80 — 2.40 — — —
Tota! 3,391 0.80 — 2.42 — — —
Inferred 7,700 0.8 — 3.0 — — —
Sudbury 100.0 Measured 3,347 0.61 — 1.85 — — —
Indicated 17,187 1.09 — 2.38 — — —
Total 20,534 1.02 — 2.30 — — —
Inferred 29,000 2.6 — 1.8 — — —
Zinc Deposits Brunswick Mine 100.0 Measured 1,542 0.34 3.07 — 3.53 94 —
Indicated 1,942 0.30 9.60 — 4.07 101 —
Total 3,484 0.32 3.36 — 3.83 98 —

1. The mineral resources are shown on a 100% basis. Mineral resources which are not mineral reserves have not been fully evaluated or have not demanstrated econamic viability under current market conditions.

2. The mineral reserve and resource estimates are prepared in accordance with the CIM Definition Standards on Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves, adopted by CIM Council on November 14, 2004, and
the CIM Estimation of Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves Best FPractice Guidelines, adopted by CIM Council on November 23, 2003, using geostatistical and/cr classical methods, plus economic and
mining parameters appropriate to each project.

3. The minerai resource estimates are compited and verified by Chester Moore, Director, Mineral Reserve Estimation and Reporting, a member of the Professional Geoscientists of Ontario with over 30 years
experience as a geologist.

4. The Antamina orebedy is highly variable and is currently described by mere than six different are types. A total of 111,239 metres of infill drilling was completed in 2003 and 2004 in order to enhance
the predictive ability of the resource model and to facilitate better short- and long-term mine planning. A new resource mode! was developed in 2005 which confirms previous resource estimate totals and
provides increased geological information and a superior reserve mode! for production purposes.

5. The inferred resources include 1,082 million tonnes grading 0.03% molybdenum at the Rosario deposit. The resources do not include the preliminary inferred resource estimate for the Rosario Oeste
deposit of 248 million tonnes grading 1.54% copper,

6. Does not include inferred mineral resources of 100 million tonnes of limonite grading 1.6% nickel and 0.2% cobalt.

METAL CONTAINED IN RESERVES' - FALCONBRIDGE’'S SHARE

Ounces?

(000 tonnes) (millions)

Copper Zinc Nickel Lead  Molybdenum Aluminum Stiver

Wholly-owned Copper Deposits Kidd Creek Division 349 1,052 — 34 — — 32
Lomas Bayas 861 — — — — — —

Subtotal Proven & Probable 1,210 1,052 — 34 — — 32

Nickel Deposits Montcalm 31 — 66 — — — —

Raglan 115 — 416 — — — —

Sudbury 118 — 95 — — — —

Subtotal Proven & Probable 264 — 577 — — — —

Zinc Deposits Brunswick 53 1,289 — 519 — —_ 49

Divided Interest ~ Copper Deposits Antamina (33.8%) 1,789 1,419 — — 47 — 63
Collahuasi (44%) 7,114 _ — —_ —_ —_ —

Subtotal Proven & Probable 8,903 1,419 — — 47 — 63

Nickel Deposits Falcondo (85.3%) — — 553 — — — —

Koniambo (49%) — — 734 — — — —

Subtotal Proven & Probable —_ — 1,287 — —_ — —

Alumina Deposits St. Ann Bauxite (50%) —_ — — — —_ 3,672 —_

Totals - Falconbridge's Share Proven & Probable 10,430 3,760 1,864 553 47 3,672 144

1. Calcutated from the mineral reserves on page 105. Processing recoveries not considered.
2. Troy ounce.

106  FALCONBRIDGE » 2005 ANNUAL REPORT




Advanced Projects’

GRADE
Falconbridge’s Molyb-
Beneficial ~ Resource Tonnes  Copper Zinc Nickel Lead Silver Gold denum Cobalt
Interest (%) Category  (millions) (%) (%) (%) (%) (g/mt) (g/mt) (%) (%)
Copper Deposits
El Morro, Chile? 70.0 Inferred 466.0 0.61 — — — — 0.50 — —
El Pachén, Argentina 100.0 Measured 37.1 1.15 — — — 40 — 0.03 —
Indicated  686.8 0.62 — — — 2.5 — 0.01 —
Total 723.9 0.65 — — — 2.6 — 0.02 —
Inferred 560.0 0.52 — — — 2.6 — 0.01 —
El Pilar, Mexico 100.0 Inferred 2100 0.34 — — — — — — —
Frieda River, Papua New Guinea2 72.0
Horse/lvaal/Trukai Indicated 74.6 0.63 — — — — 0.37 — —
Inferred 360.0 0.60 — — — — 0.38 — —
Koki*® Inferred 270.0 0.40 — — — — 0.30 — —
Nena Measured 25.9 3.04 — — — — 0.66 — —
Indicated 16.8 3.16 — — — — 0.48 — —
Total 42.7 3.09 — — — — 0.59 — —
Inferred 0.02 2.1 — — — — 0.2 — —
Kidd Mine D, Ontario® 100.0 Indicated 1.63 2.02 7.55 — 0.19 55 — — —
Inferred 11.8 2.7 4.8 — 0.29 82 — — —
Lomas Bayas I, Chile’ 100.0 Measured 125.2 0.31 — — — — — — —
Indicated 3451 0.28 — — — — — — —
Total 470.3 0.29 — — — — — — —
Inferred 150.0 0.21 — — — — — — —
Rosario Oeste, Chile®* 44,0 [Inferred 248.0 1.54 — — — — — — —
Nickel Deposits
Fraser Morgan, Ontario® 100.0 Measured 3.33 0.61 — 1.85 — 2.28 0.05 — 0.06
Indicated 1.55 0.46 — 1.69 — 1.61 0.04 —_ 0.06
Total 4.88 0.56 — 1.80 — 2.07 0.05 — 0.06
Inferred 2.4 0.5 — 1.8 — 1.2 — — 0.1
Kabanga? 50.0 Inferred 26.4 — — 2.6 — — — — —
Nickel Rim South, Ontaric® 100.0 Inferred 13.4 3.3 — 1.8 — 15 0.8 — 0.04
Onaping Depth, Ontario® 100.0 Indicated 14.6 1.15 — 2.52 — 2.3 0.12 — 0.06
Inferred 1.2 1.2 — 3.6 — 3.0 0.1 — 0.07
Zinc Deposits
Lady Loretta, Australia* 75.0 Measured 8.5 — 15.6 — 5.9 95 — — —
Indicated 3.1 — 17.5 — 5.2 94 — _- =
Total 11.6 — 16.1 — 5.7 95 — — —
Inferred 0.1 — 13.7 — 3.5 84 — — —
Lennard Shelf, Australia*® 50.0 Measured 1.40 — 8.80 — 2.15 — — — —
Indicated 1.37 — 8.15 — 1.75 — — — —
Total 2.77 — 8.47 — 1.96 — — — —
Inferred 0.3 — 8.2 — 1.7 — — — —
Perseverance, Quebec 90.0 Measured 4.36 1.28 16.19 — 0.04 30 0.38 — —
Indicated 0.76 1.03 13.68 — 0.04 27 0.34 — —
Total 512 1.24 1582 — 0.04 29 0.38 — —

1. The mineral reserve and resource estimates are prepared in accordance with the CIM Definition Standards on Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves, adopted by CIM Council on
November 14, 2004, and the CIM Estimation of Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves Best Practice Guidelines, adopted by CIM Council on November 23, 2003, using geostatistical
and/or classical methods, plus economic and mining parameters appropriate to each project. The mineral resources are shown on a 100% basis. Mineral resources which are not mineral
reserves have not been fully evaluated or have not demonstrated economic viability.

. Subject to fuifiliment of certain conditions.
. Mineral resource estimate supplied by the operator of the Collahuasi joint venture. These resources are not included in the Collahuasi mineral resources on the Mineral Resources table.
. The mineral resources were estimated using the Australian Code for Reporting of Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves (the “JORC Code") which are comparable to the CIM definitions.
. Mineral resources as estimated by Highlands Pacific Limited.
. Also included as part of the Kidd Creek mineral resources on the Mineral Resources table.
. Option to purchase. Formerly referred to as Fortuna de Cobre.
. Also included as part of the Sudbury mineral resources on the Mineral Resources table.
. Resource estimate supplied by Teck Comince Limited. Estimate developed as part of economic evaluation study with dilution and mining recovery included.
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DAVID KERR, c.A.

Toronto, Ontario
Chairman, Falconbridge Limited
Appointed in April 1987

Previously President and CEQ of
Noranda Inc. Past Chairman of the
Internaticnal Council on Mining and
Metals. Directorships include:
Brookfield Asset Management, Shell
Canada Limited, Sun Life Financial
Inc. and Sustainable Development
Technology Canada. Mr. Kerr is also
Chairman of the Toronto
Rehabilitation Hospital Foundation.

ALEX G. BALOGH

Oakvilte, Ontario
Corporate Director
Appointed in October 1994 (3,5)

Formerly Deputy Chairman of
Noranda Inc. (1994-2003) and
Chairman of Falconbridge Limited
(1984-2003). Directorships include:
Strongco Inc., Brascan Power inc.
and Cambior Inc. Mr. Balogh also
serves on the Advisory Council of
Sentient Global Resources Fund. He
is Chairman of the National Advisory
Board, Minerals and Metals Science
and Technology and is past Chairman
of the International Council of Metals
and the Environment. Mr, Balogh is
a metallurgical engineer.

ANDRE BERARD, 0.c., 0.Q.

[le-des-Soeurs, Quebec,

Corporate Director

Appointed in April 1990 (1,4,5)
Previously Chairman and CEO of
National Bank. Directorships include:
BCE Inc., Groupe BMTC Inc., Saputo
tnc., Bombardier inc., Tembec inc.
and Transforce Income Fund.

Mr. Bérard is also a Fellow of the
Institute of Canadian Bankers.

A.L. (AL) FLOOD, c.m.

Toronto, Ontaric

Retired Chairman and Chief
Executive Qfficer, Canadian imperial
Bank of Commerce

Appointed in June 1999 (2,4,5)

Directorships include: Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce and
Talisman Energy Inc.
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NORMAN R. GISH

Calgary, Alberta
President, Gish Consulting inc.,
Appainted in April 2001 (2,5)

Previously Chairman, President

and CEQ of Alliance Pipeline and
Aux Sable Liquid Products Inc.
Directorships include: Superior Plus
Inc., Railpower Technologies Corp.,
Energreen Canada Corp., Provident
Energy Ltd. and Quadrise Canada
Fuel Systems inc.

V. MAUREEN KEMPSTON

DARKES, o.c,, 0.0.

Weston, Florida

Group Vice-President and President,
Latin America, Africa and Middle
East, General Motors Corporation
Appainted in January 1998 (2,5)

Previously President and General
Manager of General Mators of Canada
Limited. Directorships include:

CN Rail and The Thomson
Corporation.



G. EDMUND KING

Toronto, Ontario
Chairman, M30 Communications Inc.
Appointed in June 1994 (2,5)

Formerly Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of CIBC Wood
Gundy Corporation and formerly
Chairman of WIC Western Inter-
national Communications Inc.
Directorships include: Rockwater
Capital Corporation, Caldwell Partners
Ltd., the Canadian Cardiology
Society, the Centre for Addiction and
Mental Health Foundation and

M30 Communications.

NEVILLE W. KIRCHMANN,
C.A. (s.A)

Toronto, Ontario
President, Kirchmann Holdings Ltd.
Appointed in December 1997 (1,4,5)

Previously President and CEO of
Coca-Cola Canada and Southern
Africa. Formerly President and CEQ
of The Princess Margaret Hospital
Foundation. Directorships include:
Fibre Connections Inc. and Interlink

Community Cancer Nurses (Chairman).

Mr. Kirchmann is also Chair of the
Development Committee and Vice-
Chairman of The Princess Margaret
Hospital Foundation,

JAMES W. McCUTCHEON,
Q.C.

Toronto, Ontario
Counsel and Corporate Director
Appointed in April 1993 (1,3,5)

Counsel, McCarthy Tetrault LLP
(1990-2005). Directorships include:
CAE Inc., Canadian Satellite Radio
Holdings Inc., Dominion of Canada
General Insurance Company, Empire
Life tnsurance Company (Chairman
1991-1997) and Guardian Capital
Group Limited. Governor, Royal
Ontario Museum Foundation,
Haonorary Trustee, University Health
Network, Toronto.

DEREK PANNELL, ing, BSc,
ARSM

Toronto, Ontario

Chief Executive Officer,
Falconbridge Limited
Appointed in April 2002

Appointed President and CEO of
Noranda Inc. in June 2002 and CEQ
of Falconbridge Limited since June
2005. Previously President and

COOQ of Noranda, Vice-President of
Comparifa Minera Antamina in Pery,
and President of Brunswick Mining
and Smelting. Directorships include:
Mining Association of Canada.

Mr. Pannell is also an Honorary
Professor of the Universidad Nacional
de Ingenéria, Lima, Peru.

DAVID H. RACE

Toronto, Ontario
Corporate Director
Appointed in April 1994 (2,3,5)

Chairman Emeritus of CAE Inc. and
previously President and CEQ of

CAE Inc. (1985-1993). Mr. Race is
also an Honorary Director of the Bank
of Nova Scotia and Laureate of the
Canadian Business Hall of Fame.

JAMES D. WALLACE, f.C.A.

Sudbury, Ontario

President, Pioneer Construction, Inc.
and Fisher-Wavy inc.

Appointed in January 2001

Director of the following public
companies: Osprey Media Group Inc.
and Northstar Aerospace Inc.

Mr. Wallace is a Director of a number
of private companies, including
Alexander Centre Industries Limited,
Ethier Sand and Grave) Limited and
Grant Forest Products inc. He is also
past Chair of Laurentian University,
and is currently on the President's
advisory council.

MARY MOGFORD, icp.D.

Newcastle, Ontario
Corporate Director
Appointed in December 1995 (1,3,5}

Former Deputy Minister of Finance
and Deputy Minister of Natural
Resources for the Province of Ontario.
Directorships include: MDS Inc.,
Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan
Inc., Sears Canada and the Altamira
Advisory Council. Ms. Mogford is a
Director of The Sick Kids Foundation,
a former Vice-Chair and an Honorary
Trustee of the Hospital for Sick
Children and an Honorary Governor of
Trent University.

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

2 Corporate Governance
Committee

3 Environment, Health and
Safety Committee

4 Human Resources
Committee

5 Independent Directors’
Committee

The Chair of the
committee is in bold
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SENIOR EXECUTIVES
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DEREK PANNELL AARON W. REGENT STEVEN DOUGLAS PETER KUKIELSKI
Chief Executive Officer President Executive Vice-President and Executive Vice-President and
Chief Financial Officer Chief Operating Officer

BUSINESS UNIT PRESIDENTS

)

; (A ’
WILLIAM H. BROOKS CLAUDE FERRON JOE LAEZZA FERNANDO PORCILE BOB SIPPEL
President, Aluminum President, Canadian Copper President, Nickel President, Copper South President, Zinc
Business Unit and Recycling Business Unit Business Unit America Business Unit Business Unit

SENIOR VICE-PRESIDENTS

MICHAEL AGNEW Senior Vice-President, Technology

BRIAN BARR Senior Vice-President, Special Projects

DENIS COUTURE Senfor Vice-President, Investor Relations, Communications and Public Affairs
ANDRE JORON Senior Vice-President, Human Resources

IAN PEARCE Senior Vice-President, Projects and Engineering

KATHERINE RETHY Senior Vice-President, information Systems, Procurement, Logistics, Enterprise Risk Management and Facilities
MARTIN SCHADY Senior Vice-President, Business Development

PAUL SEVERIN Senior Vice-President, Exploration

JEFFERY SNOW Senior Vice-President and General Counse!

ROBERT TELEWIAK Senior Vice-President, Environment, Health and Safety

VICE-PRESIDENTS
MICHAEL BOONE Vice-President, Finance and Controller
DOMINIQUE DIONNE Vice-President, Public Affairs
JOHN DOYLE Vice-President, Taxation

MICHAEL FRILEGH Vice-President, Treasurer

TED LAKS Vice-President, Performance/Six Sigma

OTHER OFFICERS
STEPHEN YOUNG Corporate Secretary
LYNDA BEESLEY Assistant Corporate Secretary
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Ongoing Corporate Governance Initiatives

QOur Board of Directors and Company management strive to anticipate and implement any governance initiatives that our Governance
Committee believes are appropriate in the context of our extensive international business activities and the general global business
environment. During 2005, Board governance and disclosure oversight played particularly strong roles in certain major strategic
initiatives implemented by the Company, including the series of restructuring transactions which resulted in the merger of Noranda
Inc. and the former Falconbridge Limited to form our combined Company on June 30, 2005. Certain key components of the
Company's governance systems and procedures are outlined below.

DISCLOSURE COMMITTEE

DENIS COUTURE

Senior Vice-President,

Investor Relations, Communications
& Pubiic Affairs

KATHERINE RETHY

Senior Vice-President,

information Systems, Procurement,
Logistics, Enterprise Risk
Management & Facilities

JEFFERY SNOW
Senior Vice-President and
General Counse!

STEPHEN YOUNG

Corporate Secretary

PUBLIC ACCESS

Further details regarding the Company's corporate
governance practices may be accessed on our
website at www.falconbridge.com.

PROXY CIRCULAR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES The Corporate Governance Guidelines serve as the formal
mandate of our Board of Directors with a view to providing a framework for strengthening
governance, expanding insider accountability and enhancing the quality of Board oversight. These
Guidelines, reviewed by the Board for effectiveness on an annual basis, state the primary
responsibilities of the Board as well as the general criteria for Board membership and level of
commitment expected of each director.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE In certain of the fundamental governance areas requiring Board over-
sight, a strong element of independent director stewardship continues to be maintained and
developed by our Board. The Board is comprised of a majority of independent directors and the
Independent Board Leader chairs sessions without management present at every Board meeting.
All Board committees are comprised solely of independent directors. Our present Board composition
comprises 10 independent directors from both of the predecessor public companies, with two of
our non-independent directors on the Board also holding the respective positions of Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board.

CODE OF ETHICS Our Company’s written Code of Ethics sets a high standard of ethical behavior
throughout the Company and its global operations. The code applies to all directors, officers and
employees of the Company and also provides a confidential procedure under which employees can
report issues to designated individuals or through the Company’s Ethics Hotline.

DISCLOSURE POLICY The Corporate Disclosure Policy summarizes
the Company’s policies and practices regarding disclosure of
information to investors, analysts, the media and the public
generally, The Company's Disclosure Committee oversees and
monitors compliance with this policy and advises senior
management and the Board on public disclosure matters.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS The merger of Noranda Inc. and the former

Our circular contains a complete discussion of
our corporate governance practices.

ANNUAL INFORMATION FORM

A copy of our audit committee charter is attached
as an appendix to our Annual Information Form,
which will be available electronically at
www.sedar.com. Qur Annual Information Form
will also contain disciosure relating to the
qualifications of each of the Audit Committee
members.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of
Ethics, Disclosure Policy and terms of reference
for each of the principal committees of the Board
have been posted on our website for ease of
access by shareholders and the public generally.

Falconbridge Limited brought together the individual strengths and
experience levels of the directors serving on the Boards of each of
these companies. Our new Audit Committee, for example, includes
independent directors from both of the predecessor audit
committees. As well, other significant corporate developments during
2005 resulted in additional Board meetings and an expanded role of
governance oversight for the committees of independent directors.

The Company's Disclosure Committee developed and put into
place Continuous Disclosure Document Guidelines which set out
the internal processes for generating, verifying and approving the
Company's core disclosure documents which are jssued and filed
with securities regulators during the course of each fiscal year.
These Guidelines work together with our Enterprise Risk Manage-
ment Process to extend a system of disclosure controls and
procedures to our business and functional units operating worldwide
through the Company’s network of subsidiaries. The upgrading of
these processes enhances the Audit Committee oversight through
the regular quarterly reports this Committee receives from the Chief
Financial Officer and the Disclosure Committee.
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Shareholder and Corporate Information

Stock Exchange Listings

Falconbridge Limited common shares are
listed on the Toronto (TSX: FAL.LV) and
New York (NYSE: FAL) stock exchanges.

Index Listings

S&P/TSX Composite

S&P/TSX Capped Composite

S&P/TSX Capped Diversified Metals & Mining
S&P/TSX Capped Materials

S&P TSX 60

S&P TSX 60 Capped

Falconbridge Dividend Policy
Falconbridge views common share dividends
as an important part of a shareholder's
return on investment. As a result, it aims
to pay a common share dividend at all
points of the economic cycle, as long as the
payment does not impair the Company’s
financial position. It is expected that the
common share dividend will increase or
decrease to reflect the Company’s
operating results and financial position.
The preferred shares of each series
issued by Falconbridge rank in priority to
the common shares with respect to the
payment of dividends.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Falconbridge Limited common shareholders
resident in Canada may purchase additional
common shares by reinvesting their cash
dividends. To do so, a form of election may
be obtained by contacting the Transfer
Agent and Registrar. (Note: The dividend
reinvestment plan was indefinitely
suspended on Oct. 20, 2005 according

to the terms of the Inco Limited and
Falconbridge Limited support agreement
related to the Inco offer to purchase
Falconbridge common shares).

Transfer Agent and Registrar

For information regarding dividend
cheques, share certificates,

stock transfers, etc., please contact:

CIBC Mellon Trust Company, P.0.Box 7010,
Adelaide Street Postal Station,
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5C 2W9

Phone: 1-800-387-0825
(toll free in North America)
or (416) 643-5500

Fax: (416) 643-5501

E-mail: inguiries@cibcmelon.com
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OUTSTANDING SHARES INFORMATION

Outstanding Shares

Annual Dividend

TSX Trading Symbols: At Dec. 31, 2005 Per Share
FAL.LV Common Shares 370,688,138 Cdn$0.48
— Preferred Shares, Series 1 89,835 Cdn$0.08
FAL.PR.A  Preferred Shares, Series 2 4,787,283 Cdn$0.98*
FAL.PR.B  Preferred Shares, Series 3 3,122,882 Cdn$1.15
FAL.PR.F  Preferred Shares, Series F 3,246,057 Cdn$1.03*
FAL.PR.G  Preferred Shares, Series G 8,753,943 Cdn$1.53
FAL.PR.H  Preferred Shares, Series H 6,000,000 Cdn$1.63
FAL.PR.X  Junior Preference Shares, Series 1 11,999,899 us $1.50
FAL.PR.Y  Junior Preference Shares, Series 2 11,999,899 Us $1.5625
FAL.PR.Z  lunior Preference Shares, Series 3 5,999,903 Us $1.625

*Based on floating rates calculated for 2005

COMMON SHARE TRADING INFORMATION - 2005

Share Price Share Price  Share Volume

Quarter Low High (MILLIONS)

TSX (Can$) First $19.67 $ 25.44 126.0
Second 19.60 24.99 119.4

Third 20.77 32.31 103.5

Fourth 29.25 36.06 153.8

NYSE (us$)  First $16.08 $21.09 13.6
Second 15.42 20.48 12.7

Third 16.75 27.49 14.1

Fourth 24.80 31.14 15.4

Falconbridge’s Long-Term Debt Visit Our Website

Credit Ratings

At December 31, 2005

Moody’s Investors Service: Baa3 stahle
Standard & Poor's: BBB-
Dominion Bond Rating:  BBB Stable

Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP

Falconbridge Inquiries

Investor Information:

Martin Pede, Director, Investor Relations,
Telephone: (416) 982-7337

Tracey Wise, Director, Investor Relations,
Telephone: (416) 982-7178

General information:

Telephone: (416) 982-7111

E-mail: request@falconbridge.com

News Media information: (416) 982-7161
Noranda Income Fund: (416) 982-7188
Novicourt Inc.: (416) 982-7069

Browse www.falconbridge.com to
learn more about Falconbridge and
the mining industry.

Sustainable Development Report

To receive a copy of Falconbridge’s
2005 Sustainable Development Report,
please request it through:

Fax: (416) 982-3501

E-mail:  request@falconbridge.com

Version francaise
La version frangaise du rapport annue!
sera fournie sur demande.
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